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The Finance and Audit Committee of the Miami University Board of Trustees met
on December 6, 2012 in Room 104 Roudebush Hall on the Oxford Campus. The meeting
was called to order at 1:00 p.m. by Committee Chair Mike Armstrong. Committee
members Jagdish Bhati, David Budig, Donald Crain, Mike Gooden and Mark Ridenour
were in attendance. Trustees Sharon Mitchell, Sue Henry, and Robert Shroder were also
present.

In addition to the Trustees, David Creamer, Vice President for Finance and
Business Services, and Treasurer; Bobby Gempesaw, Provost and Executive Vice
President for Academic Affairs; Debra Allison, Vice President for Information
Technology and CIO; Barbara Jones, Vice President for Student Affairs; and Tom
Herbert, Vice President for Advancement were in attendance. Also present, were; Robin
Parker, General Counsel; Marek Dollar, Dean, School of Engineering and Applied
Science; Deedie Dowdle, Associate Vice President for Communications and Marketing;
Michael Kabbaz, Associate Vice President for Enroliment Management; David Ellis,
Associate Vice President for Budgeting and Analysis; Dale Hinrichs, Associate Vice
President for Finance and Controller; Kim Kinsel and Peter Miller, Associate Vice
President for Auxiliaries; Bruce Guiot, Chief Investment Officer; Cody Powell, Associate
Vice President for Facilities, Planning and Operations; Dr. Rebecca Luzadis, Chair,
Fiscal Priorities and Budget Planning Committee; John Seibert, University Architect;
Carol Hauser, Sr. Director of Human Resources; Dawn Fahner, Director of Benefit
Services; Barbara Jena, Director, Internal Audit and Consulting Services; and Ted
Pickerill, Secretary to the Board of Trustees; along with several other individuals
attending to observe, report or to provide information if requested.

Executive Session

The Finance and Audit Committee entered Executive Session to consult with
General Counsel. At 1:30 p.m. the Committee adjourned the Executive Session and
convened into the Public Business Session.

Business Session

Approval of the Minutes

The minutes from the September 20, 2012 meeting were approved.



Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report

The independent auditors of McGladrey LLC presented an opinion that the 2012
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of the
University as of June 30, 2012 and the respective changes in net assets and, where,
applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Per standard practice, following the general presentation, the auditors meet
privately with the Committee members.

Miami’s annual financial report and the reports from McGladrey LLC are
included as Attachment A.

Facilities, Construction and Real Estate

Cody Powell, Associate Vice President for Facilities, Planning and Operations;
and John Seibert, University Architect, updated the Committee on Construction projects,
the long range master plan, implementation of Brailsford and Dunlavey
recommendations, and the choice of available project delivery methods.

A listing of the Brailsford and Dunlavey recommendation was presented, showing
continuing progress in implementation (the listing is included with Attachment B).
Additionally, they informed the Committee that the University has implemented
procedures to increase the oversight and review of the Change Order process.

Differences between Design Build, Construction Management at Risk, and
Multiple Prime delivery methods were explained. Until recently, Ohio regulations
typically led to Multiple Prime being the delivery method for large projects. Changes to
Ohio law now better enable other methods to be considered as well, including Design
Build and Construction Management at Risk, both of which place construction cost risk
with the contractor, rather than the University. The primary difference between Design
Build and Construction Management at Risk, is that Design Build assigns design and
construction management to one contractor, while Construction at Risk keeps these
responsibilities separate. Both Design Build and Construction Management at Risk place
cost risk with the contractor, and assign Miami an oversight versus a management role in
construction; with such advantages, it is not anticipated that the Multiple Prime method
will be used again in the foreseeable future.

Current construction projects were discussed. Energy efficiency and minimizing
negative environmental impact are considerations. For example, the Western dining
facility will have a green roof, water management is included in planning, and energy
efficiency is a prime goal. Also considered is aesthetics, to maintain the look appropriate
for each area of campus, and the management of pedestrian flow for student convenience
and safety. It was noted that much of the current work is new construction, but once the



Western Campus and the Maple Street work is complete, the master plan calls for mostly
renovation rather than new construction.

The age of campus buildings in general was discussed. With a limited budget and
decreasing State support, prioritization of effort is quite important. For example,
deteriorated roofs are a major concern due the potential for water damage. Trustees asked
that at a future meeting, the topic of deferred maintenance be discussed.

A resolution was presented to authorize the award of contracts, not to exceed
$20,000,000, for the renovation of Anderson and McFarland Halls. Mr. Ridenour moved,
Mr. Budig seconded and the Committee agreed by unanimous voice vote to recommend
approval to the full board of Trustees.

The facilities and construction presentation, a status of Capital Projects report,
and the Anderson and McFarland resolution are included as Attachment B.

Enrollment Management

Associate Vice President Michael Kabbaz briefed the Committee on the Fall 2012
cohort demographics, Divisional capacity, recruiting efforts, and on the status of
applications for Fall 2013 entry.

Student capacity is evaluated and determined by each Division, and a primary
factor in defining that capacity is facilities; the size and layout of the buildings assigned
to a Division — the number and size of classrooms, laboratory space, etc. Understanding
Divisional student capacity constraints helps in tailoring recruitment efforts. Also
discussed was the student housing capacity on campus, which impacts the overall class
size.

Regarding Early Decision applications for Fall 2013 entry, Mr. Kabbaz reported
applications are up more than 8% above last year’s numbers, and that applications from
out-of-state students are up by 10%. Applications from Ohio residents were also up,
which is remarkable in that this group is a declining demographic.

Mr. Kabbaz also reported on the increased number of visits to high schools, and
the targeted regions and schools chosen. He also discussed the new Scholars Programs,
which allow significant, impactful experiences for top incoming students, and also
present new donor opportunities in sponsoring/funding student Scholars.

Mr. Kabbaz’s presentation is included as Attachment C.
School of Engineering and Applied Science Fee Proposal
Marek Dollar, Dean of the School of Engineering and Applied Science (SEAS)

presented a proposal to create a fee for SEAS majors. The cost of instruction for such
majors is higher than that of most other majors on campus. This is due to the need for



laboratories and equipment to support project-based learning, which further requires
more direct faculty interaction than in lecture-based courses. Enrollment in the School
has increased by 80% since 2007, while the number of faculty has remained near constant
and allocated funds for laboratory and computer equipment has fallen.

The practice of requiring a fee from Engineering students is common and is the
practice of all other public Engineering programs in Ohio. The creation of a fee for
Miami SEAS students would provide funding to directly and positively impact their
student experience.

The prosed fee would apply on a cohort basis and would remain constant
throughout a student’s standard four year enrollment. The fee proposed is $300 per
semester for the Fall 2013 cohort; students currently at Miami would not be charged the
fee.

Following discussion, Mr. Ridenour moved, Mr. Bhati seconded and by
unanimous voice vote, the Committee recommended that the Full Board of Trustees
approve the proposed Ordinance to authorize a fee for School of Engineering and
Applied Science majors, commencing with the Fall 2013 cohort.

Dean Dollar’s report and the proposed ordinance are included as Attachment D.
FY2013 Endowment Spending Formula

Dr. Creamer presented a resolution to approve the endowment spending formula
for FY2013. The formula is presented to the Trustees each year so any major changes in
the market can be considered, and adjustments to the distribution formula made. The
proposed formula was approved by the Foundation Board in October and is unchanged
from FY2012.

Mr. Bhati moved, the motion was seconded and by unanimous voice vote, the
Committee recommended that the Full Board of Trustees approve the proposed resolution
to establish the endowment spending formula for FY2013.

The proposed resolution is included as Attachment E.
Year-to-Date Operating Results vs. Budget

Dr. Creamer presented a review of year-to-date operating expences versus
budgeted. The initial projection is for a surplus of approximately $5.6 million for the
Oxford campus, $1.3 million for Hamilton, $374,000 for Middletown, and for VOA to be
on budget. Some prime factors contributing to the surplus include; student fee revenue in
excess of projected; salaries, benefits and healthcare expenses below budgeted; and
department support activities less than budgeted. Also noted and discussed were
scholarship awards being less than budgeted.



The report on FY2013 forecasted operating results is included as Attachment F.

Strategic Priorities
Health Benefits

Carol Hauser, Sr, Director of Human Resources and Dawn Fahner, Director of
Benefit Services updated the Committee on changes in employee health benefits.

They informed the Committee of the impact of major claims, which are accrued
by 1. 2% of the covered individuals but account for nearly 40% of healthcare costs. To
address serious and chronic conditions, care management is used and Miami’s healthcare
administrator, Humana, assigns case managers and provides disease management. Miami
also includes a wellness component in its health coverage.

The employee premium history and planned increases in premiums were
discussed. With benefits being a portion of the full compensation package, premiums
were not increased during the years without salary increases. However, since annual
salary increases have been restored, a plan is being followed which has employees
contributing an ever greater percentage of premiums each year with 13% expected in
CY2013, 15% in CF2014 and 17% in CY2015.

Ms. Hauser and Ms. Fahner also informed the Committee of the recent opening
of an employee/dependent health clinic on campus. The clinic will provide urgent care
type service (which was previously lacking) for the Oxford area.

The provider side and Accountable Care efforts where next discussed. The
discussion began with Mercy which led Trustees Robert Shroder and Mark Ridenour to
recuse themselves and exit the room. Later discussions included McCullough Hyde
hospital which led Trustee Donald Crain to also recuse himself and exit. Trustees
Shroder, Ridenour and Crain did not return to the room until discussions involving these
health organizations where fully complete.

Miami is pursuing healthcare service through an Accountable Care Organization
or Medical Home type system. Mercy, Humana and McCullough Hyde each offer
varying possibilities in this area.

Ms. Hauser’s and Ms. Fahner’s report is included as Attachment G.

Strategic Priorities
Long Term Budget

Dr. Creamer presented the long-term budget plan for discussion. New or
increased revenue opportunities were reviewed. Some of the opportunities discussed
included; increasing the proportion of non-resident students, growing fee-paying graduate
student enrollment, and growing the American Culture and English (ACE) program.



Productivity gains, and additional Strategic Priority savings are also included in the long-
term budget.

Information on the long-term budget plan is included as Attachment H.
Vice President for Auxiliaries
Following the budget discussion, Dr. Creamer introduced Kim Kinsel who is
transitioning to Vice President for Auxiliaries as Pete Miller retires. Dr. Creamer and the
Trustees welcomed Ms. Kinsel, and thanked Mr. Miller for his many years of exceptional

and dedicated service.

Internal Audit

Barbara Jena, Director, Internal Audit and Consulting Services, updated the
Committee on the internal audit annual plan, scope of activities, a summary of internal
audit issues raised, and Internal Audit and Consulting Services staffing and budget for
FY2013.

The annual audit plan is based on an updated risk assessment of key areas across
the University. Open audit issues were discussed in order of risk level. 1ACS staffing
includes a full-time Director, two full-time Assistant Directors, and a student auditor.
Personnel costs account for 87% of the IACS budget, with year-to-date costs running
under budget.

Per standard annual practice, following the general presentation, Ms. Jenna met
privately with the Committee members.

Ms. Jena’s report is included as Attachment 1.

Additional Reports

The following reports were also provided for the Committee meeting:

Rating Agency Reports

2012 Bond Issue Summary

Forward Twelve Month Agenda
Tuition Report

Development and Advancement Report
Report on Cash and Investments



Adjournment

With no other business coming before the Committee, the Chair adjourned the
meeting at 5:00 p.m.

Theodore O. Pickerill 11
Secretary to the Board of Trustees
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Treasurer’s report

Financial Highlights

For the third consecutive year, the university reported positive financial results for fiscal year 2011-12. The improved financial position
is reflected in total assets, which rose 12.2 percent to a total of $1.43] billion. Net assets also increased by $39.5 million. The growth
in total and net assets occurred even as state support declined by $19.2 million or 25.4 percent.

For only the second time in the last six years, the university increased tuition for Ohio undergraduate students. Undergraduate tuition
and fees were increased by 3.5 percent for resident students and 3.0 percent for non-resident students. On the Oxford campus, a fresh-
man class of 3,607 students surpassed the goal of 3,550 students. The total fall 2012 enrollment on the Oxford campus was 16,688
students, which is an increase of 216 students or 1.3 percent. This is the third consecutive year enrollment has increased on the Oxford
campus. The fall 2012 enrollment on both regional campuses declined with the Hamilton campus and Middletown campus declining
by 2.7 and 5.1 percent, respectively. '

Operating revenues increased by 4.9 percent or $20.0 million dollars largely due to the increase in tuition and room and board rates.
The revenue growth was offset by a 2.0 percent increase in operating expenditures, comprised primarily of a two percent salary increase
for faculty and staff. Investment income declined by $35.6 million over the previous fiscal year mirroring a decline in the global public
equity market.

Other financial highlights for the year include a Pooled Investment Agreement between Miami University and the Miami University
Foundation. Under the agreement that was entered into on July I, 2011, the Foundation will collectively manage all the endowed funds
in a single investment pool. The university also issued $148.8 million in general receipts revenue bonds. A portion of these proceeds
were used to refund $34.3 million of the remaining Series 2003 General Receipts Bonds. The remaining proceeds are being used to
provide funding for the second phase of a multi-phase plan to renovate student housing and dining facilities on the Oxford campus.
Given favorable market conditions for interest rates and construction costs, the university plans to issue additional general receipts
bonds in fiscal year 2013. These proceeds will be similarly used for the renovation of residence and dining hall facilities.

{1
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Future Outlook and Challenges

The economic outlook for the University remains challenging but is improving. The State of Ohio’s financial outlook has stabilized
with revenues expected to exceed projections, reducing the risk of future budget cuts. For fiscal year 2013, Miami’s state appropriation
was budgeted to increase by $1.5 million or 2.8 percent for the Oxford campus and $0.2 million or 3.1 percent for the Hamilton campus.
The Middletown campus state share of instruction is scheduled to decrease by $0.2 million or 4.0 percent. In addition, the university
will receive $19.3 million in capital appropriations in fiscal year 2013. The majority of these funds ($18.2 million) are earmarked to
renovate Kreger Hall, while the remaining $1.1 million will be for projects on the regional campuses.

Miami University continues to implement the recommendations of the Strategic Priorities Task Force (SPTF) which were approved in
2011. The recommendations are intended to produce approximately $10 million in new revenue and $30 million in expense reductions
by 2015. Operating expenses were cut by $7.9 million in the 2012 fiscal year and an additional $6.2 million in reductions are planned
for fiscal year 2013. Also in 2013, the University will increase its focus on developing new revenue sources that are needed to help
replace cuts in state support and smaller tuition increases. Examples of these new revenue sources include the addition of a winter
term, expanded course offerings during summer terms, and expanded on-line course offerings.

Another change that is in progress is the transition from a traditional incremental budget framework to a Responsibility Centered
Management (RCM) approach with the implementation scheduled for fiscal year 2014 The RCM budget model stresses decentralized
accountability for revenue generation while providing academic divisions greater influence over the allocation of the tuition revenue
generated by their academic programs. The change is intended to better align future budget decisions with the increased emphasis
on entrepreneurial activities.

Finally, during the coming year the University will complete a new strategic plan that will guide the institution beyond the Strategic
Priorities recommendations. The new plan is intended to provide the University with a clearer framework for setting institutional
priorities and making resource allocation choices during a period of great change for higher education.

Respectfully submitted,

Dr. David K. Creamer
Vice President for Finance and Business Services and Treasurer

2}

_ Attachment A, Page 30f88 e Dec 2012



Attachment A, Page 4 of 88 Finance and Auditor's Report Dec 2012

Investment report M ks

Miami University and Miami University Foundation
June 30, 2012

Fiscal Year 2012 Highlights

Miami’s investment portfolios produced mixed results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The combined endowment and foundation
managed pools produced a loss of 3.27 percent, a notable decline from the previous year’s average increase of 19.6 percent. Meanwhile,
the operating pool earned 1.86 percent after earning 2.79 percent in the previous year.

Investment Pools

As of July 1, 2011, Miami University and the Miami University Foundation entered into a pooled investment agreement. Under this
arrangement, the Foundation investment committee provides governance oversight to one unified endowment investment pool.

This combination allows the staff to realize operating efficiencies, assists in managing cash flow, and maximizes the resources of our
talented and dedicated board members.

As of June 30, 2012, total investments held by Miami University and the Miami University Foundation approached $700 million, up
from $657 million at the previous year end. The increase largely represented improved University operating cash flow and sustained
giving levels. These assets are allocated among the pools as follows:

_TypeotFunds ~ Invested as of June 30, 2012

University non-ehdowrﬁeht | Working capital and cash reserves e $288,953;000
’ to support operating activities '

University endowment & foundation Funds donated to the university and the $387,222,000
foundation to establish endowments in perpetuity

Trusts, annuities, and separately  Gifts managed independently of  $23,821,000
invested assets : the pooled funds

Total investments $699,996,000

The university non-endowment pool holds the working capital and cash reserves that fund the university’s operating activities. Its balance fluctuates

during the course of a year based on the university’s cash flow cycle of receipts and expenditures. June 30 typically marks the low point of this annual
cycle.

The endowment pool invests endowed gifts from donors. The pool operates under the philosophy that they are invested in perpetuity to provide
benefits to today’s students as well as to the many generations of Miami students yet to come. Miami invests the funds with the confidence that
economic cycles will rise and fall but that a diversified portfolio will provide the long-term growth necessary to preserve the value of the endowment
across the generations. The investment policy governing the endowment pool recognizes that the portfolio can tolerate year-to-year fluctuations in

return because of its infinite time horizon, and looks beyond short-term fluctuations toward an investment philosophy that provides the best total
return over very long time periods.

The university and foundation also hold assets given by donors in the form of trusts, annuities, insurance policies, and similar assets. These funds
are separately managed in accordance with the donors’ instructions.

Over the last decade, the size of the combined endowment pools has nearly doubled through a combination of generous support from our donors
and solid investment earnings. We appreciate the thoughtful guidance of our investment committee and the enduring generosity of our alumni
and friends as we continue to navigate the extraordinary challenges present throughout the global capital markets.

{3
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Combined Endowment Growth

$600,000,000 ~

$387,222,000

$400,000,000 ~

$201,952,000

$300,000,000 =

$200,000,000 =

$100,000,000 1

2003 2012

Asset Allocation

The non-endowment pool has three components. Operating cash
represents the University’s working capital and is invested in
short-term cash equivalents, with a target balance of two to six
months of average cash needs. Core cash represents short-term
reserves and is invested in short-term and intermediate-term
fixed income investments, also with the target balance of two to
six months of average cash needs. Long-term capital consists of
longer-term reserves and represents the remainder of the pool.
It is invested in a mix of longer maturity bonds and absolute
return hedged strategies. During the year, cash flow generation
was again very strong, partly due to much improved budgetary
trends. This growth in cash continues to present a challenge,
however, as short-term interest rates persist near zero. Actions
were taken during the year to reduce cash balances in order to
increase earnings potential. The result was one new manager in
the absolute return space, with additions to several other
managers throughout the pool.

Miami University Non-Endowment
Asset Allocation

The endowment pool’s asset allocation strategy uses three asset
categories: equity, debt, and real assets. Within each category,
we can gain exposure through three types of strategies: long-only
public, hedged, or private. We employ managers that have broad,
unconstrained mandates, allowing them great flexibility to
pursue opportunities. Most of our managers have a global
mandate. At year-end, total equity related strategies represented
about 59% of the combined portfolio, down by about nine
percentage points during the year. This decline represented both
very poor returns from non-U.S. equity markets, as well as actions
taken to reduce exposure. Public equity declined by seven points.
Hedged debt increased by three percentage points, and a new
position was taken in public real assets at a two percent weighting.

,,,.f"'/l;rivate
< 12%

Combined
Endowment and
Foundation
Asset Allocation
June 30,2012

Over the last five years, the asset allocation has evolved to reflect
perceived changes in the opportunities available in the global
capital markets. The portfolio has emphasized a shift away from
the highly volatile public equity space and toward credit and
natural resources strategies.

—
=

June 30, 2012 "
: Equity -13%
Public -19%
Hedged 1%
Private 5%
Debt 8%
R Public 2%
30% Hedged 6%
Gore Gash, Private 0%
‘ Real Assets 9%
Public -1%
Private 10%
Cash -4%
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Summary of Percentage of Holdings by Asset Class for FY2008-FY2012
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Geographically, the portfolio emphasizes managers that invest
globally. The concept of geography is often difficult to quantify,
sincea company we invest in might be domiciled in one country,
trade in another, derive its current revenue globally, and perceive
its future earnings growth to be in places it does not yet conduct
business. The following chart depicts the total portfolio’s
exposure over the last five years by broad geographic region.

Summary of Percentage of Holdings by Geographic Region
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Over the last decade, we have taken many actions toward a goal
of reducing portfolio volatility. The result of these actions can be
seen in the chart tracking the standard deviation for the
Foundation portfolio versus the Russell 3000, a proxy for the
broad U.S. public equity market. During the first half of this
period, the general domestic equity market was also experiencing

a period of relative tranquility, as measured by the standard
deviations. When volatility spiked during the financial calamities
of 2008, both standard deviations increased, but the portfolio
volatility rose to a much lower extent. Since 2008, public equity
volatility has continued to climb, while the portfolio has leveled
out. We attribute this relative calm to the success of the
implementation of these volatility mitigating strategies.

Standard Deviation/Time
January 1997 - June 2012 (60 Month Moving Windows, Computed Monthly)
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Miami treats each investment manager relationship like a
partnership and, along with its external advisors, expends
considerable effort on the due diligence process. The consultants
focus on manager research, including back office due diligence,
and conduct regular statistical reviews to examine the role each
manager is playing in the portfolio. Staff has regular quarterly
conversations with each manager to understand their strategic
thinking and to monitor their business activity. Ongoing
oversight activities include making manager site visits, attending
investor conferences, reading trade publications, tracking

government filings, and monitoring the managers’ service
providers.

In total, the endowment employs 22 external managers, some
with multiple mandates. During the year, new relationships were
established with three equity long/short managers, a global public
equity manger, and a master limited partnerships manager. Three
public equity managers were terminated. In addition, the

exposure levels to several managers were adjusted.
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Invesiment Returns

The university’s non-endowment pool earned 1.86 percent for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Annualized performance for
the trailing ten years was 4.04 percent, providing annualized
added return versus the 90-day Treasury bill over that period of
2.32 percentage points. The recent results were achieved in spite
of sustained near zero short-term interest rates that significantly
limit the earnings potential of the majority of this pool.

The endowment pools fell 3.27 percent for the fiscal year, ending
two consecutive years of positive double digit returns. Annualized
performance for the trailing ten years was 6.20 percent. The pool’s
public equity managers, with a collective majority of their capital
deployed outside of North America, encountered the most
difficulty during the year, with a combined loss of over eleven
percent. The balance of the pool posted positive returns, with the
best results coming from our various private equity, debt, and
real assets managers.

Combined Rates of Return
FY2003 - FY2012
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Program Support

Endowments provide a lasting legacy for Miami because their
principal is invested in perpetuity, and an annual distribution is
made to support a variety of activities of the university. The
spending policies of the university and foundation are intended
to achieve a balance between the need to preserve the purchasing
power of the endowment principal in perpetuity and the need to
maximize current distribution of endowment earnings. Fulfilling
these dual objectives is often referred to as achieving
“intergenerational equity,” in which no generation of college
students is advantaged or disadvantaged in relation to other
generations.

The formula used to calculate the spending distribution is a blend
of two elements: an inflation component (70 percent of the
formula) that increases the prior year’s distribution by the rate
of inflation, and a market factor (30 percent of the formula) that
ties the distribution to the market value of the investments. This
formula was adopted in fiscal year 2004 and is intended to reduce
volatility caused by various market conditions, while maintaining
intergenerational equity and preserving the purchasing power
of the endowed principal.

For the fourth year, the University and Foundation boards
decided to continue the practice of making full distributions only
from those funds that have accumulated earnings in excess of
the gift value. Partial distributions, representing dividends and
interest, were distributed from the funds that otherwise would
not have made a distribution. '

The following chart shows the types of programs supported by
the 2012 distributions. The combined distribution was about
$15.9 million, more than double the amount in 2003. Over the
last ten years, the cumulative distributions have totaled over $125
million and have provided an important source of funding to
help offset reductions in state support.

Miami University and Foundation
Programs Supported by Endowments
Fiscal Year 2012
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The fund-raising campaign, For Love and Honor, continues to
play amajor role in shaping Miami’s future. Through the generous
support of our faithful alumni and friends, as of August 2012 the
campaign had raised over $456 million, with a significant portion
pledged to the endowment. Scholarships are among the top fund
raising priorities. Improved financial aid resources are expected
to enhance student recruitment success, reduce dependence on
raising tuition rates, and help alleviate the impact of dramatically
lower state subsidies. Your sustained support is appreciated and
will continue to be vital to Miami’s future.

6}

__ Attachment A, Page 7 of 88

Dec 2012



Attachment A, Page 8 of 88 Finance and Auditor's Report Dec 2012

= McGladrey

Independent Auditor's Report

President and Board of Trustees of Miami University
Oxford, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely
presented component unit of Miami University (the University), a component unit of the State of Ohio, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
University’'s management. Our responsibiiity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. The financial statements of the University for the year ended June 30, 2011 were audited by
other auditors, whose report dated October 14, 2011, expressed an unqualified opinion on those
statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration
of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the 2012 financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of
the University as of June 30, 2012 and the respective changes in net assets and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 through 14 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

/%c% e

Cleveland, Ohio
October 15, 2012
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2071

Introduction

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of Miami University for the year ended June 30,
2012. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements and footnotes.

The University’s annual report consists of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the statement of net assets, the statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets, the statement of cash flows, and the notes to the financial statements. The financial statements of the University
have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the related
liability has been incurred. The financial activity of the Miami University Foundation, a component unit of the University, is included through a discrete
presentation as part of the University’s financial statements.

The financial statements, footnotes, and this discussion have been prepared by and are the responsibility of University management.

Financial Highlights
For a third consecutive year, the University reported favorable year-end results. Stable enrollment, a modest tuition increase, and a focus on reducing

operating costs are all contributing factors to these successful results.

Overall the University’s financial position improved at June 30, 2012. Total assets rose 12.2 percent from $1.276 to $143] billion. Liabilities
increased $115.6 million and totaled $530.1 million. Significant financial events during fiscal year 2012 were:

« For only the second time in the last six years, Miami increased tuition for Ohio students. The University implemented a 3.5 percent tuition and fee
increase for resident undergraduate students and a 3.0 percent increase for non-resident undergraduate students.

The fall 2011 first-year enrollment was 3,607 on the Oxford campus, which is approximately the same as the previous year, but surpassed the goal
of 3,550 students. Non-resident first-year enrollment was 38 percent as compared to 33 percent for the fall 2010 class. In addition, there was a 15
percent increase in transfer students and regional campus relocation students and a 74 percent increase in international students for fall 2011. The
first-year class enrollment on the Hamilton and Middletown campuses increased by 100 and 18 students, respectively.

Fiscal year 2012 marked the end of the federal fiscal stabilization program. In fiscal year 2010 and 201l funding from this program was
distributed to Ohio higher education institutions as a replacement for a portion of the state share of instruction. Combining this $11.7 million loss
of funding with the reductions in state instructional and capital appropriations resulted in a $19.2 million or 254 percent decrease in overall state
support. i

On July1, 2011, the Miami University Foundation entered into a Pooled Investment Agreement with Miami University whereby the Foundation
will collectively manage all of the Foundation and University endowment and quasi-endowment funds in a single investment pool. This change
will lead to improved efficiency, but more importantly, extend the expertise of the Foundation’s Investment Committee to the entire endowment.

Cash flow was strongly positive during the fiscal year. Operational investments experienced positive returns for the third consecutive year and
recorded earnings of 1.9 percent. These results were achieved in spite of the continued near zero short-term interest rates. The combined
University and Foundation endowment pools reported negative returns of 3.3 percent, which was due primarily to market declines in the global
public equity market. (For more details, see the Investment Report included in this report.)

For fiscal year 2012, the University increased salaries by two percent. However, continued reduction in positions and unfilled vacant positions
stabilized general fund salary expense on all three campuses at $163.9 million or a $1.1 million decrease for the fiscal year. Although the volume of
health insurance claims increased 1.8 percent, benefits expense was $7.8 million less than budget, primarily attributable to the number of vacant
positions.

In December 2011, an additional $148.8 million in general receipts revenue bonds were issued to fund planned capital projects (see the capital
assets and debt administration section for more information).

{9
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CONTINUED - Management's Discussion and Analysis JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

Statement of Net Assels

The statement of net assets presents the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the University as of the end of the fiscal year. The difference between total
assets and total liabilities, or net assets, is one indicator of the overall strength of the institution. Also, the increase or decrease in total net assets indicates
whether the financial position of the institution is improving or declining. Except for capital assets, all other assets and liabilities are measured at a point
in time using current values. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost less an allowance for depreciation.

Net assets are classified into three major categories. The first category, invested in capital asscts net of related debt, reports the institution’s net
equity in property, plant, and equipment. The second major category, restricted net assets, reports net assets that are owned by the institution, but the
use or purpose of the funds is restricted by an external source or entity. This category is subdivided into two types: nonexpenclable and expendable.
Nonexpendable restricted net assets are primarily enclowment funds that may be invested for income and capital gains, but the endowed principal may
not be spent. Expendable restricted net assets may be spent by the institution, but only for the purpose specified by the donor, grantor, or other external
entity. The third category, unrestricted net assets, is separated into two types: allocated and unallocated. Allocated unrestricted net assets are available to
the institution, but are set aside for a specific purpose by University policy, management, or the governing board, Unallocated unrestricted net assets are
available to be used for any lawful purpose of the institution.

2012 2011 2010
Assets
Current assets $529,678,151 $388,226,232 $218,683,477
Capital assets, net 738,665,680 713,966,987 704,302,948
Long-term investments 155,941,906 167,652,463 146,384,200
Other assets 7,035,261 6,355,458 6,655,414
Total assets $1,431,320,998 $1,276,201,140 $1,076,026,039
Liabilities
Current liabilities $85,396,962 $74,628,054 $70,283,575
Noncurrent liabilities 444,744,520 339,894,619 229,584,437
Total liabilities 530,141,482 414,522,673 299,868,012
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 482,596,938 475,850,789 480,984,748
Restricted net assets — nonexpendable 84,392,200 89,023,106 76,926,360
Restricted net assets — expendable 63,999,857 56,633,817 50,709,308
Unrestricted net assets — allocated 262,999,984 233,523,028 162,523,346
Unrestricted net assets — unallocated 7,190,537 6,647,727 5,014,265
Total net assets 901,179,516 861,678,467 776,158,027
Total liahilities and net assets $1,431,320,998 $1,276,201,140 $1,076,026,039

Fiscal Year 2012

Total assets of the institution increased 12.2 percent or $155.1 million in fiscal year 2012. This increase was primarily a result of the increase in cash
and cash equivalents and non-depreciable capital assets. The $I11.6 million or 76.7 percent increase in cash and cash equivalents is primarily attributable
to the $193.6 million in unspent Series 2010 and 2011 general receipts revenue bond proceeds. For more detailed information see the Investment
Report included in this report. Details of the $25.6 million increase in non-depreciable capital assets and the $0.9 million decrease in depreciable
capital assets is provided in the capital assets and debt administration section of this report.

Total liabilities of the institution increased $115.6 million or 27.9 percent, which was primarily the net result of the $148.8 million issuance of Series
2011 general receipts revenue bonds and the repayment of outstanding bonds, notes, and leases payable. A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2011
bonds were used to refund $34.3 million for the Series 2008 General Receipts bonds. Additional details on bonds, notes and leases are provided in the
capital assets and debt administration section of this report. Other current and long-term liabilities remained relatively unchanged. Overall, net assets
increased by $39.5 million.

Fiscal Year 2011

Total assets increased 18.6 percent or $200.2 million while total liabilities increased $114-7 million or 38,2 percent. The net increase in assets
is primarily a result of the increase in cash and cash equivalents from greater operating efficiencies in Residence and Dining Halls, increases in
investments resulting from strong investment returns, unspent Series 2010 general receipts revenue bond proceeds, and an increase in capital assets.
The issuance of Series 2010 general receipts revenue bonds and repayment of outstanding bonds, notes, and leases payable was the primary reason for
the decrease in liabilities. Overall, net assets increased by $85.5 million.

10}
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets presents the University’s results of operations for the fiscal year. The revenues and
expenses are generally reported as either operating or non-operating. Operating revenues are generated by providing goods and services to customers
and constituencies of the institution. Operating expenses are incurred when goods and services are provided by vendors and employees for the overall
operations of the University. Non-operating revenues include the student instructional subsidy from the state of Ohio, while other revenues include the
state’s capital appropriation. Investment returns are also included in non-operating revenue. Interest on debt is the primary component of non-operating

expense.

In fiscal year 2012, total revenues of the institution from all sources were approximately $564.2 million, which represents a $31.6 million or 5.3
percent decrease. Approximately 76.3 percent of revenues were classified as operating, and 20.7 percent were classified as non-operating revenues.

2012 2011 2010
Operating revenues $430,625,582 $410,610,659 $397,994,014
Non-operating revenues 116,579,887 166,003,510 154,965,266
Other revenues 16,952,417 19,184,631 24,667,510
Total revenues 564,157,886 595,798,800 577,626,790
Operating expenses (507,161,009) (497,451,687) (499,950,810)
Non-operating expenses (17,495,828) (12,826,673) (9,537,782)
Total expenses (524,656,837) (510,278,360) (509,488,592)
Increase in net asseis $ 39,501,049 $ 85,520,440 $ 68,138,198

Total Revenues ($ in millions)
$0 50 $100 $150 $200 $250 $300
$280.8

Student Fees FEaRmEREs

Auxiliary Enterprises [iiiaiasinsiniaeis
State Appropriations
State Capital Appropriations |5

Federal Fiscal Stabilization Funds

Gifts, Grants, and Contracts [{EEse

($1.8)
Net Investment Gain/(Loss)
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Other ¢

The University revenue base is shown in the
accompanying chart. Student tuition and fees
make up the largest percentage of revenues at just
less than 50 percent, while auxiliary enterprises
such as residence and dining halls, several student
recreational facilities, and the bookstore account
for the second highest amount. For the third
consecutive year, state appropriations decreased by
$1.8 million or 2.6 percent, which was anticipated
as part of the budget. Compounding this decrease,
the federal fiscal stabilization funds were no longer
available for 2012, which was also anticipated in the
2012 budget. Gifts, grants, and contracts remained

#2011 Revenus relatively unchanged from last fiscal year, while
I endowment and investment income decreased
substantially due to factors that were previously
discussed.

Fiscal Year 2012

Operating revenues increased by 4.9 percent or $20.0 million in fiscal year 2012. This increase was the net result of several factors including a 3.5
percent tuition and fee increase for resident undergraduate students and a 3.0 percent increase for non-resident undergraduate students on all three
campuses and a 3.5 percent increase in room and board rates. In addition, beginning in the fall of 2008, the University began phasing out the 2004
tuition and scholarship plan. In FY2012, only fifth-year Ohio students remained in the earlier program. The phase-out of the program caused the
decrease in tuition, fees, and other student charges and the decrease in the Ohio Leader and Ohio Resident Scholarships.

Operating expenses increased by 2.0 percent or $9.7 million. This increase is primarily a result of a two percent salary increase for all employees and
the payments to outside consultants for operational reviews in the continuing effort to reduce operating costs. Increases in operating expenses continue
to be controlled through salary savings that are a direct result of the reduction in positions and number of vacant positions throughout the fiscal year.

The majority of the $54.1 million decrease in non-operating revenues and expenses is reflected in the $35.6 million decrease in net investment
income, the elimination of the $11.7 million in federal fiscal stabilization funds, as was previously discussed, and a $4.7 million increase in the interest
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CONTINUED - Management's Discussion and Analysis JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2071

payments on outstanding debt. The increase in interest on debt is related to the issuance of the Series 2011 general receipts revenue bonds.
Other income remained relatively unchanged from last fiscal year.

In other revenues, the relatively small increases in capital grants, gifts and additions to permanent endowments were offset by the decrease in state
capital appropriations. The state legislature did not appropriate any capital funds for the two-year capital budget cycle.

Fiscal Year 2011

Operating revenues increased by $12.6 million primarily due to a 3.0 percent increase in undergraduate tuition on all three campuses and a 2.9
percent increase in room and board rates. Operating expenses decreased by $2.5 million primarily due to the reductions in positions and a decrease
in departmental non-personnel spending,

The majority of the increase in non-operating revenues and expenses was attributable to the $8.9 million increase in net investment income and the
$6.4 million increase in federal grants. Offsetting these increases was the $3.4 million increase in interest on debt. Other revenues decreased due to the

decline in receipts for capital grants and gifts.

Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows presents detailed information about the major sources and uses of cash by the institution for the fiscal year. The cash
flow analysis is divided into four types of cash flows: operating activities, noncapital financing activities Gvhich includes the state appropriations as well as
gift revenues), capital and related financing activities (which inclucles debt activity), and investing activities.

Net cash (used for) operating activities

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Net cash provided by/(used for) capital and related financing activities
Net cash provided by/(used for) investing activities

Net increase in cash

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2012 2011 2010
$ (36,652,109) $ (49,872,344) $ (68,726,251)
118,868,486 133,599,588 127,505,489
48,751,164 78,066,433 (39,063,674)
(19,415,722) (77,247,582) 3,917,536
111,551,819 84,546,095 23,633,100
145,379,653 60,833,558 37,200,458
$256,931,472 $145,379,653 $ 60,833,558

The $111.6 million increase in the fiscal year 2012 cash and cash equivalents balance relates primarily to the unspent and invested proceeds

associated with the series 2010 and 2011 general receipts revenue bonds.

Throughout the year, cash was used for capital acquisitions, payment of debt, investment activities, and operating activities. These uses of cash were
offset in part by the cash provided by tuition and fees, state appropriations, sales by auxiliary enterprises, gifts, and grants.

Student Financial Aid

2012 Total = $226.8
($ in millions)

Miami - Athletic

Miami - Donor Scholarships $9.4
Designated

Scholarships $9.8 Ohio Grants $1.8
Federal Grants and - Ohio Leader/Qhio Resident

Work Study $35.4 Scholarships $5.0

Miami - Annually
Budgeted

Scholarships $38.9 Federal Loans
$114.7

Private Loans
$11.8
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Miami continues to expand the merit scholarship packages for
in-state and out-of-state students in order to recognize student
achievement and to continue to make a high quality education more
affordable for parents and students. In fiscal year 2012, Miami-
funded financial aid, excluding Ohio Leader and Ohio Resident
Scholarships, increased by $5.4 million or 10.2 percent. In total,
financial aid awards were $226.8 million.
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

During fiscal year 2012, the University completed and capitalized
several projects. These projects were funded by a combination of bond
proceeds, state capital appropriations, gifts, and local funding. The bond
proceeds were generated from the 2010A and 2010B Series General
Receipts Revenue Bonds totaling $125 million and the 2011 Series General
Receipts Revenue Bonds totaling $14-8.8 million. Major projects capitalized
in' 2012 include renovation projects at Hughes Hall, Mosler Hall, Upham
Hall, Laws Hall, Harris Dining Hall, and the Shriver Center. See footnote
4 for additional information concerning capital assets and accumulated
depreciation.

On December 21, 2011, the University issued $14-8,775,000 in General
Receipts Revenue Bonds. The proceeds were used to refund $34-3 million
of the remaining Miami University General Receipts Bonds, Series 2003.
The proceeds are also being used to provide funding for the second phase
of a multi-phase effort to renovate all campus student housing and dining
facilities.

During fiscal year 2012, the University paid off the outstanding
note payable from the U.S. Department of Education in the amount
of $1,733,715. The note carried an interest rate of 5.5 percent and was
scheduled to mature in 2026.

The University is planning to issue general receipts revenue bonds
during fiscal year 2013 totaling approximately $125 million. The primary
consideration for the decision is the current interest rates on tax exempt
bonds and cost of construction, which are both at historic lows. Proceeds
from the bond sale are expected to be used to continue construction and
renovation of the housing and dining facilities.

The University’s bond rating remained the same with a rating of Aa3
from Moody’s Investors Services and a rating of A+ from Standard and
Poor’s. For more detailed information on current outstanding debt, see
footnote 6.

Attachment A, Page 14 of 88

Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future
Miami University continues to implement the recommendations of
the Strategic Priorities Task Force (SPTF) which were approved in 2011
The goals of these recommendations include prioritizing and aligning the
University’s strategic goals with the new economic reality and competitive
higher education market, creating a long-term sustainable baseline
budget, identifying strategic options for improving the resource base, and
providing a framework that will guide decisions over the next five years in
order to advance Miami University as a premier national university. The
recommendations are intended to produce approximately $10 million
in new revenue and approximately $30 million in expense reductions
through improved efficiencies, savings and reallocation of funds. After
the first three years of the plan, the University is on target to achieve these
financial goals. ’

The University’s initial efforts focused on reducing operating expenses.
Although these cost reduction efforts will continue toward the $30
million goal, the university has increased the efforts to identify new
sources of revenue that will be needed to sustain the academic programs
into the future. Examples of new revenue sources being considered
include the addition of a winter term, expanding the course offerings in
the summer term, and enhancing on-line course offerings.

Revenues

The fall 2012 first-year enroliment is approximately 3,725 at the
Oxford campus, which represents a 4.5 percent increase over the previous
year and surpassed the goal of 3,600 students. Non-resident first-year
enrollment is 38.5 percent as compared to 38 percent for the fall 2011
class. In addition, transfer students and regional campus relocation
students decreased by 32 students or 18.2 percent. International students
remained relatively the same as the previous fiscal year. These continuing
positive results are directly attributable to numerous initiatives including
integrating predictive modeling and market analysis, expanding
recruitment and communication efforts to prospective students and
parents, hiring and strategic placement of additional regional recruiters,
increased high school visits both nationwide and in Ohio, and the
continuation of the enhanced merit scholarship guarantee. Enrollments
at the Hamilton campus decreased by 134 percent while the Middletown
campus decreased by 4.1 percent. For fall 2012, the University was
authorized to increase tuition by 3.5 percent for all students. For the
second consecutive year, the University implemented a 3.5 percent tuition
and fee increase for resident undergraduate students and a 3.0 percent
increase for non-resident undergraduate students.
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For fiscal year 2018, the university’s state share of instruction is budgeted to
increase by $1.5 million or 2.8 percent for the Oxford campus and $0.2 million
or 3.1 percent for the Hamilton campus. The Middletown campus state share of
instruction will decrease by $0.2 million or 4.0 percent. In addition, through the
worlk of leaders from higher education institutions in Ohio, the University will
receive $19.3 million in capital appropriations. The majority of these funds or $18.2
million is earmarked to renovate Kreger Hall, while the remaining $1.I million will
he for projects on the regional campuses. The State of Ohio’s financial outlook
has stabilized over this past fiscal year. State tax and other revenues have exceeded
projections, while expenses appear to be on budget. However, the likelihood of
substantial increases in state support is unlikely in the near [uture. The volatility and
uncertainty of the national and world economies continue to be a concern as we
enter the last quarter of 2012.

During 2012, the university experienced a 10.3 percent increase in donor
contributions toward the Love and Honor Campaign. As of August 2012, the
University’s capital campaign commitments totaled $4:55.9 million toward the goal
of $500 million. These funds will bring much needed support to the instructional,
scholarly, and construction programs in the years to come.

Expenditures

In correlation with the recommendations of the SPTF, the 2013 expenditure
budget includes an additional $6.2 million in reductions related to the Strategic
Priorities initiatives. This decrease is offset by a budgeted 2.0 to 2.5 percent salary
increase for faculty and staff.

The University plans to transition from its traditional incremental budget
framework to Responsibility Center Management (RCM). Institutional planning
and assessment began in fiscal year 2012, the models are being run in parailel in
fiscal year 2013, and RCM is scheduled to be implemented in fiscal year 2014. The
RCM budget module provides a decentralized managerial framework for internal
budgeting and inancial reporting that allows academic divisions a broad control
over the amount of tuition revenue generated and the costs incurred from academic
programs.

The world of higher education continues to be one of constant change and
transformation. Technological advances, world and national economic stresses,
increased competition, and changing demographics create challenges for Miami
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University’s success in the future. President Hodge, in his 2012
Annual Address stated, “..success requires an inspiring vision,
focused goals, and high performance execution.” In order

to achieve the success Lo which we aspire, the University will
embark on developing a new strategic plan, the Miami 2020
Plan, during fiscal year 2013. The five goals of this plan are:

1. Innovative Learning and Discovery — Promote an
innovative, engaged, learning and discovery environment
that produces extraordinary student and scholarly
SUCCess.

2. Transformational Work Environment — Build a campus
culture that stimulates and recognizes creativity,
entrepreneurial thinking, and exemplary performance.

3. Global Engagement and Inclusive Culture — Extend our
global connections and strengthen a culture of inclusion,
integrity, and collaboration that embraces a changing
and diverse society.

[

. Dynamic Organizational Design ~ Pursue forward-
looking programs, activities, and structures that ensure
academic success and financial sustainability in the
evolving landscape of higher education.

5. Effective Partnerships and Outreach - Forge effective
partnerships and contributions that impact the region,
state, nation, and world.

The entire University will be invited to collaborate in a
planning effort based on the goals of the Miami 2020 Plan
as we look toward the future in order to be better prepared
to respond to the ever growing challenges and seize the
opportunities that produce extraordinary student and scholarly
SUCCESS.
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Miami’s graduation rates are among the
highest nationally, in the top 10 among
public universities (excluding military
academies), and first in Ohio.
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY

Assels
Miami University University Foundation
2012 2011 2012 2011
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 256,931,472 $ 145,379,653 $ 25,073,256 $ 19,750,070
Investments 226,646,046 197,759,313 0 0
Accounts, pledges and notes receivable, net 38,532,756 38,231,922 15,690,294 17,565,673
Inventories 4,230,484 3,911,172 0 0
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 3,337,393 2,944,172 0 0
Total current assets 529,678,151 388,226,232 40,763,550 37,315,743
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 0 0 1,424,934 1,474,783
investments 155,941,906 167,652,463 378,373,130 234,950,282
Pledges and notes receivable, net 7,035,261 6,355,458 34,257,166 31,552,046
Nondepreciable capital assets 102,673,230 77,077,480 0 0
Depreciable capital assets, net 635,992,450 636,889,507 0 0
Total noncurrent assets 901,642,847 887,974,908 414,055,230 267,977,111
Total assets $1,431,320,998 $1,276,201,140 $ 454,818,780 $ 305,292,854
Liabilities and Net Assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 25102294 $ 21,642,092 $ 13,792,870 $ 11,373,323
Accrued salaries and wages 17,594,648 15,137,155 0 0
Accrued compensated absences 1,504,057 1,356,104 0 0
Deferred revenue 9,811,295 10,499,129 0 0
Deposits - 11,177,678 9,806,927 0 0
Long-term debt - current portion 20,206,990 16,186,647 0 0
Other current liabilities 0 0 533,205 547,944
Total current liabilities 85,396,962 74,628,054 14,326,075 11,921,267
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued compensated absences 14,302,889 15,179,374 0 0
Bonds payable 421,005,530 315,597,424 0 0
Note payable 0 1,656,789 0 0
Capital leases payable 3,006,952 1,003,045 0 0
Federal Perkins [oan program 6,429,149 6,457,987 0 0
Other noncurrent liabilities 0 0 164,119,175 10,390,169
Total noncurrent liabilities 444,744,520 339,894,619 164,119,175 10,390,169
Total liabilities 530,141,482 414,522,673 178,445,250 22,311,436
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 482,596,938 475,850,789 ) 0
Restricted net assets:
Nonexpendable 84,392,200 89,023,106 160,563,050 150,091,389
Expendable 63,999,857 56,633,817 115,915,292 132,640,934
Unrestricted net assets 270,190,521 240,170,755 (104,812) 249,095
Total net assets 901,179,516 861,678,467 276,373,530 282,981,418

Total liabilities and net assets $1,431,320,998 $1,276,201,140

$ 454,818,780

$ 305,292,854

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition, fees, and other student charges
Less Ohio Leader and Ohio Resident Scholarships
Less allowance for student scholarships

Net tuition, fees, and other student charges

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises
Less allowance for student scholarships

Net sales and services of auxiliary enterprises

Federal contracts

Gifts

Sales and services of educational activities
Private contracts

State contracts

Local contracts

Other

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Education and General
Instruction and departmental research
Separately budgeted research
Public service
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Operation and maintenance of plant
Scholarships and fellowships

Auxiliary enterprises

Depreciation

Other

Total operating expenses
Net operating gain (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations
Federal fiscal stabilization funds
Gifts, including $18,662,382 in FY12 and $14,660,423
in FY11 from the University Foundation
Federal grants

Net investment income (loss), net of investment expense of

$2,055,980 for University and $2,926,590 for the
Foundation in FY12
$2,564,317 for University and $2,599,412 for the
Foundation in FY11

State grants

Interest on debt

Payments to Miami University

Other non-operating revenues (expenses)

Net non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before other revenues, expenses,
and gains or losses

OTHER REVENUES, EXPENSES, GAINS, OR LOSSES
State capital appropriation
Capital grants and gifts
Additions to permanent endowments

Total other revenues, expenses, gains, or losses

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
Net assets at beginning of year
Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Miami University

University Foundation

2012 2011 2012 2011

$ 349,805,074  $ 364,624,732 $ 0o % 0
(5,007,805) (36,577,490) 0 0
(64,025,371) (60,762,961) 0 0
280,771,898 267,284,281 0 0
125,734,751 119,743,824 0 0
(5,192,304) (4,701,315) 0 0
120,542,447 115,042,509 0 0
14,421,397 14,982,882 0 0
0 0 9,854,487 8,131,893

2,462,329 3,909,507 0 0
2,451,073 2,476,779 0 0
1,092,148 1,200,489 0 0
327,526 286,524 0 0
8,556,764 5,427,688 0 0
430,625,582 410,610,659 9,854,487 8,131,893
167,277,750 166,583,779 0 0
16,653,175 16,394,725 0 0
1,282,434 1,981,871 0 0
52,829,081 49,731,409 0 0
21,778,626 23,250,532 0 0
45,741,162 37,757,289 0 0
32,575,843 31,858,558 0 0
21,194,883 23,023,411 0 0
105,943,125 103,598,299 0 0
37,940,355 38,339,812 0 0
3,944,575 4,932,002 0 0
507,161,009 497,451,687 0 0
(76,535,427) (86,841,028) 9,854,487 8,131,893
69,013,751 70,795,961 0 0
0 11,669,447 0 0
18,731,475 16,746,849 0 0
27,104,370 30,020,591 0 0
(1,819,622) 33,824,309 (7,798,696) 33,526,615
1,036,961 1,319,694 0 0
(17,368,471) (12,710,910) 0 0
0 0 (18,662,382) (14,660,423)

2,385,595 1,510,896 (177,141) 1,168,881
99,084,059 153,176,837 (26,638,219) 20,035,073
22,548,632 66,335,809 (16,783,732) 28,166,966
6,625,692 12,366,955 0 0
7,452,710 5,081,520 0 0
2,874,015 1,736,156 10,175,844 7,117,265
16,952,417 19,184,631 10,175,844 7,117,265
39,501,049 85,520,440 (6,607,888) 35,284,231
861,678,467 776,158,027 282,981,418 247,697,187
$901,179,516  $ 861,678,467 $276,373,530  $ 282,981,418

Dec 2012



Attachment A, Page 18 of 88 Finance and Auditor's Report

Statement of Cash Flows JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

Dec 2012

MIAMI UNIVERSITY

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tuition, fees, and other student charges
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises
Contracts
Other operating receipts
Payments for employee compensation and benefits
Payments to vendors for services and materials
Student scholarships
Loans issued to students and employees
Collection of loans from students and employees

Net cash (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State share of instruction and federal fiscal stabilization funds
Grants for noncapital purposes
Gifts

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State capital appropriation
Grants for capital purposes
Other capital and related receipts
Proceeds from debt obligations :
Payments to construct, renovate, or purchase capital assets
Principal paid on outstanding debt
Interest paid on outstanding debt

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investments
Endowment income
Other investment income (loss)

Net cash (used in) investing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH FLOWS
Net operating loss, per statement of revenues, expenses
and changes in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expense
Net loss on disposal of capital assets
Accounts receivable bad debt adjustments

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash (used in) operating activities:

Accounts receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Notes receivable

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries
Compensated absences
Deferred income and deposits
Federal Perkins loans

Net cash (used in) operating activities

Supplemental Disclosure of NonCash Information:
Property and equipment included in accounts payable
Property and equipment acquired by gifts in kind

" See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2012 2011
$ 344975889 $ 325,761,824
126,108,977 121,261,724
17,300,844 21,699,698
10,518,698 9,305,233
(312,179,364)  (314,332,665)
(133,261,798)  (124,815,365)
(90,412,558) (88,487,687)
(1,145,4086) (2,155,666)
1,442,609 1,890,560
(36,652,109) (49,872,344)
71,383,197 82,465,408
28,141,331 31,340,285
19,343,958 19,793,895
118,868,486 133,599,588
9,314,704 12,071,153
7,256,911 3,743,418
645,907 765,333
157,134,772 126,633,069
(58,400,237) (41,837,568)
(48,5183,723) (12,290,970)
(18,687,170) (11,018,002)
48,751,164 78,066,433
61,154,895 87,902,794
(86,294,138) (168,762,598)
278,759 3,652,354
5,444,762 (40,132)
(19,415,722) (77,247,582)
111,551,819 84,546,095
145,379,653 60,833,558

$ 256,931,472

$ 145,379,653

$ (76,535,427)

37,940,355
6,762
26,311

(1,261,414)
(319,311)
(396,180)
344,213

1,159,543

2,457,493
(728,532)
682,916

(28,838)

$ (86,841,028)

38,339,812
139,864
57,685

2,569,472
563,562
548,081

(85,227)
(4,070,213)
(834,472)
1,078,031
(1,277,110)
(60,801)

$ (36,652,109)

$ (49,872,344)

$7.797,675
$195,800

$7,457,701
$1,338,103
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Miami University (the University) is a land grant institution chartered
by the State of Ohio in 1809 and governed by a Board of Trustees (the
board). The board consists of 14- members, including two student
members and three non-voting national trustees. Voting members are
appointed one each year for nine-year terms by the governor with the
advice and consent of the state senate. The two student non-voling
members are appointed for two-year staggered terms by the governor
with the advice and consent of the senate, and the national trustees are
appointed by the voting members and can serve for no more than two
consecutive three-year terms.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Boards (GASB) Statement
No. 39 sets forth criteria (o determine whether certain organizations for
which the University is not financially accountable should be reported
as component units based on the nature and significance of their
relationship with the University. The Miami University Foundation
(the Foundation), which is a separate not-for-profit foundation, meets
this criteria due to the significance of their operational or financial
relationships with the University. Note 9 provides additional information
on the Foundation. Certain disclosures concerning the Foundation are
not included because it has been audited separately for the year ended
June 30, 2012 and reports have been issued under separate cover.

The University’s Anancial statements are included as a discretely
presented component unit in the State of Ohio’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report.

Basis for Presentation

Effective July I, 2011, the University adopted GASB Statement No.
64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination
Provisions. This Standard provides guidance on accounting for the
replacement of counterparties in a derivative transaction. There has been
no impact to the University financial statements due to the adoption of
Statement No. 64..

In November 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 60, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements. This standard
provides guidance on accounting for service concession arrangements
(SCAs) where a government transfers the right to operating a government
asset to another entity in exchange for significant consideration from that
entity. The statement is effective for periods beginning after December
15, 2011. The University feels this statement will not have an impact on
the financial statements.

In November 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial
Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14
and No. 34. This statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion
of component units in the financial reporting entity. The statement is
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2012. The University has
not yet determined the impact this statement will have on the financial
statements.

In December 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification
of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The objective

18 }
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of this statement is to incorporate into GASB's authoritative literature
certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
issued on or before November 30, 1989. The statement is effective
for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The University has
not yet determined the impact this statement will have on the financial
statements.

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No, 63, Financial Reporting
of Deferred Oulflows of Resources, Deferred Fuflows of Resources, and
Net Position. This Standard provides financial reporting guidance
for deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources,
and net asset reporting requirements. The statement is effective for
periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The University has not
yet determined the impact this statement will have on the financial
statements.

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 65, llems Previously
Reported as Assels and Liabililies. This Statement establishes accounting
and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows
of resources or delerred inflows of resources, certain items that
were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as
outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were
previously reported as assets and liabilities. The statement is effective
for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The University has
not yet determined the impact this statement will have on the financial
statements.

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical
Corrections—2012—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and
No. 62. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting
and financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity
by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of
two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November
30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The statement is effective
for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The University has
not yet determined the impact this statement will have on the financial
statements.

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting
Jor Pension Plans—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25.
The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by
state and local governmental pension plans. The statement is effective
for periods beginning after June 15, 2013. The University feels this
statement will not have an impact on the financial statements.

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions.

It also improves information provided by state and local governmental
employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other
entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the
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effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting
for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information,
supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity,

and creating additional transparency. The statement is effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2014. The University has determined
this pronouncement will have a substantial impact on the financial
statements.

The financial statements of the University have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recorded when the related liability has been
incurred. For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered
a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type activities as
defined by GASB Statement No. 34-and 35. The University has elected
to apply only those Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
pronouncements issued on or before November 1989, that are not in
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The University has
elected not to apply any FASB pronouncements issued after November
1989.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash consists primarily of cash in banks and money market accounts.
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible to cash, with an original maturity of three months or less.

Investments

Investments that are market traded, such as equity and debt
securities, mutual funds, and cash equivalents, are recorded at fair value
based on quoted market prices, as established by the major securities
markets. The value of holdings of commingled funds investing in
publicly traded stocks and bonds and not having a readily determined
market value for fund units is based on the funds’ net asset value as
supplied by the investment manager. Investments in real estate are
recorded at appraised value at the date of donation. The issuing
insurance companies determine the cash surrender value of the paid-up
life insurance policies annually.

Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis and purchases
and sales of investments are recorded on a trade-date basis. Investment
transactions occurring on or before June 30 that settle after such date
are recorded as receivables or payables.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of first-in, first-out cost or net
realizable value.

Capital Assets

Land, buildings, and equipment are recorded at cost at date of
acquisition or market value at date of donation in the case of gifts.
Intangible assets include patents, trademarks, land rights and computer
software. Land, collections of works of art and historical treasures are
capitalized but not depreciated. Any collection that is not capitalized is
charged to operations at the time of purchase. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets. Estimated useful lives are 50 years for buildings; 25
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years for infrastructure, library books and land improvements; 20 years
for improvements to buildings; and 5 to 7 years for equipment, vehicles,
and furniture. Intangible assets are depreciated based on the estimated
life of each asset. The University’s capitalization threshold is the lower
of 5 percent of the original building cost or $100,000 for building
renovations and $5,000 for other capitalized items. The capitalization
threshold for intangible assets is $100,000 except for internally
generated computer software which has a threshold of $500,000.

Deferred Revenue

Tuition and fees relating to summer sessions that are conducted in
July and August are recorded in the accompanying statement of net
assets as deferred revenue. Deferred revenue also includes the amounts
received from grant and contract sponsors that have not yet been earned
and amounts received from a tuition payment service for payments
received for the next fiscal year. These will be recorded as revenue in the
following fiscal year.

Operating and Non-operating Revenue

The University defines operating activities, for purposes of reporting
on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, as
those activities that generally result from exchange transactions such as
payments received for providing services and payments made for services
or goods received. Substantially all of the University’s expenses are
from exchange transactions. Certain significant revenue streams relied
upon for operations are recorded as non-operating revenues, as defined
by GASB Statement No. 35, including state appropriations, gifts, and
investment income.

Bond Premiwms, Discounts and Issuance Costs
Bond premiums, discounts and issuance costs are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.

Compensated Absences

Full-time unclassified staff earn vacation at rates of 18 to 22 days per
year, based on the term of their employment contract, with a maximum
accrual of 52 days. Classified employees earn vacation at rates ranging
from 10 to 25 days per year, based on years of service, with a maximum
accrual equivalent to the amount earned in three years. Upon retirement,
termination, or death, the employee is compensated at the final rate of
pay for unused vacation up to a maximum of 40 days. Faculty accrue no
vacation benefits.

Full-time faculty, unclassified staff, and classified staff earn 15 days
of sick leave per year and individuals who work less than full-time earn
sick leave on a pro-rata basis. There is no limit on the number of sick
leave hours that can be accumulated. Upon retirement a staff member
with 10 or more years of Ohio public service is paid for one-fourth the
value of earned but unused sick leave not to exceed 30 days, based on
the employee’s rate of pay at the time of retirement. The termination
payment method is used to compute the liability for sick leave. Persons
leaving employment for reasons other than retirement are not
compensated for unused sick leave.

{19
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Net Assets

Net assets are divided into three major categories. The first category,
invested in capital assets, net of related debt, reports the institution’s net
equity in property, plant, and equipment. The second major category is
restricted net assets. This category contains net assets that are owned
by the institution, but the use or purpose of the funds is restricted by an
external source or entity. The corpus of the nonexpendable restricted
net assets is available for investment purposes only. The expendable
restricted net assets may be expended by the institution, but must
be spent only for the purpose as determined by a donor or external
entity. The income generated from the nonexpendable restricted
investments and the expendable restricted funds may be used for student
loans, scholarships and fellowships, instruction, research, and other
needs to support the operation of the University. The third category
is unrestricted net assets and is separated into two types: allocated
and unallocated. Allocated unrestricted net assets are available to the
institution, but are allocated for a specific purpose within the institution
by University policy, management, or the governing board. The allocated
unrestricted net assets were $262,999,985 and $233,523,028 as of
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Unallocated unrestricted net assets
are available to be used for any lawful purpose of the institution.

Tax Status

The University is exempt from federal income taxes under Section
115 of the Internal Revenue Code. As such, the University is subject to
federal income taxes only on unrelated business income, if any, under
the provisions of Section 51! in the Internal Revenue Code.

Estimates

Management has made, where necessary, estimates and judgments
that affect certain amounts reported in the financial statements,
The estimates and judgments are based on currently available
information, and actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

The University has evaluated events occurring between the end of
our most recent fiscal year and October 15, 2012, the date the financial
statements were issued.

Reclassifications
Certain items in the 2011 Ainancial statements have been reclassified
to conform to the 2012 presentation.
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(2) Cash and Investments

The University’s cash and investment activities are governed by
policies adopted by the board in accordance with authority granted by the
Ohio Revised Code. Such policies are implemented by the treasurer and
overseen by the board’s finance and audit committee.

The University's investment strategy incorporates financial
instruments that involve varying elements of risk including market risk,
credit risk, interest rate risk, and custodial credit risk. The University’s
investment policies and procedures establish risk guidelines for each
of the two primary investment pools, the non-endowment pool and
endowment pool. Diversification is a fundamental risk management
strategy for both pools.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

At year-end, the carrying amount of the University’s cash and cash
equivalents was approximately $256.9 million in 2012 and $145.4 million
in 2011, respectively. Cash and cash equivalents consists primarily of cash
in banks, money market accounts and the State Treasury Reserve of Ohio
(STAR Ohio) that include short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible to cash, with an original maturity of three months or less.

The investments as of June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Approximately $14.9 million of cash and cash equivalents was covered
by federal depository insurance; $184.4 million was covered by collateral

credit risk at any single institution.

Investments

ratings in the portfolios.

held by third-party trustees pursuant to paragraph 135.181 of the Ohio
Revised Code in collateral pools securing all public funds on deposit with
specific depository institutions; and the remainder was not collateralized
or insured, leaving it exposed to custodial credit risk. Custodial credit
risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the University may not be able to recover its deposits or
collateral securities. The University maintains active relationships with
multiple cash equivalent accounts to reduce its exposure to custodial

Investments held by the University at June 30, 2012 and 2011 are
presented below, categorized by investment type and credit quality
rating. Credit quality ratings provide information about the investments’
credit risk, which is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an
investment will not fulfill its obligations. The University’s investment
management procedures establish guidelines for average credit quality

Investment Type Fair Value Not Rated AAA AA, A, and BBB Below BBB
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 25,548,504 $ 0 $ 25,548,504 $ 0 $ 0
U.S. Agency bonds 22,464,062 0 22,464,062 0 0
Strips 4,939,361 0 4,939,361 0 0
Government-backed bonds 16,167,752 0 16,167,752 , 0 : 0
Corporate bonds 26,628,014 0 0 23,007,728 3,620,286
Municipal bonds 3,814,187 0 111,324 3,702,863 0
International bonds 519,126 0 0 519,126 0
Common and preferred stocks 459,000 459,000 0 0 0
Commingled funds 281,703,630 225,074,990 2,589,650 43,518,053 10,520,937
Real estate and other 344,316 344,316 : 0 0 0

Total investments $382,587,952 $225,878,306 $71,820,653 $70,747,770 $14,141,223

The investments as of June 30, 2011, are summarized as follows:

Investment Type Fair Value Not Rated AAA AA, A, and BBB Below BBB
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 17,841,804 $ 0 $ 17,841,804 $ 0 $ 0
U.S. Agency bonds 20,339,158 0 20,339,158 0 0
Strips 6,529,423 0 6,529,423 0 0
Government-backed bonds 14,787,111 0 14,787 111 0 0
Corporate bonds 21,248,456 0 0 21,140,455 108,001
Municipal bonds 2,438,825 0 0 2,438,825 0
International bonds 148,129 0 0 0 148,129
Certificate of deposit 20,000,000 0 0 20,000,000 0
Common and preferred stocks 69,848,129 69,848,129 0 0 0
Commingled funds 158,672,705 122,459,074 0 36,213,631 0
Limited partnerships 33,229,245 33,229,245 0 0 0
Real estate and other 328,791 328,791 0 0 0

Total investments $365,411,776 $225,865,239 $ 59,497,496 $79,792,911 $ 256,130

Due to significantly higher cash flows at certain times during the year, the amount of the University’s investment in each of the above investment

categories may be substantially higher during the year than at year-end.
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The University’s bond investments are exposed to interest rate risk, which is the risk that changes in interest rates, will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Interest rate risk is managed primarily by adjusting portfolio duration.

Bond investments by length of maturity as of June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Less Than 1t05 6to10 More Than

Investment Type Fair Value 1 Year Years Years 10 Years
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 25,548,504 $ 2,222,376 $ 11,338,953 $10,686,220 $ 1,300,955
U.S. Agency bonds 22,464,062 1,335,103 19,105,805 2,023,154 0
Strips 4,939,361 602,670 3,877,640 0 459,051
Government-backed bonds 16,167,752 0 16,167,752 0 0
Corporate bonds 26,628,014 3,104,353 14,571,058 8,709,731 242,872
International bonds 519,126 0 0 519,126 0
Municipal bonds 3,814,187 253,978 1,008,681 2,551,528 0
Commingled bond funds 58,581,026 1,939,502 43,023,314 10,778,614 2,839,596
Total bonds $ 158,662,032 $ 9,457,982 $109,093,203 $ 35,268,373 $ 4,842 474

Bond investments by length of maturity as of June 30, 2011, are summarized as follows:

Less Than 1t05 6010 More Than

Investment Type Fair Value 1 Year Years Years 10 Years
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 17,841,804 $ 1,740,093 $ 12,364,704 $ 3,737,007 $ 0
U.S. Agency bonds 20,339,158 4,022,970 12,757,476 3,558,712 0
Strips 6,529,423 0 5,749,795 0 779,628
Government-backed bonds 14,787,111 0 14,617,666 169,445 0
Corporate bonds 21,248,456 2,029,930 12,993,739 6,008,984 215,803
International bonds 148,129 0 148,129 0 0
Municipal bond 2,438,825 105,796 1,468,059 864,970 0
Commingled bond funds 36,213,632 0 6,180,014 30,033,618 0
Total bonds $119,546,538 $ 7,898,789 $ 66,279,582 $44,372,736 $ 995,431

All of the University’s investments in publicly traded securities are subject to market risk. As a result, a significant downturn in the securities
markets could adversely affect the market value of University assets. Investments include approximately $88.0 million and $89.2 million as of June 30,
2012 and 201}, respectively, managed by global managers, and such international investments are exposed to foreign currency risk. The University's
investments that are exposed to concentration risk consist of securities issued by the U.S. Treasury which represents 13.80% of investments. No other
single issuer represents more than 5.00% of investments.

Fair values were determined based on prices of established securities markets, with the exception of some hedge funds and alternative investments
whose fair values were provided by the funds’ managements. Alternative investments generally represent investments that are less liquid than publicly
traded securities and include private equity, investments in real assets, and other strategies. Hedge funds may include, but are not limited to, long and
short investments in domestic and international equity securities, distressed securities, fixed income securities, currencies, commodities, options,
futures, and other derivatives. Many of these securities are intended to reduce market risk, credit risk, and interest rate risk.
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Miami ranks L1th in the nation for return on (tuition)
investment, according to a SmartMoney magazine
survey that divided alumni’s reported median salaries
by the tuition and fees they paid.
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Endowment Funds

In July 2011, the University transferred all of its endowment assets
to the Miami University Foundation (Foundation) and entered into a
Pooled Investment Agreement whereby the Foundation manages the
Foundation and University endowment and quasi-endowment funds in
a single investment pool (Pooled Fund). The University investment is
maintained as a separate fund on the financial system of the Foundation
and receives a proportional share of the Pooled Fund's activity. The
Foundation owns the assets of the Pooled Fund; the University has an
interest in the Pooled Fund, which is considered an external investment
pool to the University. The Foundation’s Pooled Fund is not registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment
company. The Foundation’s Board of Directors appoints an Investment
Committee, which is responsible for oversight of the Pooled Fund in
accordance with Foundation policies. University investments include
$155.2 million managed by the Foundation as of June 30, 2012. The
fair value of the University’s position in the Pooled Fund is based on the
University's proportional share of the Pooled Fund, which is marked-
to-market annually. Note 9 provides additional information on the
Foundation and the Pooled Fund.

The Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds
Act (UPMIFA) as adopted by the State of Ohio provides statutory
guidelines for prudent management, investment, and expenditure of
donor-restricted endowment funds held by charitable organizations.

The University’s interpretation of its fiduciary responsibilities

for donor-restricted endowments under UPMIFA requirements,

barring the existence of any donor-specific provisions, is to preserve
intergenerational equity to the extent possible and to produce maximum
total return without assuming inappropriate risks. The investment
policies governing these funds look beyond short-term fluctuations in
economic cycles toward an investment philosophy that provides the best
total return over very long time periods.

The University employs a total return policy which defines the
total amount of dividends, interest and realized gains to be distributed
from the endowment assets. The University Board has approved an
endowment spending policy whereby distributions in accordance with
donor restrictions are calculated according to a formula which gives a
30% weight to market value and a 70% weight to inflation. Annually the
University establishes a spending formula that defines the total amount
of dividends, interest and realized gains to be distributed from the
endowment assets to other funds. The authorized spending amount was
$8,146,975 in 2012 and $8,059,182 in 2011. In accordance with donors’
stipulations, a portion of the earnings was returned to endowment
principal and the balance of $7,335,241 and $7,616,13] was distributed
for expenditure for 2012 and 2011, respectively. Donor restricted
endowments with insufficient accumulated earnings did not make a
current year distribution.

(8) Accounts Receivable

The accounts, pledges and notes receivable as of June 30, 2012 and 201}, are summarized as follows:

Accounts Receivable
Student receivables
University Foundation
State capital appropriations
Grants and contracts
Investment trade settlements
QOther receivables

Total accounts receivable
Less allowances for doubtful accounts

Net accounts receivable

Pledges Receivable
Pledges receivable
Less allowance for doubtful pledges

‘Net pledges receivable

Notes Receivable
Federal loan programs
University loan programs
Total notes receivable
Less allowance for doubtful notes
Net notes receivable

Total
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2012 2011
$ 10,413,722 $ 9,887,857
13,626,854 11,301,092
2,474,506 5,163,518
4,435,739 3,636,505
406,740 0
2,784 467 2,871,184
34,142,028 32,860,156
(1,285,000) (1,035,000)
$ 32,857,028 $31,825,156
$3,704,342 - $ 3,412,792
(365,179) (368,784)
$3,330,163 $ 3,044,008
$7,823,165 $ 8,165,126
3,139,661 3,044,090
10,962,826 11,209,216
(1,591,000) (1,491,000)
$ 0,371,826 $ 9,718,216
$ 45,568,017 $44,587,380

{as
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(4) Capital Assets

The capital assets and accumulated depreciation as of June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Capital Assets
Land
Collections of works of art and historical treasures
Construction in progress

Total nondepreciable capital assets

Land improvements

Buildings

Infrastructure

Machinery and equipment
Library books and publications
Vehicles

Intangible assets

Total depreciable capital assets

Total capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings

Infrastructure

Land improvements

Machinery and equipment
Library books and publications
Vehicles

Intangible assets

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net

Beginning
Balance

$ 4,841,276
7,328,565

64,907,639

71,077,480

29,713,497
773,146,074
116,034,312
114,006,008

64,305,539

9,136,768

16,193,515

1,122,535,713

1,199,613,193

313,364,528
45,624,965
10,463,882
57,857,975
37,726,698

7,133,726

13,474,432
485,646,206
$ 713,966,987

Ending
Additions Retirements Balance
0 $ 0 $ 4,841,276
172,300 0 7,500,865
50,788,676 25,365,226 90,331,089
50,960,976 25,365,226 102,673,230
1,793,906 0 31,507,403
28,285,568 0 801,431,642
274,124 0 116,308,436
4,405,844 4,117,001 114,294,851
1,281,083 0 65,586,622
406,290 267,319 9,275,739
603,245 0 16,796,760
37,050,060 4,384,320 1,155,201,453
88,011,036 29,749,546 1,257,874,683
22,049,273 0 335,413,801
4,216,269 0 49,841,234
1,015,025 0 11,478,907
6,743,675 4,117,001 60,484,649
2,242,016 0 39,968,714
645,748 260,557 7,518,917
1,028,349 0 14,502,781
37,940,355 4,377,558 519,209,003
$ 50,070,681 $ 25,371,988 $ 738,665,680

The capital assets and accumulated depreciation as of June 30, 2011, are summarized as follows:

Capital assets
Land
Collections of works of art and historical treasures
Construction in progress

Total nondepreciaable capital assets

Land improvements

Buildings

Infrastructure

Machinery and equipment
Library books and publications
Vehicles

Intangible assets

Total depreciahble capital assets

Total capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Land improvements
Machinery and equipment
Library books and publications
Vehicles
Intangible assets
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net

94 }
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Beginning ‘ Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

$ 4,841,276 0 $ 0 $ 4,841,276
6,665,257 663,308 0 7,328,565
37,406,747 35,617,264 8,116,372 64,907,639
48,913,280 36,280,572 8,116,372 77,077,480
28,093,190 1,620,307 0 29,713,497
766,005,259 7,140,815 0 773,146,074
112,718,339 3,315,973 0 116,034,312
114,539,375 4,754,319 5,287,686 114,006,008
62,619,357 1,686,182 0 64,305,539
9,059,890 261,936 185,058 9,136,768
14,993,532 1,199,983 0 16,193,515
1,108,028,942 19,979,515 5,472,744 1,122,535,713
1,156,942,222 56,260,087 13,589,116 1,199,613,193
292,434,553 20,929,975 0 313,364,528
41,359,644 4,265,321 0 45,624,965
9,505,103 958,779 0 10,463,882
54,354,636 8,655,970 5,152,631 57,857,975
35,563,290 2,163,408 0 37,726,698
6,898,219 415,756 180,249 7,133,726
12,523,829 950,603 0 13,474,432
452,639,274 38,339,812 5,332,880 485,646,206
$ 704,302,948 $ 17,920,275 $ 8,256,236 $ 713,966,987
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(5) Long-term Liabilities
The long term liabilities as of June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:
Beginning Ending - Current
Bonds, Leases, and Notes Payable Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Bonds payable $324,595,000 $148,775,000 $ 45,865,000 $427,505,000 $ 18,420,000
Capital leases payable 1,877,335 2,848,719 915,008 3,811,046 804,094
Notes payable 1,733,715 0 1,733,715 0 0
Premiums, issue costs, loss on refunding 6,237,855 8,579,192 1,913,621 12,903,426 982,896
Total bonds, leases, and notes payable 334,443,905 160,202,911 50,427,344 444,219,472 20,206,990
Other Liabilities }
Compensated absences 16,535,478 4,342,508 5,071,040 15,806,946 1,504,057
Federal Perkins Loans 6,457,987 255,132 283,970 6,429,149 0
Total other liabilities 22,993,465 4,597,640 5,355,010 22,236,095 1,504,057
" Total $357,437,370 $164,800,551 $ 55,782,354 $466,455,567 $ 21,711,047

The long term liabilities as of June 30, 2011, are summarized as follows:

Beginning Ending Current
Bonds, Leases, and Notes Payable Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Bonds payable $210,880,000 $125,000,000 $ 11,285,000 $324,595,000 $ 14,650,000
Capital leases payable 2,810,442 0 933,107 1,877,335 874,290
Notes payable 1,806,578 0 72,863 1,733,715 76,926
Premiums, issue costs, loss on refunding 5,939,892 773,152 475,189 6,237,855 585,431
Total bonds, leases, and notes payable 221,436,912 125,773,152 12,766,159 334,443,905 16,186,647
Other Liabilities
Compensated absences 15,457,447 6,471,632 5,393,601 16,535,478 1,356,104
Federal Perkins loans 6,518,788 228,515 289,316 6,457,987 0
Total other liabilities 21,976,235 6,700,147 5,682,917 22,993,465 1,356,104
Total $243,413,147 $132,473,299 $18,449,076 $357,437,370 $ 17,542,751

Additional information regarding the bonds, notes, and capital leases is included in Note 6.
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(6) Indebtedness

The bonds are secured by a pledge of the general receipts of the
University. The University may at its discretion use, or pledge, to the
extent lawfully authorized, such other resources as are available for use in
the performance of its obligation under the various trust agreements.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the University issued
$14.8,775,000 in General Receipts Revenue Bonds with interest rates
ranging from 2.00 percent to 5.00 percent and maturities from 2012 to
2036. The proceeds are being used to provide funding for the second
phase of a multi-phase effort to renovate all campus student housing and
dining facilities. A part of the proceeds were also used to refund a portion
of the remaining Miami University General Receipts Bonds, Series 2003.
The net change in cash flows related to the refunding was approximately
$2.1 million and the net present value savings was approximately $1.6
million. In fiscal year 2012, the University defeased a portion of the
Series 2003 bonds by placing some of the proceeds from the Series 2011
bonds into an escrow account to provide for all future debt service. The
outstanding balance of defeased bonds was $31,215,000 as of June 30,
2012.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the University issued
$125,000,000 in General Receipts Revenue Bonds consisting of
$10544:5,000 Series 2010A (Federally Taxable Build America Bonds -
Direct Payment) and $19,555,000 Series 2010B (Tax-Exempt Bonds).
Interest rates range [rom 4.81% to 6.77% for the Series 2010A bonds
and from 2.00 percent (0.5.00 percent for the Series 20108 bonds.
Maturities range from 2017 to 2035 for the Series 2010A bonds and
from 2011 to 2016 for the Series 2010B bonds. The Series 2010 bond
proceeds are being used to provide funding for the first phase of planned
improvements to stucdent housing and dining facilities and the first phase
of construction of the Armstrong Student Center.

There was no new debt issued by the University in the years ended
June 30, 2010, 2009 or 2008.

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the University issued
$83,210,000 in General Receipts Revenue Bonds with interest rates
ranging from 3.25 percent to 5.25 percent and maturities from 2010 to
2026. The proceeds were used to fund capital asset additions.

During the year ended June 30, 2005, the University issued
$98,455,000 in General Receipts Revenue and Refunding Bonds with
interest rates ranging from 3.00 percent to 5.00 percent and maturities
from 2006 to 2025. The proceeds were used Lo refund a portion of
the remaining Miami University General Receipts Bonds, Series 1998
and for the funding of additional capital assets. In 20085, the University
defeased a portion of the Series 1998 bonds by placing some of the
proceeds [rom the Series 2005 bonds into an escrow account to provide
for all future debt service. The outstanding balance of defeased bonds
was $11,305,000 and $12,650,000 as of June 30, 2012 and 20l],
respectively.

During the year ended June 30, 2003, the University issued
$61,400,000 in General Receipts Revenue and Refunding Bonds.
The proceeds were used to refund a portion of the remaining Miami
University General Receipts Bonds, Series 1993 and for the funding of
additional capital assets.

The University incurred interest costs of $18,229,548 and
$12,865,732 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. For the year
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ended June 30, 2012, $861,077 of the interest cost was capitalized.
For the year ended June 30, 2011, $154,822 of the interest cost was
capitalized.

During fiscal year 2012, the University paid off the outstanding
note payable from the U.S. Department of Education in the amount
of $1,733,715. The note carried a 5.50 percent interest rate and was
scheduled to mature in 2026.

The maturity dates, interest rates, and outstanding principal balances
as of June 30, 2012, are as follows:

Maturity Interest Outstanding
Dates Rates Deht

Bonds Payable
Series 2011 general receipts 2013 -2033 2.00% - 5.00% $148,775,000
Series 2010A general receipts 2018 -2036 4.81% -6.77% 105,445,000
Series 2010B general receipts 2013 -2017 4.00% - 5.00% 16,630,000
Series 2007 general receipts 2013 -2027 3.25% - 5.25% 74,630,000
Series 2005 general receipts 2013 -2025 3.38% - 5.00% 73,805,000
Series 2003 general receipts 2013 -2014  3.75% - 5.50% 8,220,000
Total bonds payable 427,505,000
Bond premiums (14,833,538)
Bond issuance costs 2,659,077
Deferred loss on refunding (728,965)
Total bonds payabhle, net $414,601,574

The principal and interest payments for the bonds and notes in future
years are as follows:

Year Ended June 30 Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 18,420,000 $ 21,178,673 $§ 39,598,673
2014 19,120,000 20,416,717 39,536,717
2015 18,030,000 19,609,070 37,639,070
2016 18,785,000 18,820,910 37,605,910
2017 19,670,000 17,965,660 37,635,660
2018-2022 106,080,000 58,167,539 164,247,539
2023-2027 102,825,000 48,056,528 150,881,528
2028-2032 58,765,000 27,954,685 86,719,685
2033-2036 65,810,000 8,814,478 74,624,478

Total $427,505,000 $ 240,984,260 $ 668,489,260

The University has $3,811,046 in capitalized lease obligations that
have varying maturity dates through 2032 and carry implicit interest
rates ranging from 4.00 percent to 17.16 percernit. The scheduled
maturities of these leases as of June 30, 2012, are:

Minimum

Year Ended June 30 : Lease Payments
2013 $ 916,960
2014 448,394
2015 ‘ 195,849
2016 194,020
2017 194,586
2018 - 2022 971,583
2023 - 2027 967,119
2028 - 2032 961,480
Total minimum lease payments 4,849,991
Less amount representing interest (1,038,945)
Net minimum lease payments $3,811,046

Buildings and computer equipment are financed with capital leases.
The carrying amount related to these capital leases as of June 30, 2012
and June 30, 201! are $2,779,920 and $1,605,123 for buildings and
$3,580,222 and $3,800,408 for equipment, respectively.
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(7) Retirement Plans

Substantially all non-student employees are covered by one of three
retirement plans. The University faculty is covered by the State Teachers
Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio). Non-faculty employees are
covered by the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio
(OPERS). Employees may opt out of STRS Ohio and OPERS and
participate in the Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP).

STRS Ohio and OPERS both offer three separate retirement plans:
the defined benefit plan, the defined contribution plan, and a combined
plan.

Defined Benefit Plans

Both STRS Ohio and OPERS are cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plans. Both plans provide retirement, disability,
postretirement health care coverage, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided
by state statute.

STRS Ohio and OPERS issue stand-alone financial reports. Copies
of these reports may be obtained by writing to STRS, 275 East Broad
Street, Columbus, OH 43215-3771 or to OPERS, 277 East Town Street,
Columbus, OH 43215-4642.

Contribution rates for STRS Ohio are established by the State
Teachers Retirement Board, not to exceed statutory maximum rates of
10 percent for members and 14 percent for employers. Contribution
rates for fiscal year 2011 were 10 percent for employees and 14 percent for
employers. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, and June 30, 2010,
the Retirement Board allocated employer contributions equal to 1.00
percent of covered payroll to the Health Care Stabilization Fund (Note 8).

During calendar year 2011, employees covered by the OPERS system
were required by state statute to contribute 10.0 percent of their salary
to the plan. The University was required to contribute 14.00 percent
of covered payroll. Law enforcement employees who are a part of the
OPERS law enforcement division contribute 11.60 percent of their
salary to the plan. For these employees, the University was required to
contribute 18.10 percent of covered payroll. The portion of employer
contributions to OPERS allocated to health care for members in the

Traditional Plan was 4.00 percent from January 1 through December 3,
2011 (Note 8).

The payroll for employees covered by STRS Ohio for the years
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, were approximately $63,038,000
and $64,727,000, respectively. The payroll for employees covered by
OPERS for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 201, were approximately
$84.,266,000 and $84.585,000, respectively.

Defined Contribution Plan

Full-time faculty and unclassified employees are eligible to participate
in the Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP) offered by STRS Ohio and
OPERS. The board has established the employer contribution as an
amount equal to the amount which the University would have contributed
to the respective state retirement system in which the employee would
participate, less any amounts required to be remitted to the state
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retirement systems. ARP does not provide disability benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments, postretirement health care benefits, or death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.

The payroll for employees electing the alternative retirement program
for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, were approximately
$50,874.,000 and $47,826,000, respectively.

Combined Plans

STRS Ohio offers a combined plan with features of both a defined
contribution plan and a defined benefit plan. In the combined plan,
employee contributions are invested in self-directed investments, and
the employer contribution is used to fund a reduced defined benefit.
Employees electing the combined plan receive postretirement health
care benefits.

OPERS also offers a combined plan. This is a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit plan that has elements of both a defined
benefit and defined contribution plan. In the combined plan, employee
contributions are invested in self-directed investments, and the employer
contribution is used to fund a reduced defined benefit. OPERS also
provides retirement, disability, survivor, and postretirement health care
benefits to qualified members. The portion of employer contributions to
OPERS allocated to health care for members in the Combined Plan was
6.05 percent from January | through December 31, 2011 (Note 8).

Retirement Plan Funding

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee
and employer contributions. The University’s contributions each year
are equal to its required contributions. University contributions for the
current and two preceding years are summarized below.

Employer Gontribution

. Alternative

STRS Ohio OPERS Programs

2012 $ 8,825,325 $ 11,863,447 $ 5,807,341
2011 9,061,480 11,841,929 5,530,805
2010 9,271,116 12,303,519 5,575,241

(8) Other Postemployment Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 7, STRS Ohio
and OPERS provide postretirement health care coverage to retirees
and their dependents. Health care coverage for disability recipients
and primary survivor recipients is also provided. Coverage includes
hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription drugs, and partial
reimbursement.of monthly Medicare premiums. A portion of the
employer contribution is allocated to fund the health care benefits
(Note 7).

OPERS health care benefits are advance-funded on an actuarially
determined basis. The amount of employer contributions made to fund
post-employment benefits was $3.4 million.
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(9) Related Organization

The Miami University Foundation (the Foundation) is a separate not-for-profit entity organized for the purpose of promoting educational and
research activities of the University. Since the resources held by the Foundation can be used only by and for the benefit of the University, the Foundation
is considered a component unit of the University and is discretely presented in the University’s financial statements.

The Foundation board is comprised of a maximum of 29 members. Up to 21 members are elected by the board and eight members are appointed by
Miami University. At least two-thirds of the elected trustees are required to be alumni or former students of Miami University. The Foundation reports
using standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.

Amounts received by the University from the Foundation are restricted and are included in gifts in the accompanying Anancial statements.
The Foundation values its investments at fair value.

Summary financial information for the Foundation as of June 30, 2012, the date of its most recent audited financial report, is as follows:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Net assets at end of year $(104,812) $115,915,292 $160,563,050 $276,373,530
Change in net assets for the year (353,907) (16,725,842) 10,471,661 (6,607,888)
Distributions to Miami University 18,662,382 0 0 18,662,382
Summary financial information for the Foundation as of June 30, 2011:
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Net assets at end of year $ 249,095 $132,640,934 $150,091,389 $282,981,418
Change in net assets for the year 2,856,929 25,698,816 6,728,486 35,284,231
Distributions to Miami University 14,660,423 0 0 14,660,423

(@) Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents consists primarily of cash in banks, money market accounts, BlackRock Liquidity
Federal Trust Fund, and the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio) that include short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible
to cash, with an original maturity of three months or less. On June 30, approximately $872,057 of cash and cash equivalents was covered by federal
depository insurance and the remainder was not insured, exposing it to custodial credit risk. The Foundation maintains active relationships with
multiple cash equivalent accounts to reduce its exposure to custodial credit risk at any single institution. The carrying amounts of these items are a
reasonable estimate of their fair value.

(0) Investiments - Investments that are market traded, such as equity and debt securities and mutual funds, are recorded at fair value based
primarily on quoted market prices, as established by the major securities markets. The value of holdings of commingled funds investing in publicly
traded stocks and bonds and not having a readily determined market value for fund units is based on the funds’ net asset value as supplied by the
investment manager. The manager values are reviewed and evaluated by Foundation management. Investments in real estate are recorded at appraised
value at the date of donation. The issuing insurance companies determine the cash surrender value of the paid-up life insurance policies annually.

Market prices are not available for certain investments. These investments are carried at estimated fair value provided by the funds’ management.
Some valuations are determined as of June 30, while the remaining valuations are determined as of March 31 and adjusted by cash receipts, cash
disbursements, and securities distributions through June 30.

The Foundation believes that the carrying amounts are reasonable estimates of fair value as of year-end. Because these investments are not readily
marketable, the estimated value is subject to uncertainty and, therefore, may differ from the value that would have been used had a ready marleet for the
investments existed. Such differences could be material. The amount of gain or loss associated with these investments is reflected in the accompanying
financial statements using the equity method of accounting,

Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis and purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade-date basis. Investment
transactions occurring on or before June 30 that settle after such date are recordled as receivables or payables.

98 }

Attachment A, Page 29 of 88 : e Dec2012



Attachment A, Page 30 of 88 Finance and Auditor's Report Dec 2012

MIAMI UNIVERSITY

(¢) Long-Term Investments

Investments held by the Foundation as of June 30 were:

2012 , 2011
Investment Description Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Domestic Public Equities $ 18,345,154 $ 20,794,348 $ 27,987,199 $ 32,871,867
Global Public Equities 102,919,948 104,484,593 36,946,791 43,007,452
International Public Equities 14,499,910 13,018,134 10,801,774 12,752,544
Domestic Public Fixed Income 15,352,200 17,729,871 7,029,540 8,035,284
Global Public Fixed Income 16,718,703 16,321,200 7,584,763 7,821,539
Hedge Funds 76,449,477 97,641,252 47,626,743 64,201,566
Private Investments 107,190,042 95,013,447 60,857,752 52,496,982
Split-Interest Funds :
Charitable remainder trusts 7,583,141 8,065,107 8,167,887 8,699,324
Charitable gift annuities 2,270,433 2,541,778 2,216,026 2,478,331
Pooled income funds 565,635 613,188 605,609 650,246
Total $361,894,643 $376,222,919 $209,824,084 $233,015,135

The Foundation maintains a diversified investment portfolio for the Pooled Funds, intended to reduce market risk, credit risk, and interest rate risk
with a strategy designed to take advantage of market inefficiencies. The Foundation’s investment objectives are guided by its asset allocation policy and
are achieved in partnership with external investment managers operating through a variety of investment vehicles including separate accounts, limited
partnerships, and commingled funds. The Foundation’s investment portfolio includes publicly traded securities. As a result, a significant downturn in
the securities markets could adversely affect the market value of Foundation assets. As of June 30, 2012, the Foundation has made commitments to
limited partnerships of approximately $37.0 million that have not yet been funded.

The 2012 dividend and interest income of $2,455,266, as reported in the Statement of Activities, is net of fees from external investment managers
totaling $554,796. The 2011 dividend and interest income of $1,970,234 is reported net of fees from external investment managers totaling $644,702.

(d) Fair Value Measurements - The Foundation uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustrments to certain assets and liabilities
and to determine fair value disclosures. Subsequent changes in fair value are recorded as an adjustment to earnings.

(e) Pledges Receivable - As of June 30, 2012, contributors to the Foundation have made unconditional pledges totaling $49,635,789 with
18 pledges accounting for over 50 percent of that total. Net pledges receivable have been discounted using interest rates to a net present value of
$4:8,357,117 at June 30, 2012. Discount rates based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve three-year average ranged from .24- percent to 3.40 percent for
2012. Management has set up an allowance for uncollectible pledges of $3,584,106 at June 30, 2012. All pledges have been classified as temporarily
restricted net assets since they will either expire or be fulfilled within a specified time.

The Foundation had also been notified of revocable pledges, bequests, and other indications of intentions to give. These potential contributions
have not been substantiated by unconditional written promises to the foundation. The Foundation’s policy is not to record these intentions to give as
revenues until they are reduced to writing or are collected.

(P Split-interest agreement - The Foundation’s split-interest agreements with donors consist primarily of charitable gift annuities, pooled
income funds and irrevocable charitable remainder trusts for which the foundation serves as trustee. Assets are invested and payments are made to
donors and/or other beneficiaries in accordance with the respective agreements. Assets held in these trusts are included in investments.

(g) Endowment - UPMIFA provides statutory guidelines for prudent management, investment, and expenditure of donor-restricted endowment
funds held by charitable organizations.

The Foundation’s interpretation of its fiduciary responsibilities for donor-restricted endowments under UPMIFA requirements, barring the existence
of any donor-specific provisions, is to preserve intergenerational equity to the extent possible and to produce maximum total return without assuming
inappropriate risks. The investment policies governing these funds look beyond short-term fluctuations in economic cycles toward an investment
philosophy that provides the best total return over very long time periods.

UPMIFA specifies that unless stated otherwise in the gift agreement, donor-restricted assets in an endowment fund are restricted assets until
appropriated for expenditure by the institution. Barring the existence of specific donor instruction, the Foundation’s policy is to report (a) the historical
value for such endowment as permanently restricted net assets and (b} the net accumulated appreciation as temporarily restricted net assets. In this
context, historical value represents (a) the original value of initial gifts restricted as permanent endowments plus (b) the original value of subsequent gifts
along with () if applicable, the value of accumulations made in accordance with specific donor instruction.
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CONTINUED - Nofes fo Financial Statemenis JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2011

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with donor-
restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor
or UPMIFA requires the Foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration. In accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature are
reported as unrestricted net assets until such time as the fair value equals
or exceeds historical value; such deficiencies were $948,391 as of June
30, 2012 and $223,54.9 as of June 30, 2011. These deficiencies resulted
from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred after the investment
of permanently restricted contributions.

() Net Asset Classification - Resources of the Foundation are
classified for reporting purposes into net asset classes based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions and state law.
Unrestricted net assets represent the portion of funds over which
the Foundation has discretionary control as there are no donor-
imposed purposes or time restrictions on how the funds may be spent.
Temporarily restricted net assets are limited as to use by donor-imposed
stipulations that expire with the passage of time or the incurrence of
expenditures that fulfill the donor-imposed restrictions. These net assets
are primarily restricted for student pledges, split-interest agreements, and

board-designated endowment funds; such funds are primarily restricted
for student financial aid, educational and research activities, and capital
improvements for the University. Expirations of restrictions on net assets,
i.e., the passage of time and/or fulfilling donor-imposed stipulations, are
reported as net assets released from restrictions between the applicable
classes of net assets in the statement of activities. Permanently restricted
net assets, or endowment funds, represent amounts received from donors
with the restriction that the principal is invested in perpetuity. Generally,
the donors of these assets permit the Foundation to transfer a portion

of the income earned on related investments (o the University for such
purpose as specified by the donor.

The Foundation issues separate financial statements. Copies of these
reports may be obtained from Treasury Services, 107 Roudebush Hall,
Miami University, Oxford, Ohio, 45056.

Our academic reputation is a magnet for employers.
Compared with on-campus recruitment programs at other
universities our size, nearly four times as many employers
recruit at Miami, and three times as many on-campus
interviews are conducted.
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(10) Commitments

At June 30, 2012, the University is committed to future contractual
obligations for capital expenditures of approximately $76.1 million.
These commitments are being funded from the following sources:

Contractual Obligations

Approved state appropriations not expended $ 1,193,829

University funds 74,923,511
Total $76,117,340
(11) Risk Management

The University’s employee health insurance program is a self-insured
plan. Administration of the plan is provided by Humana Inc. and
employees are offered two plan options, a Traditional PPO Plan or a High
Deductible Health Plan with a Health Savings Account.

Health insurance claims are accrued based upon estimates of
the claims liabilities. These estimates are based on past experience,
current claims outstanding, and medical inflation trends. Asaresult,
the actual claims experience may differ from the estimate. An estimate
of claims incurred but not reported in the amount of $2,872,200 and
$8,867,600 is included in the accrued salaries and wages as of June 30,
2012 and 201}, respectively. The change in the total liability for actual
and estimated claims is summarized below:

2012 2011
Liability at beginning of year $2,208,827 $2,908,351
Claims incurred 35,499,748 34,379,797
Claims paid (35,053,282) (34,505,521)
Increase (decrease) in estimated claims
incurred but not reported 1,007,200 (573,800)
Liability at end of year $3,662,493 $2,208,827

To reduce potential loss exposure, the University has established a
reserve for health insurance stabilization of $4.2 million.

The University participates in a consortium with all other Ohio
state-assisted universities (excluding The Ohio State University) for the
acquisition of commercial property and liability insurance. The name
of the consortium is the IUC-Insurance Consortium. The commercial
property program’s loss limit is $1.0 billion and the general/auto liability
loss limit is $50 million. The property insurance program has been in
place for 17 years during which time Miami has had one material loss
above the insurance policy deductible of $350,000. The property pool
deductible for individual schools is $100,000. The liability program
has been in place for 12 years during which time Miami has had three
losses above the pool deductible, which is $100,000. The current self- .
insured retention for the liability program is $1.0 million. The educator’s
legal liability loss limit is $30 million. The University also participates

" with the other consortium universities for the purchase of commercial
insurance for other risks. Over the past five years, settlement amounts
related to insured risks have not exceeded the University’s coverage
amounts.
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(12) Contingencies

The University receives grants and contracts from certain federal,
state, and local agencies to fund research and other activities. The
costs, both direct and indirect, that have been charged to the grants
or contracts are subject to examination and approval by the granting
agency. It is the opinion of the University’s administration that any
disallowance or adjustment of such costs would not have a material effect
on the financial statements.

The University is presently involved as a defendant or codefendant
in various matters of litigation. The University’s administration believes
that the ultimate disposition of any of these matters would not have a
material adverse effect upon the financial condition of the University.

(13) Subsequent Events

The University is planning to issue general receipts revenue bonds
during fiscal year 2013 totaling approximately $125 million. Proceeds
from the bond sale are expected to be used to continue construction and
renovation of the housing and dining facilities.

Dec 2012
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Miami University Board of Trustees
Date listed is expiration of term.

David H. Budig
February 28, 2013

Donald L. Crain, Chair
February 28, 2015

Sharon J. Mitchell, Vice Chair
February 29, 2016

Harry T. Wilks
February 28, 2017

Dennis A. Lieberman
February 28, 2018

Jagdish K. Bhati
February 28, 2019

Mark E. Ridenour
February 29, 2020

Robert W. Shroder
February 28, 2021
National Trustees (mon-voting)

C. Michael Armstrong
February 28, 2014

Sue J. Henry
June 30, 2014

C. Michael Gooden
June 30, 2015
Student Trustees (non-voting)

Lot A. Kwarteng
February 28, 2013

Arianne R. Wilt
February 28, 2014

32 }
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Administrative Qfficers

David C. Hodge
President

Conrado (Bobby) Gempesaw
Provost and Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs

David K. Creamer

Vice President for Finance and Business Services and Treasurer
Barbara C. Jones

Vice President for Student AfTairs

Bradley M. Bundy

Interim Vice President for University Advancement

Debra H. Allison
Vice President for Information Technology

Ted O. Pickerill

Secretary to the Board of Trustees and Executive Assistant to the President

Financial Services Staff

The 2012 financial report and investments report were prepared by the
Miami University Controller’s Office and the Treasury Services Office.

Beverly H. Thomas
Associate Vice President for Finance and Associate Treasurer

Dale C. Hinrichs
Controller

Bruce A. Guiot
Chief Investment Officer

Cynthia L. Ripberger
Associate Director of Investments and Treasury Services
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Statement of Nondiscrimination
Miami University is committed to providing equal opportunity and an educational and work environment free from discrimination on the basis of sex, race, color, religion,

national origin, disability, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, military status, or veteran status. Miami shall adhere to all applicable state and federal equal opportunity/
affirmative action statutes and regulations.

e Vi S S

The university is dedicated to ensuring access and equal opportunity in its educational programs, related activities, and employment. Retaliation against an individual who
has raised claims of illegal discrimination or cooperated with an investigation of such claims is prohibited.

Students and employees should bring questions or concerns to the attention of the Office of Equity and Equal Opportunity, Hanna House, 529-7157 (V/TTY) and
; 529-7158 (fax). Students and employees with disabilities may contact the Office of Disability Resources, 19 Campus Avenue Building, 529-1541 (V/TTY) and 529-8595 (fax).

EthicsPoint

EthicsPoint is an anonymous method for reporting illegal, unethical, or other conduct that violates Miami’s policies. Miami (along with many other universities) has contracted
with EthicsPoint to provide this service. Reports may be filed at www.EthicsPoint.com
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Miami University

Report to the Finance and Audit Committee

December 6, 2012

MCG |ad rey Assurance = Tax = Consuliting
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McGladrey

December 6, 2012

Finance and Audit Committeg
Miami University
Oxford, Chio

Wae are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the financial statements of Miami University
{the University) for the year ended June 30, 2012. This report summarizes certain matters required by
professional standards to be communicated to you in your oversight responsibility for Miami University's
financial reporting process.

This report is intended solety for the information and use of the Finance and Audit Committee and
management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties. It will be our pleasure to respend to any questions you have regarding this report. We appreciate
the opportunity to continue to be of service to Miami University.

%&%@ L~

Member of the RSM international network of independent accounting, tax and cansulting firms,
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Required Communications

Summary of Accounting Estimates

Exhibit A — Certain Written Communications between Management and Our Firm

Representation Letter

Management Letter
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unications

Statement on Auditing Standards No. 114 requires the auditor to communicate certain matters to keep
those charged with governance adequately informed about matters related to the financial statement
audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant and relevant to the responsibilities of those
charged with governance in overseeing the financial reporting process. The following summarizes these
communications.

Area Comments
Auditor’s Responsibility Under Our responsibility under auditing standards generally accepted
Professional Standards in the United States of America and Government Auditing

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, has been desctibed to you in our arrangement letter
dated May 21, 2012.

Accounting Practices Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies

Management has the ultimate responsibility for the
approptiateness of the accounting policies used by the
University. In the current year, the University adopted
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No.64,
Derivative Instruments; Application of Hedge Termination
Provisions. There was no impact to the University's financial
statements due to the adoption of GASB No. 64.

Upcoming Pronouncements

Reference “Basis for Presentation” fooinote for a listing of
upcoming GASB pronouncements with discussion of potential
impact on the University.

Significant or Unusual Transactions

We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions or
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging
areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
Consensus.

Alternative- Treatments Discussed with Management

We did not discuss with management any alternative
treatments within generally accepted accounting principles for
accounting policies and practices related to material items
during the current audit petiod.

Management Judgments and Summary information about the process used by management

Accounting Estimates in formulating particularty sensitive accounting estimates and
about our conclusions regarding the reasonableness of those
estimates is in the attached "Summary of Accounting
Estimates.”

Financial Statement Disclosures In our meeting with you today, we will discuss with you the
following items as they relate to the neutrality, consistency,
and clarity of the disclosures in the financial statements:

s The presentation and disclesures in your audit report.
» Results of the Single Audit
s Pending accounting standards

Page 1
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Area

Audit Adjustments

Disagreements with Management

Consultations with Other
Accountants

Significant Issues Discussed with
Management

Difficulties Encountered in
Performing the Audit

Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters

Certain Written Communications
Between Management and Our
Firm

Attachment A, Page 39 of 88
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Comments

There were no audit adjustments proposed by our firm.
University management made closing entries in the normal
course of business to the original trial balance presented to us
to begin our audit.

We encountered no disagreements with management over the
application of significant accounting principles, the basis for
management’s judgments on any significant matters, the
scope of the audit, or significant disclosures to be included in
the financial staterments.

We are not aware of any consultations management had with
other accountants about accounting or auditing matters.

No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed or
were the subject of correspondence with management.

We did not encounter any difficulties in dealing with
management during the audit.

We have separately issued a report on internal control over
financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based
on an audit required by Government Auditing Standards. This
communication is included in the University's compliance
report.

Copies of certain written communications between our firm
and the management of the University are attached as
Exhibit A.

Page 2
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Miami University

summary of Accounting Estimates

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon

management's current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and
experience about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to

monitor throughout the year the process used to compute and record these accounting estimates. The
following describes the significant accounting estimates reflected in the University's June 30, 2012,

financial statements:

Allowance for
uncoliectible student,

The allowance for
uncollectible accounts is

The University
calculates a specific

We tested the
underlying information

recorded at fair value

market traded are
recorded at fair value
based on quoted market
prices, as established
by the major securities
markets. The value of
holdings of commingled
funds not having a
readily determined
market value is based
on the net asset value
as supplied by the
investment manager.
Investments in real
estate are recorded at
appraised value at the
date of the donation.

pledges and loans based on percent reserve on the supporting the
receivable management's estimate | aging of the accounts allowance. We
of the collectability of based on historical concluded
identified receivables, experiences and by management's estimate
as well as aging of identifying specific is reasonable.
accounts. ‘1 accounts which are
doubtful of collection.
Invesiments investments are Investments that are We tested the propriety

of the information
underlying
management’s
estimates. Based on
our procedures, we
conclude that
management's
approach is reasonabile.

Depreciable Life

Froperty and equipment
are recorded at cost and
then depreciated over
the estimated useful
lives of the assets.

Estimated useful lives
are 50 years for
buildings; 25 years for
infrastructure, library
books and land
improvements; 20 years
for improvemenis to
buildings; and 5to 7
years for equipment,
vehicles, and furniture.

We believe the
estimates and process
used by the University
are appropriate.
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Compensated
absences

Vacation and sick time
is accrued for
employees based upon
the term of their
employment contract or
years of service.

Unused vacation and
sick time are
determined by current
rates, terms of
employment and subject
fo maximum accruais.

We tested the detail
listing of accrued
vacation and sick time
at June 30, 2012 and
noted the amounis
accrued are reasonable
based on the policy.

Accrual for self-
insured employee
medical costs

Health insurance ciaims
are accrued based upon
estimaies of the claims
liabilities.

These estimates are
based on past
experience, current
claims outstanding, and
medical inflaticn trends,

We tested the propriety
of the information
underlying
management’s
estimates. Based on
our procedures, we
conclude that
management’s
approach is reascnable.
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y MIAMI OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER
RovptausHa RooM 107
UNIVERSITY Oxs010, 0o 45056-365

(513) s29-6110
(513) 520-6124 Fax

Qctober 15, 2012

McGladrey LLP
1001 Lakeside Avenue, Suite 1400
Cleveland, OH 44114

in connection with your audit of the basic financial staterents of Miami University (the University}, a
component unit of the State of Ohio as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, we confirm that we are
responsible for the fair presentation of the Statement of Net Assets, Staternent of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Assets, and the Statement of Cash Flows in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of the date of this letter the following
representations made to you during your audit; .

1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

2 \We have identified for you all organizations that are a part of this reporting entity or with which we
have a relationship, as these organizations are defined in Section 2100 of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards that are component units.

3. We are a component unit of the State of Ohio as this term is defined in Section 2100 of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards. )

4. We have identified for you, all of our identifiable business-type activities.
We have properly classified all funds and activities.

6. We are responsible for compliance with laws and regulations applicable to Miami University including
adopting, approving and amending budgets.

7. We have identified and disclosed to you all laws and regulations that have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts including legal and contractual provisions for
reporting specific activities in separate funds.

B. We have made available to you:

a. All financial records and related data of all funds and activities, including those of afi special
funds, programs, departments, projects, activities, etc., in existence at any time during the period
covered by your audit.

b. All minutes of the meetings of the Board of Trustees and the Finance and Audit Committee of
board members.

c. All communications from grantors, lenders, other funding sources, or regulatory agencies
concerning noncompliance with:

i, Statutory, regulatory, or contractual provisions or requirements.

ii.  Financial reporting practices that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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McGladrey LLP
October 15, 2012
Page 2

9. We have no knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the University involving:
a. Management. ,
b. Employees who have significant roles In the internal dontrol, or
¢. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

10. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls to
provide reasonable assurance that fraud is prevented and detected.

11. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the University
received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

12. We are aware of no significant deficiencies, including materlal weaknesses, in the design or operation
of internal controls that could adversely affect the University's ability to record, process, summarize,
and report financial data.

13. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

14. We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets
and liabilities.

15. The following have been properly recorded and/or disclosed in the financial statements :

a. Related party transactions, including those with the State of Chio, the primary government having
accountability for Miami University, component units for which the University is accountable, other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the University are
such that exclusion wouid cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete, joint ventures in which the University has an interest and as defined in Section 2100
of the Government Accounting Standards Board”s Codification of Governmental Acecounting and
Financial Reporting Standards, and interfund transactions, including interfund accounts and
advances receivable and payable, sales and purchase transactions, interfund transfers, long-term
loans, leasing arrangements and guarantees, all of which have been recorded in accordance with
the economic substance of the transaction and appropriately classified and reported.

b. Arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other arrangements
involving restrictions on cash balances.

¢. Security agreements in effect under the Uniform Commercial Code.

d. Allliens or encumbrances on assets or revenues of any assets or revenues which were pledged
as collateral for any fiability or which were subordinated in any way.

e. The fair value of investments.
f.  Deferred revenue.

g. Amounts of contractual obligations for construction and purchase af real property or equipment
not included in the liabilities or encumbrances recorded on the books.

h. Deposit and investment securities are properly classified in the category of custodial credit risk,
interest rate, credit and concentration of credit risk.

i. Debtissue provisions.
j.  Authorized or unissued bonds.
k. Al leases and material amounts of rental obligations under long-term ieases.

. All significant estimates known to management which are required to be disclosed in accordance
with Government Accounting Standards Board Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards. Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date
which could change materially within the next year.

m. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments; Appfication of Hedge
Accounting Termination Provisions had no impact.
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n.

Q.

B.

g.

The effect on the financial statements of GASB Stafement No. 60, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements; GASB Statement No. 61, The Financiaf
Reporting Entify: Omnibus —an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No 34; GASB
Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance; GASB
Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Daferred Qutfiows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Net Pasition; GASB Statement 65, items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities; GASB No. 66, An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62; GASB
Statement No. 68, Account and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27, which have been issued, but are not required to be adopted.

All assets and liabilities under the University's control.

Intangible assets have been appropriately identified and recorded under GASB Statement No. 51,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assels.

Compliance with bond indentures or other debt instruments.

16. We are responsible for making the accounting estimates included in the financial statements. Those
estimates reflect our judgment based on our knowledge and experience about past and current
events and our assumptions about conditions we expect to exist and courses of action we expect fo
take. In that regard, adequate provisions have been made:

a. To reduce receivables to their estimated net collectable amounts.

b. For pension obligations, post-retirement benefits other than pensions, self-insured
employee medical costs and deferred compensation agreements affributable to
employee services rendered through June 30, 2012,

17. There areno:

a.

> @
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Material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records underlying
the financial statements.

Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be considered for
disciosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency. in that
regard, we specifically represent that we have not been designated as, or alleged to be, a
"potentially responsible party" by the Federal Environmental Protection Agency or any equivalent
state agencies in connection with any environmental contamination.

Material liabilities or gain or foss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disciosed by the
Contingencies Topic of the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 450.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the University is contingently liable.
Line of credit or similar arrangements.

Liabilities which are subordinated in any way to any other actual or possible liabilities.
Direct derivative financiai instruments.

Agreements to repurchase assets previously sold.

Debt issue repurchase options or agreements, or sinking fund debt repurchase ordinance
requirements.

Special and extraordinary items.
Uncertain tax positions.
Arbitrage rebate liabilities.

Impairment of capital assets.
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n. Material obsolete, damaged or excess inventories.
o. Investments, intangibles, or other assets which have been permanently impaired.

p. Material losses to be sustained in the fulfillment of, or from the inability to fulfill, any service
commitments.

g. Material Josses to be sustained as a result of purchase commifments.
r. Environmental clean-up liabilities.

s. Actions taken by the University management that violate the provisions of federal laws and state
of Ohio taws and regulations, or of contracts and grants applicable to Miami University,

t. Communications, whether oral or written, from regulatory agencies, governmental
representatives, employees, or other concerning investigations or aliegations of noncempliance
with laws and regulations in any jurisdiction, deficiencies in financial reporting practices, or other
matters that could have a material adverse effect on the financial statements,

18. We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments that are required to
be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with the Contingencies Topic of
ASC 450.

19. We have no direct or indirect, legal or moral obligation for any debt of any organization, public or
private that is not disclosed in the financial statement.

20. The University has considered any potential unrelated business income tax items.
21. We have satisfactory title fo all owned assets.

22. The University has outstanding commitments for future contractual obligations for capital
expenditures of approximately $76.1 million at June 30, 2012. '

23. The University has no intention of withdrawing from OPERS, STRS and ARP ot taking any other
actions that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of our plans. The
University is not aware of any occurrences that could result in the termination of any of the plans fo
which it confributes.

24. With respect to supplementary information presented in relation to the financtal statements as a
whole:
a, We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of such information.

b, We believe such information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

¢ The methods of measurement or presentation have naot changed from those used in the prior
period.

d. There are no significant assumptions or interpretations regarding the measurement or
presentation of such information.

25. The methods of significant assumptions used fo estimate the fair value of investments are as follows:

a. The University records its investments at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External
Reporting Pools. The University's investment portfolio is comprised of cash, U.S.
Government obligations, strips, corporate bonds, international bonds, municipal bonds
and commingled bonds. The fair value of these securities is based on quoted market
prices, when available, or market prices provided by recognized broker dealers using
nationally known pricing services.

28. Tax exempt bonds issued have retained their tax-exempt status.

27. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the
financial statements in the event of noncompliance.
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28.

29,

30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

35.

36.
37.

Net asset components (invested in capital assets, net of related debt restricted; and unresiricted) and
designations are properly classified and, when applicable, approved.

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and allocations have been made con a
reasonable hasis.

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
assels.

The University has complied, in all material respects with the 2012 Ohio Compliance Suppiement.

The University is a defendant in various lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. Although
the outcome of the lawsuits cannot be determined with certainty, management believes the ultimate
disposition of such matters will not have a material effect on the University's financial statements.

Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reporied, and depreciated.

We have reviewed, approved, and are responsible for overseeing the preparation and completion of
the basic financial statements and the related notes.

We have reviewed the user control considerations of the compliance Attestation Examination of the
Titie IV Student Financial Assistance Programs of Educations Computer Systems, Inc. as of June 30,
2012 and we believe all applicable controls are in place as of June 30, 2012,

We have complied with all debt covenants, including nonfinancial, included in all debt agreements.

We are responsible for determining that significant.events or transactions that have occurred since
the statement of net asset date and through the date of this letter, have been recognized or disclosed
in the financial statements. No events or transactions have occurred subsequent to the statement of
net asset date and through the date of this letter that would require recognition or disclosure in the
financial statements. We further represent that as of the date of this letter, the financial statements
were complete in a form and format that complied with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, and all approvals necessary for issuance of the financial statements
had been obtained.

In connection with your audit, conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we confirm:

38,

39.

40.

41,
42,
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We are responsible for:

a. Compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreements
applicable to the University.

b. Establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.
We have identified and disclosed to you:

a. Al laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that have a direct and
material effect on the determinations of financial statement amounts or other financial data
significant to audit objectives.

b. There are no violations (and possible violations) of laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts
and grant agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the auditor's report on
noncompliance.

We have no knowledge of fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements,
or abuse that has been reported.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We have identified for you previous audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other
studies related to the objectives of the audit being undertaken and the corrective action taken to
address significant findings and recommendations.
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43, We will distribute the financial statements and the report on internal control over financial reporting,
prepared in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, to the Board of Trustees,
management, federal award agencies, state funding agencies, and pass-through eniities,

44. We have reviewed, approved and take full responsibility for the financial statements and the related
notes and acknowledge the auditor’s role in the preparation of the information.

In connection with your audit of federal awards conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, we confirm:

45. We are responsible for complying, and we have complied, with the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133. -

46. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and we have established and maintained,
effective internal control over compliance for federal programs that provides reasonable assurance
that we are managing federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of
contracts or grant agreements that could have a material effect on our federal programs.

47. We have prepared the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133 and have Included expenditures made during the period being audited for all awards provided
by federal agencies in the form of grants, federal cost-reimbursement contracis, loans, loan
guarantees, property (including donated surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest
subsidies, insurance, direct appropriations, and other assistance. We further acknowledge that:

2. The methods of measurement or presentation have not materially changed from those
used in the prior period.

b. We are responsible for understanding and complying with the compliance requirements
refated to the preparation of the schedule.

48, We are responsible for understanding and complying with the requirements of laws, regulations, and
the provisions of contracts and grant agreements related to each of Miami University's federal
programs and have complied, in all material respects, with those requiremenits,

49. We have identified and disclosed to you the requirements of laws, regulations, and the provisions of
contracts and grant agreements that are considered to have a direct and material effect on each
major program.

50. \We have made available all contracts and grant agreements (including amendments, if any} and any
other correspondence relevant to federal programs and related activities that have taken piace with
federal agencies or pass-through entities.

51, There are no amounts of questioned or known noncompiiance with the direct and material
compliance requirements of federal awards.

52. We believe that we have complied with the direct and material compliance requirements,

53. We have made available all documentation related to compliance with the direct and material
compliance requirements, including information related to federal program financial reports and
claims for advances and reimbursements.

54. We have provided you our interpretations of any compliance requirements that are subject to varying
interpretations. :

55. We have disclosed to you any communications from grantors and pass-through entities concerning
possible noncompliance with the direct and material compliance requirements, including
communications received from the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of
your report.

56. There are no findings received and related corrective actions taken for previous audits, atiestation
engagements, and internal or external monitoring that directly relate to the objectives of the
compliance audit, including findings eceived and corrective actions taken from the end of the period
covered by the compliance audit to the date of your report.

57. We are responsible for taking corrective action on audit findings of a compliance audit.

58. There are no prior audit findings by federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities.
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59. There are no subsequent events that provide additional evidence with respect to condittons that
existed at the end of the reporting period that affect noncompliance during the reporting period.

80. There is no known noncompliance with direct and material compliance requirements occurring
subsequent to the period covered by your report.

61. There are no changes in internal control over compliance or other factors that might significantly
affect internal control subsequent to the date as of which compliance is audited.

62. Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are supported by the
books and records from which the basic financial statements have been prepared.

63. The copies of federal program financial reports provided to you are true copies of the reports
submitted, or electronically fransmitted, to the federal agency or pass-through entity, as applicable.

64. We have monitored subrecipients to determine that they have expended pass-through assistance in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations and have met the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133.

65. We have issued management decisions timely after the receipt of subrecipients’ auditor's reports that
identified noncompliance with laws, regulations, or the provisions of contracts or grant agreements,
and we have ensured that subrecipients have taken the appropriate and timely corrective action on
findings.

66. We have considered the results of subrecipient audits and have made any necessary adjustments to
our own books and records.

67. We have charged costs lo federal awards in accordance with applicable cost principles.
68. We are responsible for, and have accurately prepared, the summary schedule of prior audit findings.

9. We have accurately completed appropriate sections of the data collection form. We further
acknowledge our responsibility for the complete, accurate, and timely filing of the data collection form
with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse.

70. We have disclosed all contracts or other agreements with service organizations.

71. We have received no communications from service organizations relating to noncompliance at those
organizations.

72. During the course of your audit, you may have accumuiated records containing data that shouid be
reflected in our books and recerds. All such data have been so refiected. Accordingly, copies of
such records in your possession are no ionger needed by us.

; : ‘ }
Or, Davie-67 Hddge, President

Dr._ David K. Greamer, Vice President for Finance and
Business Servijces and Treasurer

Mr. Dale C. Hinri'éhs; ASsociate Vice Bresident for Finance and Gontroller
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To the Finance and Audii Committee
Miami University
Oxford, Ohio

This letter includes comments and suggestions with respect to matters that came to our attention in
connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Miami University for the year ended June 30,
2012. These items are offered as constructive suggestions to be considered part of the ongoing process
of modifying and improving the University's practices and procedures.

Recommendation

During the course of the audit, we were made aware that invoices refating to a construction project were
not processed in a timely tashion, which resulted in a post-closing entry required to reflect this activity in
the fiscal year 2012 financial results. We recommend that management review the financial transaction
process relating to ongoing construction projects in order to ensure financial transactions are processed
in a timely and efficient fashion for accurate financial reporting.

Management’s Response

The University has formed a Lean team with representation from the Contract Management Office and
the Finance Offices to review each step for processing of construction project financial transactions. The
outcome of this process review will be to ensure the appropriate internal controls are in place and that
transactions are effectively and efficiently processed in a timely manner.

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Finance and Audit Committee, the Board of
Trustees, management and others within the University and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties. We appreciate serving Miami University and would be
happy to assist you in addressing and implementing any of the suggestions in this letter.

/%M e

Cleveland, Ohio
December 6, 2012

Member of the RSM International network of independent accounting, tax and consulting firms,
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Independent Auditor's Report

President and Board of Trustees of Miami University
Oxtord, Chio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely
presented component unit of Miami University (the University}, a component unit of the State of Ohio, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the University’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financiai statements are the responsibility of the
University's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. The financial statements of the University for the year ended June 30, 2011 were audited by
other auditors, whose report dated October 14, 2011, expressed an unqualified opinion on those
statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2012 financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of
the University as of June 30, 2012 and the respective changes in net assets and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 15,
2012 on our consideration of the University's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of
our audit.

Member of the RSM International network of independent accaunting, tax and consulting firms,
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Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 11 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the fimited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

/?c% L~

Cleveland, Chio
October 15, 2012
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Miami University

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012

Introduction

The foliowing discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of
Miami University for the year ended June 30, 2012. This discussion should be read in conjunctlon with the
accompanying financial statements and footnotes.

The University's annual report consists of this Management's Discussion and Analysis, the statement of
net assets, the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets, the statement of cash flows,
and the notes to the financial statements. The financial statements of the University have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when the related liability has been incurred. The financial activity of the Miami University Foundation, a
component unit of the University, is included through a discrete presentation as part of the-University's
financial statements.

The financial statements, footnotes, and this discussion have been prepared by and are the responsibility
of University management.

Financial Highlights

For a third consecutive year, the University reported favorable year-end results. Stable enroliment, a
modest tuition increase, and a focus on reducing operating costs are all contributing factors to these
successful results. :

Qverall the University's financial position improved at June 30, 2012. Total assets rose 12.2 percent from
$1.276 to $1.431 billion. Liabiiities increased $115.6 million and totaled $530.1 million. Significant
financial events during fiscal year 2012 were:

« For only the second time in the last six years, Miami increased tuition for Chio students. The
University implemented a 3.5 percent tuition and fee increase for resident undergraduate students
and a 3.0 percent increase for non-resident undergraduate students.

» The fall 2011 first-year enroliment was 3,607 on the Oxford campus, which is approximately the same
as the previous year, but surpassed the goal of 3,550 students. Non-resident first-year enrollment
was 38 percent as compared to 33 percent for the fall 2010 class. In addition, there was a 15 percent
increase in transfer students and regional campus relocation students and a 74 percent increase in
international students for fall 2011. The first-year class enroliment on the Hamilton and Middletown
campuses increased by 100 and 18 students, respectively.

¢ Fiscal year 2012 marked the end of the federal fiscal stabilization program. In fiscal year 2010 and
2011 funding from this program was distributed to Ohio higher education institutions as a reptacement
for a portion of the state share of instruction. Combining this $11.7 million loss of funding with the
reductions in state instructional and capital appropriations resulted in a $19.2 million or 25.4 percent
decrease in overall state support.

e On July 1, 2011, the Miami University Foundation entered into a Pocled Investment Agreement with
Miami University whereby the Foundation will collectively manage all of the Foundation and Universily
endowment and quasi-endowment funds in a single investment pool. This change will lead to
improved efficiency, but more importantly, extend the expertise of the Foundation’s Investment
Committee to the entire endowment.

» Cash flow was strongly positive during the fiscal year. Operational investments experienced positive
returns for the third consecutive year and recorded earnings of 1.9 percent. These results were
achieved in spite of the continued near zero short-term interest rates. The combined University and
Foundation endowment poois reported negative returns of 3.3 percent, which was due primarily to
market deciines in the giobal public equity market,
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Financial Highlights (Continued)

« Forfiscal year 2012, the University increased salaries by two percent. However, continued reduction
in positions and unfilled vacant positions stabilized general fund salary expense on all three
campuses at $163.9 million or a $1.1 million decrease for the fiscal year. Although the volume of
health insurance claims increased 1.8 percent, benefits expense was $7.8 million less than budget,
primarily attributable to the number of vacant positions.

» In December 2011, an additional $148.8 million in general receipts revenue bonds were issued to
fund planned capital projects (see the capital assets and debt administration section for more
information).

Statement of Net Assets

The statement of net assets presents the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the University as of the end
of the fiscal year. The difference between total assets and total liabilities, or net assets, is one indicator of
the overall strength of the institution. Also, the increase or decrease in total net assets indicates whether
the financial position of the institution is improving or declining. Except for capitat assets, all other assets
and liabitities are measured at a point in time using current values. Capital assets are recorded at
histarical cost less an allowance for depreciation.

Net assets are classified into three major categories. The first category, invested in capital assets net of
related debt, reports the institution's net equity in property, plant, and equipment. The second major
category, restricted net assets, reports net assets that are owned by the institution, but the use or
purpose of the funds is restricted by an external source or entity. This category is subdivided into two
types: nonexpendable and expendable. Nonexpendable restricted net assets are primarily endowment
funds that may be invested for income and capital gains, but the endowed principal may not be spent.
Expendable restricted net assets may be spent by the institution, but only for the purpose specified by the
donor, grantor, or other external entity. The third category, unrestricted net assets, is separated into two
types: allocated and unaliocated. Allocated unrestricied net assets are available to the institution, but are
set aside for a specific purpose by University palicy, management, or the governing board. Unallocated
unrestricted net assets are available to be used for any lawful purpose of the institution.

2012 2011 2010
Assets
Current asseis $ 529,678,151 $ 388226232 $ 218,683,477
Capital assets, net 738,665,680 713,966,987 704,302,948
Long-term investments 155,941,906 167,652,463 146,384,200
Other asseis 7,035,261 6,355,458 6,655,414
Total assets $ 1.431,320,998 $ 1,276,201,140 $ 1,076,026,039
Liabilities .
Gurrent liabilities $ B5,396,962 § 74,628,054 § 70,283,575
Noncurrent liabilities 444,744,520 339,894,618 229 584,437
Total liabilities 530,141,482 414,522,673 299,868,012
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 482,596,938 475,850,789 480,984,748
Restricted net assets — nonexpendable 84,392,200 89,023,106 76,826,360
Restricted net assets — expendable 63,999,857 56,633,817 50,709,308
Unrestricted net assets — allocated 262,999,984 233,523,028 162,523,346
Unrestricted net assets — unallocated 7,190,637 6,647,727 5,014,265
Total net assets 901,179,516 861,678,467 776,158,027
Total liabilities and net assets $ 1431320998 § 1,276,201,140 §$ 1,076,026,038
4
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012

Financial Hightights (Continued)
Fiscal Year 2012

Total assets of the institution increased 12.2 percent or $155.1 million in fiscal year 2012. This increase
was primarily a result of the increase in cash and cash equivalents and non-depreciable capital assets.
The $111.6 million or 76.7 percent inctease in cash and cash equivalents is primarily attributable to the
$193.6 million in unspent Series 2010 and 2011 general receipts revenue bond proceeds. For more
detailed information see the Investment Report included in this report. Details of the $25.6 million
increase in non-depreciable capital assets and the $0.9 million decrease in depreciable capital assets is
provided in the capital assets and debt administration section of this report.

Total liabilities of the institution increased $115.6 million or 27.9 percent, which was primarily the net
result of the $148.8 million issuance of Series 2011 general receipts revenue bonds and the repayment of
outstanding bonds, notes, and leases payable. A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2011 bonds were
used to refund $34.3 million for the Series 2003 General Receipts bonds. Additional details on bonds,
notes and leases are provided in the capital assets and debt administration section of this report. Other
current and long-term liabilities remained relatively unchanged. Overall, net assets increased by $39.5
million.

Fiscal Year 2011

Total assets increased 18.6 percent or $200.2 million while total liabilities increased $114.7 miilion or 38.2
percent. The net increase in assets is primarily a result of the increase in cash and cash equivalents from
greater operating efficiencies in Residence and Dining Halls, increases in investments resulting from
strong investment returns, unspent Series 2010 general receipts revenue bond proceeds, and an
increase in capital assets. The issuance of Series 2010 general receipts revenue bonds and repayment of
outstanding bonds, notes, and leases payable was the primary reason for the decrease in liabilities.
Overall, net assets increased by $85.5 million.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets presents the University's results of
operations for the fiscal year. The revenues and expenses are generally reported as either operating or
non-operating. Operating revenues are generated by providing goods and services to customers and
constituencies of the institution. Operating expenses are incurred when goeds and services are provided
by vendors and employees for the overall operations of the University. Non-operating revenues include
the student instructional subsidy from the state of Ohio, while other revenues include the state's capital
appropriation. Investment returns are also included in non-operating revenue. Interest on debt is the
primary compenent of non-operating expense, '

In fiscal year 2012, total revenues of the institution from all sources were approximately $564.2 miilion,
which represents a $31.6 million or 5.3 percent decrease. Approximately 76.3 percent of revenues were
classified as operating, and 20.7 percent were classified as non-operating revenues.

2012 2011 2010
Operating revenues $ 430,625,582 § 410,610,658 § 397,994,014
Non-operating revenues 116,579,887 166,003,510 154,965,266
Other revenues 16,852,417 19,184,631 24,667,510
Total revenues 564,157,886 595,798,800 577,626,790
Operating expenses (507,161,009) (497,451,887) (499,950,810}
Non-operating expenses (17,495,828) (12,826,673) (9,537,782}
Total expenses (524,656,837} (510,278,360) (509,488,592}
Increase in net assets $ 355010489 § 85520440 § 68,138,198
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June 30, 2012

Financial Highlights (Continued)

The University revenue base is shown in the accompanying chart. Studeni tuition and fees make up the
fargest percentage of revenues at just less than 50 percent, while auxiltary enterprises such as residence
and dining halls, several student recreational facilities, and the bookstore account for the second highest
amount. For the third consecutive year, state appropriations decreased by $1.8 million or 2.6 percent,
which was anticipated as part of the budget. Compounding this decrease, the federal fiscal stabilization
funds were no longer available for 2012, which was also anticipated in the 2012 budget. Gifts, grants, and
contracts remained relatively unchanged from last fiscal year, white endowment and investment income
decreased substantially due to factors that were previously discussed.

Total Revenues ($ in Millions)

{350 50 $50 $100 5150 5200 5250 $300

Student Fees
Auxiliary Enterprises
State Appropriations

State Capital Appropriations

Federal fiscal stabilization funds

Gifts, Grants and Contracts

Net Investment Gain/{Loss)

Other 2012 Revenues

= 2011 Revenues
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Financial Highlights (Continued)

Miami continues to expand the merit scholarship packages for in-state and out-of-state students in order
to recognize student achievement and to continue to make a high quality education more affordable for
parents and students. In fiscal year 2012, Miami-funded financial aid, excluding Qhio Leader and Ohio
Resident Scholarships, increased by $5.4 million or 10.2 percent. In total, financial aid awards were
$226.8 million.

Student Financial Aid
2012 Total = $226.8
{$ in miflions})

Miami - athletic
Miami - donor scholarships,
designated %94

scholarships, Ohio Grants Ohio
_ $9.8 $18 ' Leader/Ohia
Federal Grants ’ Resident

& Work Study,

$35.4 \

Scholarships,
$5.0

Federal Loans,
$1147
Miami - annually
budgeted
scholarships,

$38.9 Private Loans,

$11.8

Fiscal Year 2012

Operating revenues increased by 4.9 percent or $20.0 million in fiscal year 2012. This increase was the
net result of several factors including a 3.5 percent tuition and fee increasé for resident undergraduate
students and a 3.0 percent increase for non-resident undergraduate students on all three campuses and
a 3.5 percent increase in room and board rates. In addition, beginning in the fall of 2008, the University
began phasing out the 2004 tuition and scholarship plan. in FY2012, only fifth-year Ohio students
remained in the earlier program. The phase-out of the program caused the decrease in tuition, fees, and
other student charges and the decrease in the Ohio Leader and Ohio Resident Scholarships.

Operating expenses increased by 2.0 percent or $9.7 million. This increase is primarily a result of a two
percent salary increase for all employees and the payments to outside consultants for operational reviews
in the continuing effort to reduce operating costs. Increases in operating expenses coniinue to be
controlled through salary savings that are a direct result of the reduction in positions and number of
vacant positions throughout the fiscal year.
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Financial Highlights (Continued)

The majority of the $54.1 million decrease in non-operating revenues and expenses is reflected in the
$35.6 million decrease in net investment income, the elimination of the $11.7 million in federal fiscal
stabilization funds, as was previously discussed, and a $4.7 million increase in the interest payments on
outstanding debt. The increase in interest on debt is related to the issuance of the Series 2011 general
receipts revenue bonds. Other income remained relatively unchanged from last fiscal year.

In other revenues, the relatively small increases in capital grants, gifts and additions to permanent
endowments were offset by the decrease in state capital appropriations. The state legislature did not
appropriate any capital funds for the two-year capital budget cycle.

Fiscal Year 2011

Operating revenues increased by $12.6 million primarily due to a 3.0 percent increase in undergraduate
tuition on all three campuses and a 2.9 percent increase in room and board rates. Operating expenses
decreased by $2.5 million primarily due to the reductions in positions and a decrease in departmental
non-personnel spending.

The majority of the increase in non-operating revenues and expenses was attributable to the $8.9 million
increase in net investment income and the $6.4 million increase in federal grants. Offsetting these
increases was the $3.4 million increase in interest on debt. Other revenues decreased due to the decline in
receipts for capital grants and gifts.

Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows presents detailed information about the major sources and uses of cash by
the institution for the fiscal year. The cash flow analysis is divided into four types of cash flows: operating
activities, noncapital financing activities {(which includes the state appropriations as well as gift revenues),
capital and related financing activities {which includes debt activity}, and investing activities.

2012 2011 2010
Net cash used for operating activities $ (36,652,109) ¢ (45,872,344) $ (68,726,251)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 118,868,486 133,599,588 127,505,489
Net cash provided by/(used for} capital and related
financing activilies 48,751,164 78,066,433 (39,063,674}
Net cash provided by/{used for) investing activities (19,415,722} (77,247 ,582) 3,917,536
Net increase in cash 111,551,819 84,546,005 23,633,100
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning of year 145,379,653 60,833,558 37,200,458
End of year $ 256,931,472 § 145379653 § 60,833,558

The $111.6 million increase in the fiscal year 2012 cash and cash equivalents balance relates primarily to
the unspent and invested proceeds associated with the series 2010 and 2011 general receipts revenue
bonds.

Throughout the year, cash was used for capital acquisitions, payment of debt, investment activities, and
operating activities. These uses of cash were offset in part by the cash provided by tuition and fees, state
appropriations, sales by auxiliary enterprises, gifts, and grants.
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Financial Highlights (Continued)
Capital Assets and Debi Administration

During fiscal year 2012, the University completed and capitalized several projects. These projects were
funded by a combination of bond proceeds, state capital appropriations, gifts, and local funding. The bond
proceeds were generated from the 2010A and 2010B Series General Receipts Revenue Bonds totaling
$125 million and the 2011 Series General Receipts Revenue Bonds totaling $148.8 million. Major projects
capitalized in 2012 include renovation projects at Hughes Hall, Mosler Hall, Upham Hall, Laws Hall, Harris
Dining Hall, and the Shriver Center. See footnote 4 for additional information concerning capital assets
and accumulated depreciation.

On December 21, 2011, the University issued $148,775,000 in General Receipts Revenue Bonds. The
proceeds were used to refund $34.3 million of the remaining Miami University General Receipts Bonds,
Series 2003. The proceeds are also being used to provide funding for the second phase of a multi-phase
effort to renovate all campus student housing and dining facilities.

During fiscal year 2012, the University paid off the outstanding note payable from the U.S. Department of
Education in the amount of $1,733,715. The note carried an interest rate of 5.5 percent and was
scheduled to mature in 2026. '

The University is planning to issue general receipts revenue bonds during fiscal year 2013 totaling
approximately $125 million. The primary consideration for the decision is the current interest rates on tax
exempt bonds and cost of construction, which are both at historic lows. Proceeds from the bond sale are
expected to be used to continue construction and renovation of the housing and dining facilities.

The University’s bond rating remained the same with a rating of Aa3 from Moody's Investors Services and
a rating of A+ from Standard and Poor’s. For more detailed information on current outstanding debt, see
footnote 6.

Economic Factors That Witl Affect the Future

Miami University continues to implement the recommendations of the Strategic Priorities Task Force
(SPTF) which were approved in 2011, The goals of these recommendations include prioritizing and
aligning the University's strategic goals with the new economic reality and competitive higher education
market, creating a long-term sustainable baseline budget, identifying strategic options for improving the
resource base, and providing a frameweork that will guide decisions over the next five years in order to
advance Miami University as a premier national university. The recommendations are intended to
produce approximately $10 million in new revenue and approximately $30 million in expense reductions
through improved efficiencies, savings and reallocation of funds. After the first three years of the plan, the
University is on target to achieve these financial goals.

The University’s initial efforts focused on reducing operating expenses. Although these cost reduction
efforts will continue toward the $30 million goal, the university has increased the efforts o identify new
sources of revenue that will be needed to sustain the academic programs into the future. Examples of
new revenue sources being considered include the addition of a winter term, expending the course
offerings in the summer term, and enhancing on-line course offerings.
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Miami University

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012

Financial Highlights (Continued)
Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future (Continued)
Revenues

The fall 2012 first-year enrollment is approximately 3,725 at the Oxford campus, which represents a 4.5
percent increase over the previous year and surpassed the goal of 3,600 students. Non-resident first-year
enrollment is 38.5 percent as compared to 38 percent for the fail 2011 class. In addition, transfer students
and regional campus relocation students decreased by 32 students or 13.2 percent. International
students remained relatively the same as the previous fiscal year. These continuing positive results are
directly attributable to numerous initiatives including integrating predictive modeling and market analysis,
expanding recruitment and communication efforts to prospective students and parents, hiring and
strategic placement of additional regional recruiters, increased high schoeol visits both nationwide and in
Ohio, and the continuation of the enhanced merit scholarship guarantee. Enroliments at the Hamilton
campus decreased by 13.4 percent while the Middletown campus decreased by 4.1 percent. For fall
2012, the University was authorized to increase tuition by 3.5 percent for all students. For the second
consecutive year, the University implemented a 3.5 percent tuition and fee increase for resident
undergraduate students and a 3.0 percent increase for non-resident undergraduate students.

For fiscal year 2013, the university’s state share of instruction is budgeted to increase by $1.5 million or
2.8 percent for the Oxford campus and $0.2 million or 3.1 percent for the Hamilton campus. The
Middletown campus state share of instruction will decrease by $0.2 miliion or 4.0 percent. In addition,
through the work of leaders from higher education institutions in Ohio, the University will receive $19.3
million in capital appropriations. The majority of these funds or $18.2 million is earmarked to renovate
Kreger Hall, while the remaining $1.1 million will be for projects on the regional campuses. The State of
Ohio's financial outlook has stabilized over this past fiscal year. State tax and other revenues have
exceeded projections, while expenses appear to be on budget. However, the likelihood of substantial
increases in state support is unlikely in the near future. The volatility and uncertainty of the national and
world economies continue to be a concern as we enter the last quarter of 2012,

During 2012, the university experienced a 10.3 percent increase in donor contributions toward the Love
and Honor Campaign. As of August 2012, the University’s capital campaign commitments totaled $455.9
million toward the goal of $500 million. These funds will bring much needed support to the instructional,
scholarly, and construction programs in the years to come.

Expenditures

In correlation with the recommendations of the SPTF, the 2013 expenditure budget includes an additional
$6.2 million in reductions related to the Strategic Priorities initiatives. This decrease is offset by a
budgeted 2.0 to 2.5 percent salary increase for faculty and staff.

The University plans to transition from its traditional incremental budget framework to Responsibility
Center Management (RCM). Institutional planning and assessment began in fiscal year 2012, the models
are being run in parallel in fiscal year 2013, and RCM is scheduled to be implemented in fiscal year 2014,
The RCM budget module provides a decentralized managerial framework for internal budgeting and
financial reporting that allows academic divisions a broad control over the amount of tuition revenue
generated and the costs incurred from academic programs.

10
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Financial Highlights (Continued)
Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future (Continued)

Expenditures (Continued)

The world of higher education continues fo be one of constant change and transformation. Technological
advances, world and national economic stresses, increased competition, and changing demographics
create challenges for Miami University’s success in the future. President Hodge, in his 2012 Annual
Address stated, “...success requires an inspiring vision, focused goals, and high performance execution.”
In order to achieve the success to which we aspire, the University wili embark on developing a new
strategic plan, the Miami 2020 Plan, during fiscal year 2013. The five goals of this plan are:

1.

2.

fnnovative Learning and Discovery — Promote an innovative, engaged, learning and discovery
environment that produces extracrdinary student and scholarly success.

Transformational Work Environment — Build a campus culture that stimulates and recognizes
creativity, entrepreneurial thinking, and exemplary performance.

Global Engagement and Inclusive Cuffure — Extend our global connections and strengthen a cuiture
of inclusion, integrity, and collaboration that embraces a changing and diverse society.

Dynamic Organizational Design — Pursue forward-looking programs, activities, and structures that
ensure academic success and financial sustainability in the evolving landscape of higher education.
Effective Partnerships and Qutreach — Forge effective partnerships and contributions that impact the
region, state, nation, and world.

The entire University wilt be invited to collaborate in a planning effort based on the goals of the Miami
2020 Plan as we look toward the future in order to be better prepared to respond to the ever growing
challenges and seize the opportunities that produce extracrdinary student and scholarly success.

11
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University Foundation

2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets
Current Assets :
Cash and cash equivalents $ 256,931,472 $ 145,379,653 $ 25,073,256 $ 19,750,070
Investments 226,646,046 197,759,313 - -
Accounts, pledges and notes receivable, net 38,532,756 38,231,922 15,690,294 17,565,673
Inventories 4,230,484 3,811,172 - -
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 3,337,393 2,944,172 - -
Total current assets 529,678,151 388,226,232 40,763,650 37,315,743
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalenis - - 1,424,934 1,474,783
Investments 155,941,906 167,652,463 378,373,130 234,950,282
Pledges and notes receivable, net 7,035,261 6,355,458 34,257,166 31,552,046
Nondepreciable capital assets 102,673,230 77,077,480 - -
Depreciable capital assets, net 635,992,450 636,889,507 - -
Total noncurrent assets 901,642,847 887,974,908 414,055,230

Total assels

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Deposits
Long-term debt - current portion
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities

Accrued compensated absences

Bonds payable

Note payable

Capilal leases payable

Federal Perkins [can program

Other noncurrent liabilities
Total noncurrent liabilities
Tota! liabilities

Net Assels
Invested in capiial assets, net of related debt
Restricted net assets:
Nonexpendable
Expendabie
Unrestricted net assets
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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$ 1,431,320,998

$ 1.276,201,140

$ 454,818,780

267,977,111

$ 305,292,854

$ 25,102,294 §$ 21,642,092 $ 13,792,870 § 11,373,323
17,594,648 15,137,155 - -
1,504,057 1,356,104 - -
9,811,295 " 10,499,129 - -
11,177,678 0,806,927 - -
20,206,990 16,186,647 - -
- - 533,205 547,944
85,396,962 74,628,054 14,326,075 11,921,267
14,302,889 15,179,374 - -
421,005,530 315,697,424 - -
- 1,656,789 - -
3,006,952 1,003,045 - -
6,429,149 6,457,987 - -
- - 164,119,175 10,390,169
444,744,520 339,894,619 164,119,175 10,390,169
530,141,482 414,522,673 178,445,250 22,311,436
482,586,538 475,850,789 - -
64,392,200 89,023,106 160,563,050 150,091,389
63,999,857 56,633,817 115,915,292 132,640,934
270,190,521 240,170,755 (104,812) 249,095
901,172,516 861,678,467 276,373,530 282,981,418

$ 1,431,320,998

$ 1,276,201,140

$ 454,818,780

$ 305,292,854
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Finance and Auditor's Report

Staternents of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Miami University

Dec 2012

Unkversity Foundation

2012 2011 2012 2011
Operating Revenues
Tuition, fees, and other siudent charges $ 340.805,074 § 354,624,732 % - 3 -
Less Ohio Leader and Ohio Resident Scholarships (5,007,805) (36,577,490) - -
Less allowance for student scholarships {64,025,371) (60,762,961} - -
Net tuition, fees, and other student charges 280,771,898 267,284,281 - -
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 126,734,751 119,743,824 - -
Less allowance for student scholarships {5,192,304) (4,701,315} - -
Net sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 120,542,447 115,042,509 - -
Federal contracts 14,421,387 14,982,882 - -
Gilts - - 9,854,487 8,131,893
Sales and services of educational activiiies 2,462,329 3,909,507 - -
Private contracis 2,451,073 2,476,779 - -
State contracts 1,092,148 1,200,489 - -
Local contracts 327,526 286,524 - -
Other 8,556,764 5,427,688 - -
Total operating revenues 430,625,582 410,610,659 9,854,487 8,131,893
Operating Expenses
Education and General
instruction and departmental research 167,277,750 166,583,779 - -
Separately budgeted research 16,653,175 16,394,725 - -
Public service 1,282,434 1,881,871 - -
Academic support 52,820,081 49,731,409 - -
Student services 21,778,626 23,250,532 - -
Instituiional support 45,741,162 37,757,289 - -
Operation and maintenance of plant 32,575,043 31,858,558 - -
Scholarships and fellowships 21,194,883 23,023,411 - -
Augxiliary enterprises 105,943,125 103,598,289 - -
Depreciation 37,940,355 38,339,812 - -
Qther 3,944,575 4,932,002 - -
Total operating expenses 507,161,009 497,451,687 - -
Net operating gain (loss) (76,535,427} (86,841,028) 9,854,487 8,131,883
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
State appropriaiions 69,013,751 70,795,961 - -
Federal fiscal stabitization funds - 11,669,447 - -
Gifts, including $18,662,382 in FY12 and $14,660,423 in FY11
from the University Foundation 18,731,475 16,746,649 - -
Federal grants 27,104,370 30,020,591 - -
Net investment income (loss), net of invesiment expense of
$2,055,980 for University and $2,926,590 for the Foundation in FY12
$2,564,317 for University and $2,599,412 for the Foundation in FY11 (1,819,622} 33,824,309 {7,798,695) 33,526,615
State granits 1,036,961 1,319,694 - -

Interest on debt
Payments to Miami University
Other non-operating revenues (expenses)
Net non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income {loss) before other revenues, expenses,
and gains or [osses

Other Hevenues, Expenses, Gains or Losses
Staie capital appropriation
Capital grants and gifts
Additions to permanent endowments
Total other revenues, expenses, gains, or losses

Increase (decrease) in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year
Net assets at end of year

Ses Motes to Financial Statements.
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(17,368,471}

{12,710,910)

(18,662,382}

{14,660,423)

2,385,595 1,510,896 {177,141} 1,168,881
99,084,053 153,176,837 (26,638,213} 20,035,073
22,548,632 66,335,609 (16,783,732) 28,166,066

6,625,692 12,366,955 . -

7,452,710 5,081,520 - -
2,874,015 1,736,156 10,175,844 7,117,265
16,952,417 19,164,631 10,175,844 7,117,265
39,501,049 85,620,440 (6,607,838) 35,284,231
861,678,467 776,158,027 282,981,418 247,697,187

$ 901,179,516

$ 861,678,467

§ 276,373,530

$ 282,981,418
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Miami University

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

2012

Dec 2012

2011

Cash Flows From Operating Actlvities

Tuition, fees, and other student charges

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises

Contracts

QOther operating receipts

Payments for employee compensation and benefits

Payments to vendors for services and materials

Student scholarships

Loans issued to students and employees

Collection of loans from students and employees
Net cash (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
State share of instruction and federal fiscal stabilization funds
Grants for noncapital purposes
Gifts
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
State capital appropriation
Grants for capital purposes
Other capital and related receipts
Proceeds from debt obligations
Payments to construct, renovate, or purchase capital assets
Principal paid on outstanding debt
Interest paid on outstanding debt

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities

Cash Fiows From Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investmenits
Endowment income
QOther investment income (loss) _
Net cash {used in) investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eqguivalents
Beginning

Ending

{Continued)
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$ 344,975,889

$ 325,761,824

126,108,977 121,261,724
17,300,844 21,699,698
10,518,698 9,305,233

(312,179,364)  (314,332,665)

(133,261,798)  (124,815,365)

(90,412,558) (88,487,687)
(1,145,406) (2,155,666}
1,442,609 1,890,560
(36,652,109) (49,872,344)
71,383,197 82,465,408
28,141,331 31,340,285
19,343,958 19,793,895
118,868,486 133,599,588
9,314,704 12,071,153
7,256,911 3,743,418
645,907 765,333
157,134,772 126,633,069
(58,400,237) (41,837,568)
(48,513,723) (12,290,970)
(18,687,170) (11,018,002
48,751,164 78,066,433
61,154,895 87,902,794
(86,204,138)  (168,762,598)
278,759 3,652,354
5,444,762 (40,132)

(19,415,722)

(77,247,582)

111,551,819

145,379,653

84,546,085

60,833,558

$ 256,931,472

$ 145,379,653

Dec 2012
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Miami University
Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
2012 2011

Recanciliation of operaiing loss to net cash flows
Net operating loss, per statement of revenues, expenses
and changes in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Net loss on dispasal of capital assets
Accounts receivable bad debt adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
{used in) operafing activities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable
Accounis payable
Accrued salaries
Compensated absences
Deferred income and deposits
Federal Perkins loans
Net cash (used in} operating activities

Supplemental Disclosure of NonCash Information:
Property and equipment included in accounts payable

Property and equipment acquired by gifts in kind

See Notes to Financial Statemenis.
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$ (76,535,427) $ (86,841,028)
37,940,355 38,339,812
6,762 139,864

26,311 57,685
(1,261,414) 2,569,472
(319,311) 563,562
(396,180) 548,081
344,213 (85,227)
1,159,543 (4,070,213)
2,457,493 (834,472)
(728,532) 1,078,031
682,916 (1,277,110}
{(28,838) (60,801)

$ (36,652,109) $ (49,872,344)
$ 7,797675 § 7,457,701
$ 185800 $ 1,335,103

Dec 2012
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Miami University

Notes to Financial Statements

Note1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Miami University {the University) is a land grant institution chartered by the State of Ohio in 1809 and
governed by a Board of Trustees (the board). The board consists of 14 members, including two student
members and three non-voting national trustees. Voting members are appointed one each year for nine-
year terms by the governor with the advice and consent of the state senate. The two student non-voting
members are appointed for two-year staggered terms by the governor with the advice and consent of the
senate, and the national trustees are appointed by the voting members and can serve for no more than
two consecutive three-year terms.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Boards (GASB) Statement No. 39 sets forth criteria to
determine whether certain organizations for which the University is not financially accountable should be
reported as component units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with the University.
The Miami University Foundation (the Foundation), which is a separate not-for-profit foundation, meets
this criteria due to the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the University.

Note 9 provides additional information on the Foundation. Certain disclosures concerning the Foundation
are not included because it has been audited separately for the year ended June 30, 2012 and reports
have been issued under separate cover.

The University's financial statements are included as a discretely presented component unit in the State of
Ohio's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Basis for presentation: Effective July 1, 2011, the University adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Derivative
Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions. This Standard provides guidance
on accounting for the replacement of counterparties in a derivative transaction. There has been no impact
to the University financial statements due to the adoption of Statement No. 64.

In November 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service
Concession Arrangements. This standard provides guidance on accounting for service concession
arrangements (SCAs) where a government transfers the right to operating a government asset to another
entity in exchange for significant consideration from that entity. The statement is effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2011. The University feels this statement will not have an impact on the
financial statements.

In November 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 81, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. This statement modifies certain requirements for
inclusion of component units in the financial reporting entity. The statement is effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2012. The University has not yet determined the impact this statement will have
on the financial statements.

In December 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Coniained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASE and AICPA Pronouncements. The objective of
this statement is to incorporate into GASB's authoritative literature certain accounting and financial
reporiing guidance that is included in pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
{FASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants {AICPA} issued on or before
November 30, 1988. The statement is effective for pericds beginning after December 15, 2011, The
University has not yet determined the impact this statement wilt have on the financial statements.
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Miami University

Notes to Financial Statements

Note1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

fn June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Defarred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This Standard provides financial reporting guidance for
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net asset reporting requirements. The
statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The University has not yet
determined the impact this statement will have on the financial statements.

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 65, ftems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.
This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as
assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outfiows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that
were previously reported as assets and liabilities. The statement is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2012. The University has not yet determined the impact this statement will have on the
financial statements.

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement Mo. 66, Technical Corrections—2012—an amendment of GASB
Staterments No. 10 and No. 62. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial
reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from
the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The statement is effective for
periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The University has not yet determined the impact this
statement will have on the financial statements.

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an amendment
of GASRB Statement No. 25. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by state and
local governmental pension plans. The statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2013.
The University feels this statement will not have an impact on the financial statements.

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting
and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves information provided
by state and local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other
entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of
accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information,
supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.
The statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2014. The University has determined this
pronouncement will have a substantial impact on the financial statements.

The financial statements of the University have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the related liability has been
incurred. For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered a special-purpose government
engaged only in business-type activities as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 and 35. The University
has elected to apply enly those Financial Accounting Standards Board {FASB) pronouncements issued
on or before November 1989, that are not in conflict with or contradict GASB pronocuncements. The
University has elected not to apply any FASB pronouncements issued after November 1989.

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash consists primarily of cash in banks and money market accounts. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to cash, with an original maturity of
three months or less.
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Miami University

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments: Investmentis that are market traded, such as equity and debt securities, mutual funds, and
cash equivalents, are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices, as established by the major
securities markets. The vaiue of holdings of commingled funds investing in publicly traded stocks and
bonds and not having a readily determined market value for fund units is based on the funds’ net asset
value as supplied by the investment manager. Investments in reai estate are recorded at appraised value
at the date of donation. The issuing insurance companies determine the cash surrender value of the
paid-up life insurance policies annually.

Investment income is recorded on the accrua! basis and purchases and sales of investments are
recorded on a trade-date basis. Investment transactions occurring on or before June 30 that settle after
such date are recorded as receivables or payables.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of first-in, first-out cost or net realizable value.

Capital assets: Land, buildings, and equipment are recorded at cost at date of acquisition or market
value at date of donation in the case of gifts. Intangible assets include patents, trademarks, land rights
and computer software. Land, collections of works of art and historical treasures are capitalized but not
depreciated. Any collection that is not capitalized is charged to operations at the time of purchase.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets. Estimated useful lives are 50 years for buildings; 25 years for infrastructure, library books and
land improvements; 20 years for improvements to buildings; and 5 to 7 years for equipment, vehicles, and
furniture. Intangible assets are depreciated based on the estimated life of each asset. The University's
capitalization threshold is the lower of 5 percent of the original building cost or $100,000 for building
renovations and $5,000 for other capitalized items. The capitalization threshold for intangible assets is
$100,000 except for internally generated computer software which has a threshold of $500,000.

Deferred revenue: Tuition and fees relating to summer sessions that are conducted in July and August
are recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets as deferred revenue. Deferred revenue also
includes the amounts received from grant and contract sponsors that have not yet been earned and
amounts received from a tuition payment service for payments received for the next fiscal year. These
will be recorded as revenue in the following fiscal year.

Operating and non-operating revenue: The University defines operating activities, for purposes of
reporting on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, as those activities that
generally result from exchange transactions such as payments received for providing services and
payments made for services or goods received. Substantially all of the University's expenses are from
exchange transactions. Certain significant revenue streams relied upon for operations are recorded as
non-operating revenues, as defined by GASB Statement No. 35, including state appropriations, gifts, and
investment income.

Bond premiums, discounts and issuance costs: Bond premiums, discounts and issuance costs are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-iine method.
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Miami University

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Compensated absences: Full-time unclassified staff earn vacation at rates of 18 to 22 days per year,
based on the term of their employment contract, with a maximum accrual of 52 days. Classified
employees earn vacation at rates ranging from 10 to 25 days per year, based on years of service, with a
maximum accrual equivalent to the amount earned in three years. Upon retirement, termination, or
death, the employee is compensated at the final rate of pay for unused vacation up to a maximum of 40
days. Faculty accrue no vacation benefits. '

Full-time faculty, unciassified staff, and classified staff earn 15 days of sick leave per year and individuals
who work less than full-time earn sick leave on a pro-rata basis. There is no limit on the number of sick
leave hours that can be accumulated. Upon retirement a staff member with 10 or more years of Ohio
public service is paid for one-fourth the value of earned but unused sick leave not to exceed 30 days,
based on the employee's rate of pay at the time of retirement. The termination payment method is used
to compute the liability for sick leave. Persons leaving employment for reasons other than retirement are
not compensated for unused sick leave.

Net assets: Net assets are divided into three major categories. The first category, invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, reports the institution’s net equity in property, plant, and equipment. The
second major category is restricted net assets. This category contains net assets that are owned by the
institution, but the use or purpose of the funds is restricted by an external source or entity. The corpus of
the nonexpendable restricted net assets is available for investment purposes only. The expendable
restricted net assets may be expended by the institution, but must be spent only for the purpose as
determined by a donor or external entity. The income generated from the nonexpendable restricted
investments and the expendable restricted funds may be used for student [oans, scholarships and
fellowships, instruction, research, and other needs to support the operation of the University. The third
category is unrestricted net assets and is separated into two types: allocated and unallocated. Allocated
unrestricted net assets are available to the institution, but are allocated for a specific purpose within the
institution by University policy, management, or the governing board. The allocated unrestricted net
assets were $262,099,985 and $233,523,028 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Unallocated
unrestricted net assets are available to be used for any lawful purpose of the institution.

Tax status: The University is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 115 of the internal Revenue
Code. As such, the University is subject to federal income taxes only on unrelated business income, if any,
under the provisions of Section 511 in the Internal Revenue Code.

Estimates: Management has made, where necessary, estimates and judgments that affect certain amounts

reported in the financial statements. The estimates and judgments are based on currently available
information, and actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent events: The University has evaluated events occurring between the end of our most recent
fiscal year and October 15, 2012, the date the financial statements were issued.

Reclassifications: Certain items in the 2011 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to
the 2012 presentation.
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_Note 2. Cash and Invesiments

The University’s cash and investment activities are governed by policies adopted by the board in
accordance with authority granted by the Ohio Revised Code. Such policies are implemented by the
treasurer and overseen by the board’s finance and audit committee.

The University's investment strategy incorporates financial instruments that involve varying elements of
risk including market risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, and custodial credit risk. The University's
investment policies and procedures establish risk guidelines for each of the two primary investment pools,
the non-endowment pool and endowment pool. Diversification is a fundamental risk management
strategy for both pools.

Cash and cash equivalents: At year-end, the carrying amount of the University's cash and cash
equivalents was approximately $256.9 million in 2012 and $145.4 million in 2011, respectively. Cash and
cash equivalents consists primarily of cash in banks, money market accounts and the State Treasury
Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio) that include short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible 1o
cash, with an original maturity of three months or less.

Approximately $14.9 million of cash and cash equivalents was covered by federal depository insurance;
$184.4 million was covered by collateral held by third-party trustees pursuant to paragraph 135.181 of the
Ohio Revised Code in collateral pools securing ali public funds on deposit with specific depository
institutions; and the remainder was not collateralized or insured, leaving it exposed to custodial credit risk.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the
University may not be able to recover its deposits or collateral securities. The University maintains active
relationships with multiple cash equivalent accounts to reduce its exposure to custodial credit risk at any
single institution.

Investments: Investments held by the University at June 30, 2012 and 2011 are presented below,
categorized by investment type and credit quality rating. Credit quality ratings provide information about
the investments’ credit risk, which is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. The University's investment management procedures establish guidelines for
average credit quality ratings in the porifolios.
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Note 2.  Cash and Investments (Continued)
The investments as of June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:
Not AA A, Below

Investment Type Fair Value Rated AAA and BBB BBB
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 255485504 § - $ 25548504 § - % -
U.S. Agency bonds 22,464,062 - 22,464,062 - -
Strips 4,939,361 - 4,939,361 - -
Government-backed bonds 16,167,752 - 16,167,752
Corporate bonds 26,628,014 - - 23,007,728 3,620,286
Municipal bonds 3,814,187 - 111,324 3,702,863 -
International bonds 519,126 - - 519,126 -
Common and preferred stocks 459,000 458,000 - - -
Commingled funds 281,703,630 225,074,990 2,589,650 43,518,053 10,620,937
Real estate and other 344,316 344 316 - - -

Total investments $ 282,587,952 $ 205878306 $ 71820653 $ 70,747,770 % 14,141,223
The invesiments as of June 30, 2011, are summarized as foliows:

Not AA, A, Below

Invesiment Type Fair Value Rated AAA and BBB BBB
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 17,841,804 § - $ 17841804 § - 8 -
U.S. Agency bonds 20,339,158 - 20,339,158 - -
Strips 6,529,423 - 6,529,423 - -
Government-backed bonds 14,787,111 - 14,787,111
Corporate bonds 21,248,456 - - 21,140,455 108,001
Municipal bonds 2,438,825 - - 2,438,825 -
International bonds 148,129 - - 148,129
Certificate of deposit 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 -
Common and preferred stocks 69,848,129 69,848,129 - - -
Cormnringled funds 158,672,705 122,459,074 36,213,631 -
Limited partnerships 33,229,245 33,229,245 - - -
Real estate and other 328,791 328,791 - - -

Total investments $ 365,411,776 § 225,865,239 $ 59,487,486 $ 79,782,911 $ 256,130

Due to significantly higher cash flows at certain times during the year, the amount of the University's
investment in each of the above investment categories may be substantially higher during the year than

at year-end.

The University's bond invesiments are exposed to interest rate risk, which is the risk that changes in
interest rates, will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Interest rate risk is managed primarily

by adjusting portfolio duration.
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Note2. Cash and Investments (Continued)

Bond investments by length of maturity as of June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Less than More than
investment Type Fair Value 1 Year 110 5 Years 610 10 Years 10 Years
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 25548504 $§ 2222376 § 11,338,953 § 10,686,220 § 1,300,955
U.S. Agency bonds 22,464,062 1,335,103 18,105,805 2,023,154 -
Strips 4,939,361 602,670 3,877,640 - 458,051
Government-backed bonds 16,167,752 - 16,167,752 - -
Corporate bonds 26,628,014 3,104,353 14,571,058 8,708,731 242,872
Internaticnal bonds 519,126 - - 519,126 -
Municipal bonds 3,814,187 253,978 1,008,681 2,551,528 -
Commingled bond funds 58,581,026 1,939,502 43,023,314 10,778,614 2,839,596

Total bonds $ 158,662,032 $ 9457982 §$ 109,093,203 $ 3526B,373 $§ 4842474

Bond investments by length of maturity as of June 30, 2011, are summarized as follows:

Less than More than
Investment Type Fair Value 1 Year 1to 5 Years 6 to 10 Years 10 Years
U.S. Treasury bonds $ 17,841,804 § 1,740,093 § 12,364,704 $ 3,737,007 § -
U.S. Agency bonds 20,339,158 4,022,970 12,757,476 3,558,712 -
Strips - 6,529,423 - 5,748,795 - 779,628
Government-backed bonds 14,787,111 - 14,617,666 169,445 -
Corporate bonds 21,248,456 2,028,930 12,993,739 6,008,984 215,803
International bonds 148,129 - 148,129 - -
Municipal bonds 2,438,825 105,796 1,468,059 864,970 -
Commingled bond funds 36,213,632 - 6,180,014 30,033,618 -
Total bonds $ 110546538 § 7898780 § 66270582 § 44372736 % 895,431

All of the University's investments in publicly traded securities are subject to market risk. As a result, a
significant downturn in the securities markets could adversely affect the market value of University assets.
Investments include approximately $88.0 million and $89.2 million as of June 30, 2612 and 2011,
respectively, managed by global managers, and such international investments are exposed to foreign
currency risk. The University's investments that are exposed to concentration risk consist of securities
issued by the U.S. Treasury which represents 13.80% of investments. No other single issuer represents
more than 5.00% of investments.

Fair values were determined based on prices of established securities markets, with the exception of
some hedge funds and alternative investments whose fair values were provided by the funds’
managements. Alternative investments generally represent investments that are less liquid than publicly
traded securities and include private equity, investments in real assets, and other strategies. Hedge
funds may include, but are not limited to, long and short investments in domestic and international equity
securities, distressed securities, fixed income securities, currencies, commodities, options, futures, and
other derivatives. Many of these securities are intended to reduce market risk, credit risk, and interest
rate risk.
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Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued)

Endowment funds: In July 2011, the University transferred all of its endowment assets to the Miami
University Foundation (Foundation) and entered into a Pooled Invesiment Agreement whereby the
Foundation manages the Foundation and University endowment and gquasi-endowment funds in a single
investment pool (Pooled Fund). The University investment is maintained as a separate fund on the
financial system of the Foundation and receives a proportional share of the Pooled Fund’s activity. The
Foundation owns the assets of the Pooled Fund; the University has an interest in the Pooled Fund, which
is considered an external investment pool to the University. The Foundation’s Pooled Fund is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company. The Foundation's
Board of Directors appoints an Investment Committee, which is responsible for oversight of the Pooled
Fund in accordance with Foundation policies. University investments inciude $155.2 million managed by
the Foundation as of June 30, 2012. The fair value of the University’s position in the Pooled Fund is
based on the University's proportional share of the Pooled Fund, which is marked-to-market annually.
Note 9 provides additional information on the Foundation and the Pooled Fund.

The Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as adopted by the State of Ohio
provides statutory guidelines for prudent management, investment, and expenditure of donor-restricted
endowment funds held by charitable organizations. The University's interpretation of its fiduciary
responsibilities for donor-restricted endowments under UPMIFA requirements, barring the existence of
any donor-specific provisions, is to preserve intergenerational equity to the extent possible and to
produce maximum total return without assuming inappropriate risks. The investment policies governing
these funds look beyond short-term fluctuations in economic cycles toward an investment philosophy that
provides the best total return over very long time periods.

The University employs a total return policy which defines the total amount of dividends, interest and
realized gains to be distributed from the endowment assets. The University Board has approved an
endowment spending policy whereby distributions in accordance with donor restrictions are calculated
according to a formula which gives a 30% weight to market value and a 70% weight to inflation. Annually
the University establishes a spending formula that defines the total amount of dividends, interest and
realized gains to be distributed from the endowment assets to other funds. The authorized spending
amount was $8,146,975 in 2012 and $8,059,182 in 2011. In accordance with donors' stipulations, a
portion of the earnings was returned to endowment principal and the balance of $7,335,241 and
$7,616,131 was distributed for expenditure for 2012 and 2011, respectively. Donor restricted
endowments with insufficient accumulated earnings did not make a current year distribution.
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Note 3. Accounts Receivable

The accounts, pledges and notes receivable as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, are summarized as follows:

2012 2011

Accounts Receivable

Student receivables $ 10,413,722 $ 9,887,857
University Foundation 13,626,854 11,301,092
State capital appropriations 2,474,506 5,183,518
Grants and contracts 4,435,739 3,638,505
Investment trade settlements 406,740 -
Other receivables 2,784,467 2,871,184
Total accounts receivable 34,142,028 32,860,158
Less allowances for doubtful accounts (1,285,000) {1,035,000)
Net accounts receivable $ 32857028 §$ 31,825,156
Pledges Recelvable
Pledges receivable $ 3,704,342 § 3,412,792
Less allowance for doubtful pledges (365,179} (368,784)
Net pledyes receivable $ 3339,163 § 3.044,008
Notes Receivable
Federal loan programs $ 7823165 $ 8,165,126
University loan programs 3,139,661 3,044,090
Total notes receivabie 10,962,826 11,209,218
Less allowance for doubtiul notes (1,581,000) {1,491,000)
Net notes receivable 9,371,826 9,718,216
Total $ 45568017 § 44587380
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Note 4.  Capital Assets
The capital assets and accumulated depreciation as of June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retiremenis Balance
Capital Assets
Land $ 4,841,276 - $ - $ 4,841,276
Collections of works of art and historical
treasures 7,328,565 172,300 - 7,500,865
Consiruction in progress 64,907,639 50,788,676 25,365,226 90,331,089
Total nondepreciable capital assets 77,077,480 50,960,976 25,365,226 102,673,230
Land improvements 29,713,497 1,793,906 - 31,507,403
Buildings 773,146,074 28,285,568 - 801,431,642
Infrastructure 116,034,312 274,124 - 116,308,436
Machinery and equipment 114,006,008 4,405,844 4,117,001 114,204,851
Library books and publications 64,305,539 1,281,083 - 685,586,622
Vehicles 9,136,768 406,290 267,319 9,275,739
Intangible assels 16,193,515 603,245 - 16,796,760
Total depreciable capital assets 1,122,535,713 37,050,060 4,384,320 1,155,201,453
Total capital assets 1,199,613,193 88,011,036 29,749,546 1,257,874,683
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 313,364,528 22,049,273 - 335,413,801
Infrastructure 45,624,965 4,216,269 - 49,841,234
Land improvements 10,463,882 1,015,025 - 11,478,907
Machinery and equipment 57,857,975 6,743,675 ° 4,117,001 60,484,649
Library books and publications 37,726,698 2,242,016 - 39,968,714
Vehicles 7,133,726 645,748 260,557 7,518,917
Intangible assets 13,474,432 1,028,349 - 14,502,781
Total accumulated depreciation 485,646,206 37,940,355 4,377,558 519,209,003
Total capital assets, net $ 713,966,987 50,070,681 $ 25,371,988 $ 738,665,680
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Note 4.  Capital Assets (Continued)
The capital assets and accumulated depreciation as of June 30, 2011, are summarized as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Capital Assets
Land $ 4,841,276 % - 5 - $ 4,841,276
Collections of works of art and historical
treasures 6,665,257 663,308 - 7,328,565
Construction in progress 37,406,747 35,617,264 8,116,372 64,907,639
Total nondepreciaable capital assets 48,913,280 36,280,572 8,116,372 77,077,480
Land improvements 28,093,190 1,620,307 - 29,713,497
Buildings 766,005,259 7,140,815 - 773,146,074
Infrastructure 112,718,339 3,315,973 - 116,034,312
Machinery and equipment 114,539,375 4,754,319 5,287,686 114,006,008
Library books and publications 62,619,357 1,686,182 - 64,305,539
Yehicles 9,059,880 261,936 185,058 9,136,768
Intangible asseis 14,993,532 1,199,983 - 16,193,515
Total depreciable capital assets 1,108,028,942 19,879,515 5,472,744 1,122,535,713
Total capital assets 1,156,942,222 58,260,087 13,589,116 1,199,613,193
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings 292,434,553 20,929,975 - 313,364,528
Infrastructure 41,359,644 4,265,321 - 45,624,965
Land improvements 9,505,103 958,779 - 10,463,882
Machinery and equipment 54,354,636 8,655,970 5,152,631 57,857,975
Library books and publications 35,663,290 2,163,408 - 37,726,698
Vehicles 6,898,219 415,756 180,249 7,133,726
Intangible assets 12,523,829 950,603 - 13,474,432
Total accumulated depreciation 452,639,274 38,330,812 5,332,880 485,646,206
Total capital assets, net $ 704,302,948 17,920,275 8,256,236 $ 713,966,987
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Note 5. Long term Liabilities

The long term liabilities as of June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Bonds, Leases, and Notes Payable ’
Bonds payable $ 324595000 § 148,775000 § 45,865,000 $ 427,505,000 $ 18,420,000
Capital leases payable 1,877,335 2,848,719 915,008 3,811,046 804,094
Notes payable 1,733,715 - 1,733,715 - -
Premiums, issue costs, loss on refunding 6,237,855 8,579,192 1,913,621 12,903,426 982,896
Total bonds, leases, and notes payable 334,443,805 160,202,911 50,427,344 444,219,472 20,206,890
Other Liabhilities .
Compensated absences 16,535,478 4,342,508 5,071,040 15,806,946 1,504,057
Federal Perkins loans 6,457,987 255,132 283,970 6,429,149 .-
Total other liabilities 22 993,465 4,597,640 5,355,010 22,236,095 1,504,057
Total $ 357,437,370 % 164,800,551 $ 55782354 $§ 466,455,567 % 21,711,047
The long term liabilities as of June 30, 2011, are summarized as foliows:
Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reduciions Balance Portion
Bonds, Leases, and Notes Payable
Boends payable $ 210,880,000 $ 125,000,000 & 11,285,000 $ 324,505,000 % 14,650,000
Capital leases payable 2,810,442 - 933,107 1,877,335 874,290
Notes payable 1,806,578 - 72,863 1,733,715 76,926
Premiums, issue costs, loss on refunding 5,939,892 773,152 475,189 5,237,855 585,431
Total bonds, ieases, and notes payable 221,436,912 125,773,152 12,766,159 334,443,905 16,186,647
Other Liabilities
Compensaled absences 15,457,447 6,471,632 5,393,601 16,535,478 1,356,104
Federal Perkins lcans 6,518,788 228,515 286,316 6,457,987 -
Total other liabilities 21,976,235 6,700,147 5,682,917 22,993,465 1,356,104
Total $ 243413147 $ 132,473299 § 18449076 § 357,437,370 § 17,542,751

Additional information regarding the bonds, notes, and capital leases is included in Note 6.

Note 6. Indebtedness

The bonds are secured by a pledge of the general receipts of the University. The University may at its
discretion use, or pledge, to the extent lawfully authorized, such other resources as are available for use in
the performance of its obligation under the various trust agreements.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the University issued $148,775,000 in General Receipts Revenue
Bonds with interest raies ranging from 2.00 percent to 5.00 percent and maturities from 2012 to 2036.
The proceeds are being used to provide funding for the second phase of a multi-phase effort to renovate
all campus student housing and dining facilities. A part of the proceeds were also used to refund a
portion of the remaining Miami University General Receipts Bonds, Series 2003. The net change in cash
flows related to the refunding was approximately $2.1 million and the net present value savings was

approximately $1.6 milion. In fiscal year 2012, the University defeased a portion of the Series 2003 bonds by

placing some of the proceeds from the Series 2011 bonds into an escrow account to provide for all future
debt service. The outstanding balance of defeased bonds was $31,215,000 as of June 30, 2012.
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Note 6.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the University issued $125,000,000 in General Receipts Revenue
Bonds consisting of $105,445,000 Series 2010A (Federally Taxabie Build America Bonds — Direct
Payment) and $19,555,000 Series 2010B (Tax-Exempt Bonds). interest rates range from 4.81% 10 8.77%
for the Series 2010A bonds and from 2.00 percent to 5.00 percent for the Series 2010B bonds. Maturities
range from 2017 to 2035 for the Series 2010A bonds and from 2011 to 2016 for the Series 2010B bonds.
The Series 2010 bond proceeds are being used to provide funding for the first phase of planned
improvements to student housing and dining facilities and the first phase of construction of the Armstreng
Student Center.

indebtedness (Continued)

There was no new debt issued by the University in the years ended June 30, 2010, 2008 or 2008.

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the University issued $83,210,000 in General Receipts Revenue
Bonds with interest rates ranging from 3.25 percent to 5.25 percent and maturities from 2010 to 2026.
The proceeds were used to fund capital asset additions.

During the year ended June 30, 2005, the University issued $98,455,000 in General Receipts Revenue
and Refunding Bonds with interest rates ranging from 3.00 percent to 5.00 percent and maturities from
2006 to 2025. The proceeds were used to refund a portion of the remaining Miami University General
Receipts Bonds, Series 1998 and for the funding of additional capital assets. In 2005, the University
defeased a portion of the Series 1998 bonds by placing some of the proceeds from the Series 2005 bonds
into an escrow account to provide for all future debt service. The outstanding balance of defeased bonds
was $11,305,000 and $12,650,000 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

During the year ended June 30, 2003, the University issued $61,400,000 in General Receipts Revenue
and Refunding Bonds. The proceeds were used to refund a portion of the remaining Miami University
General Receipts Bonds, Series 1993 and for the funding of additional capital assets.

The University incurred interest costs of $18,229,548 and $12,865,732 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. For the year ended June 30, 2012, $861,077 of the interest cost was capitalized. For the year
ended June 30, 2011, $154,822 of the interest cost was capitalized.

During fiscal year 2012, the University paid off the outstanding note payable from the U.S. Department of
Education in the amount of $1,733,715. The note carried a 5.50 percent interest rate and was scheduled to
mature in 2026.

The maturity dates, interest rates, and outstanding principal balances as of June 30, 2012, are as foltlows:

Maturity Inferest Outstanding
Dates Rates Debt

Bonds Payable
Series 2011 general raceipts 2013-2033 200% -5.00% $ 148,775,000
Series 2010A general receipts 2018-20368 4.81%-6.77% 105,445,000
Series 2010B general receipls 2013-2017 4.00% -5.00% 16,630,000
Series 2007 general receipts 2013 - 2027 3.25%-5.25% 74,630,000
Series 2005 general feceipts 2013 -2025 3.38% -5.00% 73,805,000
Series 2003 general receipts 2013-2014 3.75% - 5.50% 8,220,000
Total bonds payable 427,505,000
Bond premiums (14,833,538)
Bond issuance cosis 2,659,077
Deferred loss on refunding (728,965)

Total bonds payable, net
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Note 8.  Indebtedness (Continued)

The principal and interest payments for the bonds and notes in future years are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 18,420,000 $ 21,i78,673 $ 39,598,673
2014 19,120,000 20,416,717 39,536,717
2015 18,030,000 19,609,070 37,639,070
2018 18,785,000 18,820,910 37,605,910
2017 19,670,000 17,965,660 37,635,660
2018-2022 106,080,000 58,167,539 164,247,539
2023-2027 102,825,000 48,056,528 150,881,528
2028-2032 58,765,000 27,954,685 86,719,685
2033-2036 65,810,000 8,814,478 74,624,478

$ 427,505,000 § 240084260 § 668,489,260

The University has $3,811,046 in capitalized lease obligations that have varying maturity dates through 2032
and carry implicit interest rates ranging from 4.00 percent to 17.16 percent. The scheduled maturities of
these leases as of June 30, 2012, are;

Minimum

Year Ended June 30 Lease Payments
2013 8 918,960
2014 ' 448,394
2015 195,849
2016 194,020
2017 194,586
2018 - 2022 971,583
2023 - 2027 967,119
2028 - 2032 . 961,480

Total minimum lease payments 4,849,991
Less amount representing interest (1,038,945)

Net minimum lease payments $ 3811046

Buildings and computer equipment are financed with capital leases. The carrying amount related to these
capital leases as of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 are $2,779,820 and $1,605,123 for buildings and
$3,580,222 and $3,800,408 for equipment, respectively.

Note 7. Retirement Plans

Substantially all non-student employees are covered by one of three retirement plans. The University faculty
is covered by the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio). Non-faculty employees are
covered by the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (OPERS). Employees may opt out of
STRS Ohio and OPERS and participate in the Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP}.

STRS Ohio and OPERS both offer three separate retirement plans: the defined benefit plan the defined
contribution plan, and a combined plan.
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Note 7. Retirement Plans (Continued)

Defined benefit plans: Both STRS Ohio and OPERS are cost-sharing multiple- employer defined benefit
pension plans. Both plans provide retirement, disability, postretirement health care coverage, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authorlty to establish and amend benefits is provided by state
statute.

STRS Qhio and OPERS issue stand-alone financial reports. Copies of these reports may be obtained by
writing to STRS, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, OH 43215-3771 or to OPERS, 277 East Town Street,
Columbus, OH 43215-4642.

Contribution rates for STRS Ohio are established by the State Teachers Retirement Board, not to exceed
statutory maximum rates of 10 percent for members and 14 percent for employers. Contribution rates for
fiscal year 2011 were 10 percent for employees and 14 percent for employers. For the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2011, and June 30, 2010, the Retirement Board allocated employer contributions equal to 1.00
percent of covered payroll to the Heaith Care Stabilization Fund (Note 8).

During calendar year 2011, employees covered by the OPERS system were required by state statute to
contribute 10.0 percent of their salary to the plan. The University was required to contribute 14.00 percent of
covered payroll. Law enforcement employees who are a part of the OPERS law enforcement division
contribute 11.60 percent of their salary to the plan. For these employees, the University was required to
contribute 18.10 percent of covered payroll. The portion of employer contributions to OPERS allocated to
health care for members in the Traditional Pian was 4.00 percent from January 1 through December 31, 2011
(Note 8},

The payroll for employees covered by STRS Ohio for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, were
approximately $63,038,000 and $64,727,000, respectively. The payroll for employees covered by OPERS for
the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, were approximately $84,266,000 and $84,585,000, respectively.

Defined contribution plan: Full-time faculty and unclassified employees are eligible to participate in the
Alternative Retirement Pian (ARP) offered by STRS Ohio and OPERS. The board has established the
employer contribution as an amount equal to the amount which the University would have contributed to the
respective state retirement system in which the employee would participate, less any amounts required to be
remitied to the state retirement systems. ARP does not provide disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments, postretirement health care benefits, or death benefits to ptan members and beneficiaries.

The payroll for employees electing the alternative retirement program for the years ended June 30, 2012 and
2011, were approximately $50,374,000 and $47,826,000, respectively.

Combined plans: STRS Ohio offers a combined plan with features of both a defined contribution plan and a
defined benefit plan. In the combined plan, employee contributions are invested in seif-directed investments,
and the employer contribution is used to fund a reduced defined benefit. Employees electing the combined
plan receive postretirement health care benefits.

OPERS also offers a combined plan. This is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan that has
elements of both a defined benefit and defined contribution plan. In the combined plan, employee
contributions are invested in self-directed investments, and the employer contribution is used to fund a
reduced defined benefit. OPERS also provides retirement, disability, survivor, and postretirement health care
benefits to qualified members. The portion of employer contributions to OPERS allocated to health care for
members in the Combined Plan was 6.05 percent from January 1 through December 31, 2011 (Note 8).
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Mote 7.  Retirement Plans (Continued)

Retirement plan funding: The Chio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. The University's contributions each year are equal to its required contributions. University
contributions for the current and two preceding years are summarized below.

Employer Contribution

Alternative

STRS Ohio QPERS Programs

2012 $ 8825325 $ 11,863,447 $ 5,807,341
2011 9,061,480 11,841,929 5,630,805
2010 9,271,116 12,303,519 5,575,241

Note 8. Other Postemployment Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 7, STRS Chio and OPERS provide postretirement
health care coverage to retirees and their dependents. Health care coverage for disability recipients and
primary survivor recipients is also provided. Coverage includes hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription
drugs, and partial reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. A portion of the employer contribution is
allocated to fund the health care benefits (Note 7).

OPERS health care benefits are advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis. The amount of
employer contributions made to fund post-employment benefits was $3.4 million.

Note 9. Related Organization

The Miami University Foundation ({the Foundation) is a separate not-for-profit entity organized for the purpose
of promoting educational and research activities of the University. Since the resources held by the
Foundation can be used only by and for the benefit of the University, the Foundation is considered a
component unit of the University and is discretely presented in the University’s financial statements.

The Foundation board is comprised of 2 maximum of 29 members. Upto 21 members are elected by the
board and eight members are appointed by Miami University. At least two-thirds of the elected trustees
are required to be alumni or former students of Miami University. The Foundation reports using standards
issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.

Amounts received by the University from the Foundation are restricted and are included in gifts in the
accompanying financial statements. The Foundation values its investments at fair value.

Summary financial information for the Foundation as of June 30, 2012, the date of its most recent audited
financial report, is as follows:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricied Restricted Total
Net assets at end of year $ (104,812) §$ 115915292 § 160,563,050 $ 276,373,530
Change in net assets for the year ~ (353,807) (16,725,842} 10,471,661 {8,607,888)
Distributions to Miami University 18,662,382 - - 18,662,382
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Note 9.  Related Organization {Continued)

Summary financial information for the Foundation as of June 3¢, 2011:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Net assets at end of year $ 249,095 $ 132,640,934 $ 150,091,388 § 282,081,418
Change in net assets for the year 2,856,929 25,698,816 6,728,486 35,284,231
Distributions to Miami University 14,660,423 - - 14,660,423

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents consists primarily of cash in banks, money
market accounts, BlackRock Liquidity Federal Trust Fund, and the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio
(STAR Ohio) that include short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to cash, with an original
maturity of three months or less. On June 30, approximately $872,057 of cash and cash equivalents was
covered by federal depository insurance and the remainder was not insured, exposing it to custodial
credit risk. The Foundation maintains active relationships with multiple cash equivalent accounts to
reduce its exposure to custodial credit risk at any single institution. The carrying amounts of these items
are a reasonable estimate of their fair value.

Investments: investments that are market traded, such as equity and debt securities and mutual funds,
are recorded at fair value based primarily on quoted market prices, as established by the major securities
markets. The value of holdings of commingled funds investing in publicly traded stocks and bonds and
not having a readily determined market value for fund units is based on the funds’ net asset value as
supplied by the investment manager. The manager values are reviewed and evaluated by Foundation
management. Investments in real estate are recorded at appraised value at the date of donation. The
issuing insurance companies determine the cash surrender value of the paid-up life insurance policies
annually.

Market prices are not available for certain investments, These investments are carried at estimated fair
value provided by the funds' management. Some valuations are determined as of June 30, while the
remaining valuations are determined as of March 31 and adjusted by cash receipts, cash disbursements,
and securities distributions through June 30.

The Foundation believes that the carrying amounts are reasonable estimates of fair value as of year-end.
Because these investments are not readily marketabie, the estimated value is subject to uncertainty and,
therefore, may differ from the value that would have been used had a ready market for the investments
existed. Such differences could be material. The amount of gain or loss associated with these
investments is reflected in the accompanying financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis and purchases and sales of investiments are
recorded on a trade-date basis. Investment transactions occurring on or before June 30 that settle after
such date are recorded as receivables or payables.
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Note 9. Related Organization (Continued)

Long-term investments: Investments held by the Foundation as of June 30 were:

2012 2011
Investrment Description Cost Fair Valus Cost Fair Value
Domestic Public Equities $ 18,345,154 $ 20,794348 § 27,987,198 § 32,871,867
Global Public Equities 102,919,948 104,484,593 36,946,791 43,007,452
International Public Equities 14,499,910 13,018,134 10,801,774 12,752,544
Domestic Public Fixed Income 15,352,200 17,729,871 7,029,540 B,035,284
Global Public Fixed Income 16,718,703 16,321,200 7,584,763 7,821,539
Hedge Funds 76,449,477 97,641,252 47,626,743 64,201,566
Private Investments 107,190,042 95,013,447 60,857,752 52,496,982
Split-Interest Funds
Charitable remainder trusts 7,583,141 8,065,107 8,187,887 8,699,324
Charitable gift annuities 2,270,433 2,541,779 2,216,026 2,478,331
Pooled income funds 565,635 613,188 605,609 650,246
Total $ 361,894,643 § 376222919 $ 209,824,084 § 233,015,135

The Foundation maintains a diversified investment porifolic for the Pooled Funds, intended to reduce
market risk, credit risk, and interest rate risk with a strategy designed to take advantage of market
inefficiencies. The Foundation’s investment objectives are guided by its asset allocation policy and are
achieved in partnership with external investment managers operating through a variety of investment
vehicles including separate accounts, limited partnerships, and commingled funds. The Foundation's
investment portfolio includes publicly traded securities. As a result, a significant downturn in the securities
markets couid adversely affect the market value of Foundation assets. As of June 30, 2012, the
Foundation has made commitments to limited partnerships of approximately $37.0 million that have not
yet been funded.

The 2012 dividend and interest income of $2,455,266, as reported in the Statement of Activities, is net of
fees from external investment managers totaling $554,796. The 2011 dividend and interest income of
$1,970,234 is reported net of fees from external investment managers totaling $644,702.

Fair value measurements: The Foundation uses fair value measurements to record fair value
adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures. Subsequent changes
in fair value are recorded as an adjustment 1o earnings.

Pledges receivable: As of June 30, 2012, contributors to the Foundation have made unconditional
pledges totaling $49,635,789 with 18 pledges accounting for over 50 percent of that total. Net pledges
receivable have been discounted using interest rates to a net present value of $48,357,117 at June 30,
2012. Discount rates based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve three-year average ranged from .24 percent
to 3.40 percent for 2012. Management has set up an allowance for uncollectible pledges of $3,584,106
at June 30, 2012. All pledges have been classified as temporarily restricted net assets since they will
either expire or be fulfilled within a specified time.

The Foundation had also been notified of revocable pledges, bequests, and cther indications of intentions
to give. These potential contributions have not been substantiated by unconditional written promises to

the foundation. The Foundation's policy is not to record these intentions to give as revenues until they
are reduced to writing or are collected.
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Note 8. Related Organization {Continued)

Split-interest agreements: The Foundation’s split-interest agreements with donors consist primarily of
charitable gift annuities, pocled income funds and irrevocable charitable remainder trusts for which the
foundation serves as trustee. Assets are invested and payments are made to donors and/or other
beneficiaries in accordance with the respective agreements. Assets held in these trusts are included in
investments.

Endowment: UPMIFA provides statutory guidelines for prudent management, investment, and
expenditure of donor-restricted endowment funds held by charitable organizations.

The Foundation’s interpretation of its fiduciary respensibilities for donor-restricted endowments under
UPMIFA requirements, barring the existence of any donor-specific provisions, is to preserve
intergenerational equity to the extent possible and fo produce maximum total return without assuming
inappropriate risks. The investment policies governing these funds look beyond short-term fluctuations in
economic cycles toward an investment philosophy that provides the best total return over very long time
periods.

UPMIFA specifies that unless stated ctherwise in the gift agreement, donor-restricted assets in an
endowment fund are restricted assets until appropriated for expenditure by the institution. Barring the
existence of specific donor instruction, the Foundation’s policy is to report (a) the historical value for such
endowment as permanently restricted net assets and (b) the net accumulated appreciation as temporarily
restricted net assets. In this context, historical value represents (a) the original vaiue of initial gifts
restricted as permanent endowments plus (b} the original value of subsequent gifts along with (c} if
applicable, the value of accumulations made in accordance with specific donor instruction.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with donor-restricted endowment funds may fall
below the level that the donor or UPMIFA reguires the Foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration. In accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature are reported as unrestricted net assets
until such time as the fair value equals or exceeds historical value; such deficiencies were $948,391 as of
June 30, 2012 and $223,549 as of June 30, 2011, These deficiencies resulted from unfavorable market
fluctuations that occurred after the investment of permanently restricted contributions.

Net asset classification: Resources of the Foundation are classified for reporting purposes into net
asset classes based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions and state law.
Unrestricted net assets represent the portion of funds over which the Foundation has discretionary controi
as there are no donor-imposed purposes or time restrictions on how the funds may be spent.

Temporarily restricted net assets are limited as to use by donor-imposed stipulations that expire with the
passage of time or the incurrence of expenditures that fulfill the donor-imposed restrictions. These net
assets are primarily restricted for student pledges, split-interest agreements, and board-designated
endowment funds; such funds are primarily restricted for student financial aid, educational and research
activities, and capital improvements for the University. Expirations of restrictions on net assets, i.e., the
passage of time and/or fuffilling donor-imposed stipulations, are reported as net assets released from
restrictions between the applicable classes of net assets in the statement of activities. Permanently
restricted net assets, or endowment funds, represent amounts received from denors with the restriction
that the principal is invested in perpetuity. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the Foundation to
transfer a portion of the income earned on related investments to the University for such purpose as
specified by the donaor.

The Foundation issues separate financial statements. Copies of these reports may be obtained from
Treasury Services, 107 Roudebush Hall, Miami University, Oxford, Ohio, 45056.
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Note 10. Commitments

At June 30, 2012, the University is committed to future contractual obligations for capital expenditures of
approximately $76.1 million. These commitments are being funded from the following sources:

Contractual Obligations

Approved state appropriations not expended $ 1,193,829
University funds 74,923,511
Total $ 76,117,340

Note 11. Risk Management

The University's employee health insurance program is a self-insured plan. Administration of the plan is
provided by Humana Inc. and employees are offered two plan options, a Traditional PPQ Plan or a High
Deductible Health Plan with a Health Savings Account.

Health insurance claims are accrued based upon estimates of the claims liabilities. These estimates are
based on past experience, current claims outstanding, and medical inflation trends. As a result, the actual
claims experience may differ from the estimate. An estimate of claims incurred but not reported in the
amount of $2,872,200 and $3,867,600 is included in the accrued salaries and wages as of June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively. The change in the total liability for actual and estimated claims is summarized below:

2012 2011
Liability at beginning of year $ 2208827 $ 2,808,351
Claims incurred ) 35,490,748 34,379,797
Claims paid (35,053,282) {34,505,521)
Increase (decrease) in estimated claims incurred but not reported 1,007,200 (57 3,800)
Liability at end of year $ 3,662,483 $ 2208827

To reduce potential loss exposure, the University has established a reserve for health insurance stabilization
of $4.2 million.

The University participates in a consortium with all other Ohio state-assisted universities (excluding The Chio
State University) for the acquisition of commercial property and liabifity insurance. The name of the
consortium is the IUC-Insurance Consortium. The commercial property program’s loss limit is $1.0 billion and
the generalfauto liability loss limit is $50 million. The property insurance program has been in place for 17
years during which time Miami has had one material loss above the insurance policy deductible of $350,000.
The property pool deductible for individual schools is $100,000. The liability program has been in piace for 12
years during which time Miami has had three losses above the pool deductible, which is $100,000. The
current self-insured retention for the liability program is $1.0 million. The educator’s legal liability loss iimitis
$30 million. The University also participates with the other consortium universities for the purchase of
commercial insurance for other risks. Over the past five years, settiement amounts related to insured risks
have not exceeded the University's coverage amounts.
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Note 12. Contingencies

The University receives grants and contracts from certain federal, state, and local agencies to fund research
and other activities. The costs, both direct and indirect, that have been charged to the grants or contracts are
subject to examination and approval by the granting agency. Itis the opinion of the University's
administration that any disallowance or adjustment of such costs would not have a material effect on the
financial statements.

The University is presently involved as a defendant or codefendant in various matters of litigation. The
University's administration believes that the ultimate disposition of any of these matters would not have a
material adverse effect upon the financial condition of the University.

Note 13. Subsequent Events
The University is planning to issue general receipts revenue bonds during fiscal year 2013 totaling

approximately $125 million. Proceeds from the bond sale are expected to be used to continue construction
and renovation of the housing and dining facilities.
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Brailsford & Dunlavey Update
Maplestreet Station

Etheridge Hall

Western Dining Hall

Western Campus Residence Halls

MIAMI UNIVERSITY

Long Range Master Planning
& Projects Update




B&D Action Item Checklist

1 Establish unique PMM standards based on project size and
complexity

2 Develop a communication plan
3 Establish Action Items

4 Develop a Quality Assurance Plan

a Update Design Standards

b Update POR Standards

¢ Update Project Budgeting Standards

d Develop Budget, Program and Quality Review Standards
5 Institute Project Sign-off Procedures

6 Update Project Checklist (POR, SD, DD, CD, CA and Project
Closeout

7 Develop a Budget Management Plan
a Budget Development Procedures
b Estimating Procedures
¢ Constructability Review Protocols

d Value Engineering Protocols

e B.1.M. Service Protocols

8 Develop a Schedule Management Plan

9 Update PMM with State Rules / New Delivery Methods

10 Conduct PM workload analysis (for new PMM Standards and
State Rules)

Start Date

December-11

December -11

December-11

November-11
November-11
January-12
January-12

January-12

January-12

December-11

December-11

December-11

December-11

December-11

December-11

March-12

March-12

End Date

December-12

February-12

December-1

February-12
January-12
December-12
December-12

April-12

April-12

April-12

May-12

June-12

June-12

June-12

December-12

March-13

December-12

Responsibility

John Seibert

Jack Williams

Jack Williams

John Seibert
Randy Stephens
John Seibert
John Seibert

John Seibert

Jack Williams

John Seibert
John Seibert
John Seibert

John Seibert

John Seibert

Connie McCarthy

John Seibert

John Seibert/
Cody Powell

Comments
Project Manager Manual (PMM, overall management guidelines)

Implemented 3 tiers - under $200 (non ORC 153 delivery), $200,000-$2,000,00, and over
$2,000,000 with schedule and complexity review

Implemented. First major project to utilize system is Bishop Hall.

Implemented at Project Managers Meeting 12/9/11

Completed 4/1/12 for Western Housing Projects. Adding sections for Housing renovations as part
of Anderson and McFarland project

Implemented
Reviewing based on delivery system. See 1 and 9.
Part of Item 1. Implemented.

Implemented for Anderson and McFarland Halls and all future projects

Implemented 2/15/12

See 4.c

Implemented 5/18/12 Uniformat

Implemented 4/1/12. See Item 1.

Implemented = established owner buy back list for D/B and CMR

Implemented using SAE format for level of BIM required. First used on Anderson and McFarland
Halls project.

Using Microsoft Project for work management. See Item 10.

Adding information for CMR and Design/Build PM requirements as part of LEAN project

New team delivery structure proposed to align resources with delivery type




B&D Action Item Checklist

Weeldy Progress
Meeting Agenda /Minutes
CA Project# 91 /4360-00

Date Time Prepared by
Meeting Agenda for: 100D am. Beth Campbell- Champlin Architeclure

November 20th 2012
Meeting Minutes fromc
November 13*, 2012

Miami University
Bishop Hall Renovation

Attended By Copy To
See Altendance Register Altached Al Altendees, MU, CBT, Champlin, Endeavor, Consuliants

Please notify Champlin Archilecture as soon as possible i you have questions or comments regarding the contents of
this document. Copies of the meeling noles will be e-mailed 1o everyone Esled above.

OVERVIEW

CONSTRUCTION
Week Notice to Proceed Completion Date
250f5% June1,2012 June 29, 2013

Contract Days Completed Contract Days Remaining
173 days = 44% 221 days = 56%

Impariant upcoming dales:
University s closed November 22™ and 23"
Universily s closed Dec 24™ through Jan 1%, No meeling Dec 25" or Jan 1%, Meeiing will moved 1o Wed Jan 2™

UNIVERSITY ITEMS

Item Description Responsibility

Mami B reviewing the standard university exiesior Eght and pole. Miami
Product specified for Bishop may change. Endeavar requesied 1o

hold off ordering.

Miami has tumed over one of the exisling locksets to Endeavor for Endeavor
laforce 10 core the doors. The lockset is for room 109. E

responsible for making sure lockset gets retumed.

PROGRESS

Item Description Responsibility

25P1 See aitached progress repori-io be provided by Endeavor. Endeavor

SCHEDULE

Item Description Responsibility

25-51 An updaied schedule was received 11/11/12. A/E is reviewing CA & HP

ADMINISTRATION ITEMS

Item Description Responsibility

25-A1 Pay Applicalions — October’s pencil copy was received 10/31. AE Miami
has approved. Miami fo review.




FY 13 - In Construction / to be complete summer 2013
Maplestreet Station Infrastructure
Maplestreet Station (90 beds)
Etheridge Hall (232 beds)
MET Quad Site Improvements
Bishop Hall (96 beds)
Total of 418 Beds come online for Fall 2013
Anderson & McFarland Renovations (396 beds come offline May 2013)

FY 14 - In Construction
Western Dining Hall
Western Infrastructure
Total of 1,065 Beds come online for Fall 2014
Western Residence Halls (720 beds come online)
Anderson & McFarland (345 beds come online)

FY ’15 - In Planning
e East Quad Infrastructure
» East Quad Residence Halls and Dining Hall (894 come offline)
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PHYSICAL FACILITIES DEPARTMENT

Status of Capital Projects Executive Summary
December 6,2012

1. Projects completed:

Four projects under $500,000 were finished since the last report. The Recreational Sports Center
and Thomson Hall each received significant roof work including repairs and replacements. Work
continued on the West Stands of Yager Stadium repairing concrete and installing a waterproof
membrane on sections 5-6. The Fryman Farm Parking I ot and Cross Country Course Relocation

- was completed. The parking lot project adds additional event spaces while the cross country course
relocation was necessary to support the Western Residence Hall and Dining Hall construction
activities.

2. Projects added:

Four major projects and thirteen projects under $500,000 were added this reporting period. The
Oxford Campus Retro-Commissioning project impacts campus energy consumption. The
Robertson Communications Replacement moves the south half of the Oxford campus copper
communications and 8 fiber optic hub points from Robertson Hall, which is anticipated to be
deconstructed. Also worth noting is the aggregate nine-dormitory rehabilitation pro_]ect combined as
one construction manager at risk (CMR) summer project.

3. Projects in progress:

Maplestreet Station (90 beds), Etheridge Hall (232 beds) and the Armstrong Student Center are all
focusing on work to be weather-tight so finishes and mechanical systems can advance on the
interior and preparation for exterior brick veneer can begin. Bishop Hall (96 beds) is also
progressing well with the completion date of summer 2013 as planned. On Western Campus, the
new Dining Hall has under-slab utilities and footers being placed while the excavation for the three
new Residence Halls will start in the next month, as early foundations and steel bid packages are
being let by the design-builder. Also worth noting on Western, all 315 geothermal wells have been
drilled and the new Geothermal Energy Plant construction is starting to come out of the ground.
The Cook Field Renovation project is nearing completion with the new restroom and storage
facility opening this month.

The landscape, furniture fixtures and equipment, A/V and environmental bid packages are being
prepared to bid for the Armstrong Student Center and the team is working to make sure the Shade
Family Room will be online and available for Admissions tours beginning in October 2013 - three
months ahead of public opening of the remainder of the facility.

) Respectfully submitted,
Cody J. Powell, PE

Associate Vice President —
Facilities Planning & Operations

Attachment B, Page 26 of 50 . Dec 2012



SUMMARY OF PROJECTS LESS THAN $500,000

Construction Update and Master Plan,

Attachment B, Page 27 of 50 Cody Powell

Dec 2012

December 6, 2012

Attachment B, Page 27 of 50

Dec 2012

Page 1
Miami University
Physical Facilities Department
Status of Capital Projects Report
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page Number

PROJECT SYNOPSIS 3

UNDER CONSTRUCTION 5

Armstrong Student Center, Phase One 5

Bishop Hall Renovation 6

Cook Field Renovation 7

Equestrian Center — Phase I 8

Etheridge Residence Hall 9
Maplestreet Station — New Dining & Residence Hall 10
Maplestreet Station Site Infrastructure 11
McGuffey Hall to King Library Steam Loop 12
Western Campus Dining Hall 13
Western Campus Site Infrastructure 14
IN DESIGN 15
Kreger Hall Rehabilitation 15
Oxford Campus — Retro-commissioning _ 15
Recreational Sports Center — Pro Shop and Fitness Area Renovations 15
Robertson Communications Replacement Project 16
Western Campus Residence Halls 16
IN PLANNING 17
Anderson and McFarland Halls Renovation 17
Hamilton Campus — Knightsbridge Building Renovation 17
Middletown Campus — Thesken Hall HVAC Upgrades 17
Morris-Emerson-Tappan (MET) Quad Site Improvements and Landscape 18
Residence Halls — Renovations Summer 2013 18
Roof Replacement and Repairs 2013 18
Western Campus Site Improvements and Landscape 19
Yager Stadium Hot Water and Natural Gas Conversion 19
21



Construction Update and Master Plan, Dec 2012
Attachment B, Page 28 of 50 Cody Powell

December 6, 2012
Page 2

Miami University
Physical Facilities Department
Status of Capital Projects Report

Intentionally Blank

Attachment B, Page 28 of 50 Dec 2012



Construction Update and Master Plan, Dec 2012
_ Attachment B, Page 29 of 50 Cody Powell

December 6, 2012
Page 3

Miami University
Physical Facilities Department
Status of Capital Projects Report

Summary of Active Projects

Number of Projects Value

Under Construction $146,378,400
#l In Design $85,116,816
il In Planning $32,066,700
| Projects Under $500,000 $9,098,016

Total $272,659,932

Projects Completed Since Last Report

|l Fryman Farm — Parking Lot & Cross Country Course
Relocation :

H Recreational Sports Center — Partial Roof Repairs and
Replacement Project

8 Thomson Hall — Roof Replacement

f| Yager Stadium Restoration — Phase 2

$1,721,128

h
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Status of Capital Projects Report

UNDER CONSTRUCTION
(Under Contract)

1. Armstrong Student Center, Phase One: (BOT Sep ’11)

This project provides spaces for student organizations, student engagement activities, food service venues, a theater,
lounges and various ancillary spaces. The design concept includes the renovation of Gaskill, Rowan and Culler
Halls, along with the new structure that will be situated between and connect the existing buildings into one new
facility. The design has been developed to allow the project to be bid and constructed in two phases. Phase I will
include a majority of the new construction and the renovation of Gaskill and Rowan Halls. Phase II will renovate
Culler Hall and provide new construction required to join it with Phase 1.

All structural] framing is complete. The exterior wall framing, aluminum curtain-wall and window installation is on-
going. Interior ceilings and soffits have been roughed-in. Interior wall partition framing is complete. Mechanical,
electrical, plumbing, fire protection, fire alarm and building automation systems controls are being installed in the
former Gaskill Hall and in the new structure. The building is to be weather tight by January and heating in place by
February to begin interior finishes.

Delivery Method: Multiple Prime Contractors

Project Cost Funding Source
Design and Administration $6,309,329 Bond Series 2010 $46,191,474
Construction $37,945,369 MUF Gifts $158,526
Contingency $2,145,302 Student Facilities CR&R $50,000
Total $46,400,000 Total $46,400,000

Contingency Balance: 56%
Construction Complete: 55%
Project Completion: January 2014

Under Construction
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2. Bishop Hall Renovation: (BOT Feb *12)

Dec 2012

December 6, 2012

Page 6

The Bishop Hall Renovation is part of the Phase 1 of the Student Housing Long Range Master Plan. The project
reconfigures space vacated by the Honors Program to serve as community space for the students, and includes
upgrades to the HVAC, electrical, plumbing, and IT systems, as well as interior finishes and furniture, fixtures and

equipment.

Selective interior demolition is proceeding in conjunction with structural improvements at the main bearing walls
and new elevator shaft. New interior partitions are 75% complete. Interior mechanical, electrical and plumbing
systems are 40% complete. Site utility work is 95% complete.

Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor

Project Cost _ Funding Source

Design and Administration $625,000 Bond Series 2010 $7,900,000

Construction $6,670,000

Contingency $605,000

Total $7,900,000 Total $7,900,000
Contingency Balance: 38%
Construction Complete: 45%
Estimated Completion: July 2013
Under Construction
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3. Cook Field Renovation: (BOT Feb *12)

Dec 2012

December 6, 2012

Page 7

This project will renovate Cook Field to improve use and playability of the University’s major recreation sports
playfield. Project scope includes: adding irrigation along with storm water detention for its water source; planting
new natural sports turf on the south half of the field and installing a synthetic turf surface to the north half of the field;
improving under field storm drainage; repaving the running track around the field; replacing softball backstops;
adding a restroom and storage facility; and reworking parking around Cook Field to enhance pedestrian access and
improve vehicular safety. The project will have two construction phases, completing the northern synthetic field turf

areas and running track in time for fall 2012 use, and completing the natural grass areas in time for spring 2013 use.

Phase 1 is complete with the running track, north synthetic playfield, new backstops, under field storm drainage and
irrigation system in place. The new restroom and storage facility will be complete in the next week and available for
use. The south, natural turf field will continue to be held offline through the spring to allow proper cultivation of the
new grass play surface and will open in May 2013. This will be the last report.

Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor

Project Cost Funding Source

Design and Administration $165,300 Student Facilities CR&R. $3,024,700
Construction $2,609,400
Contingency $250,000

Total $3,024,700 Total $3,024,700
Contingency Balance: 36%
Construction Complete: 98%
Project Completion: Phase 1 - August 2012; Phase 2 - May 2013

Under Construction
Attachment B, Page 33 of 50 . Dec 2012
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4. Equestrian Center — Phase 1: (BOT Feb ’12)

This project will raise the existing outdoor riding arena and paddocks out of the current flood plain by adding fill to
the site. New access roads, parking, outdoor riding arena, barns, and storm drainage will be provided. A potential
later phase has been planned that can provide a new indoor arena on the newly raised grading, along with new horse
stalls and classroom space.

The Guaranteed Maximum Price has been negotiated. The site has been brought up to grade. Storm water
infrastructure, the riding arena and drives are being installed and the barn is being erected.

Delivery Method: Design / Build

Project Cost Funding Source
Design and Preconstruction Services $37,660 Student Facilities CR&R $1,928,159
Guaranteed Maximum Price $1,828,599
Owner’s Contingency $61,900
Total $1,928,159 Total $1,928,159

Contingency Balance: 100%
Construction Complete: 40%
Project Completion: December 2012

Under Construction
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5. Etheridge Residence Hall: (BOT Feb ‘12)

This project will create a new residence hall on the north end of the existing quad with Morris, Emerson, and Tappan
Halls as part of the Student Housing Long Range Master Plan. This new residence hall will house approximately 230
students.

Structural steel is complete. Exterior framing is underway. Building enclosure will be complete by the end of
December. Mechanical, electrical, and plumbing overhead piping and ductwork installation is underway in the
basement and on the first floor.

Delivery Method: CMR — Construction Manager at Risk

Project Cost Funding Source
Design and Administration $2,375,189 Bond Series 2011 $23,000,000
Guaranteed Maximum Price 19,054,811
Owners Contingency 1,570,000
Total $23,000,000 Total $23,000,000

Contingency Balance: 97%
Construction Complete: 50%
Estimated Completion: August 2013

Under Construction
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6. Maplestreet Station — New Dining & Residence Hall: (BOT Jun’11)

The 500-seat dining facility will replace the Hamilton and Scott Dining Halls, with additional capacity to handle the
planned expansion of residential units at the Morris, Emerson, Tappan (MET) quad. The new facility will reduce
operational costs and allow Hamilton and Scott to be taken off line for swing space during subsequent housing
renovation projects as part of the Student Housing Long Range Master Plan. Maplestreet Station will feature seven
restaurants with unique menus, design themes, and interior and exterior café seating.

Structural steel is complete and the building is enclosed. Installation of mechanical, plumbing and electrical systems
continues. Interior wall framing is complete and finishes are underway.

Delivery Method: Multiple Prime Contractors

Project Cost Funding Source
Design and Administration $2,521,519 Bond Series 2010 $24,000,000
Construction $20,714,877
Contingency $763,605
Total $24,000,000 Total $24,000,000

Contingency Balance: 82%
Construction Complete: 65%
Project Completion: June 2013

Under Construction
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Maplestreet Station Site Infrastructure: (BOT Feb *12)

Dec 2012

December 6, 2012

Page 11

This project will provide site infrastructure improvements to support the construction of two new buildings in the
MET (Morris, Emerson, Tappan) Quad: Maplestreet Station and the MET Quad residence hall. Utility upgrades will
include steam/condensate, chilled water, storm, sanitary, water, gas and information technology. Tunnel spurs to the
new buildings will be constructed to house the heating/cooling piping and conveyance for IT. The South Chiller
Plant will have its CFC R-11 chiller replaced as part of this project in the winter of 2012-13.

The contractor has completed 100% of the new tunnel. Demolition is occurring in the South Chiller Plant to prepare
for the new chiller which will arrive the week of December 17.

Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor

Project Cost Funding Source

Design and Administration $336,644 Bond Series 2010 $4,000,000
Construction $3,330,321
Contingency $333,035

Total $4,000,000 Total $4,000,000
Contingency Balance: 70%
Construction Complete: 50%
Project Completion: May 2013

Under Construction
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8. McGuffey Hall to King Library Steam Loop:

This project will extend the direct buried steam and condensate lines from McGuffey Hall to King Library to create a
steam loop in the academic quad. This will create the ability to isolate a building for maintenance or emergency
purposes without having to shut down multiple buildings served by the shared steam source.

Underground pipe installation is continuing both in the King Library basement and outside in the excavation.

Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor

Project Cost Funding Source
Design and Administration $49,100 UEA CR&R $540,800
Construction $448,700
Contingency $43,000
Total $540,800 Total $540,800

Contingency Balance: 75%
Rate of Completion: 50%
Project Completion: May 2013

Under Construction
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9. Western Campus Dining Hall: (BOT Jun *11)

This project will create a new 625 seat dining facility northwest of Mary Lyon Hall to serve the three new residence
halls as well as the existing population on the Western Campus. Alexander Dining Hall will close when the facility
opens.

Basement excavation is complete. Concrete foundations are underway.

Delivery Method: CMR — Construction Manager at Risk

Project Cost Funding Source
Design and Administration $2,154,566 Bond Series 2010 $19,500,000
Guaranteed Maximum Price $15,920,434
Owners Contingency $1,425,000
Total $19,500,000 Total $19,500,000

~ Contingency Balance: 93%
Construction Complete: 10%
Project Completion: January 2014

Under Construction
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10. Western Campus Site Infrastructure: (BOT Feb ’12)

This project will provide site infrastructure improvements to support the construction of four new buildings on the
Western Campus. Utility upgrades will include heating, hot water, chilled water, storn, sanitary, water, gas, and
information technology. Tunnel spurs to the new buildings will be constructed to house the heating/cooling piping
and conveyance for IT. The heating and cooling needs for these three buildings will be fed from a new geothermal
well field. A central heat pump facility will be part of this improvement. Three of the new buildings will be design-
build and the State of Ohio is currently working on contractual language for this new delivery method.

The contractor has completed the sanitary lines and is currently installing tunnel gas and water lines. The driller has
completed all of the wells for the geothermal well field and activity has begun on the installation of horizontal well
field lines as well as excavation for the irrigation pond. The foundation is complete for the new Geothermal Energy

Plant.

Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor

Project Cost Funding Source
Design and Administration $1,245,594 Bond Series 2010 $14,873,100
Construction $13,750,841 Local $936,641
Contingency $1,088,306 UEA CR&R $275,000
Total $16,084,741 Total | $16,084,741

Contingency Balance: 93%
Construction Complete: 30%
Project Completion: January 2014

Under Construction
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IN DESIGN
(Pre-Contract)

1. Kreger Hall Rehabilitation: (BOT Sep *12)

This project will relocate the Department of Physics from Culler Hall to Kreger Hall. Vacating Culler Hall
is part of the master plan in preparing for the second phase of the Armstrong Student Center. Kreger Hall
will be completely renovated with new instructional and research labs, physics department offices, and
classrooms. Significant upgrades to all mechanical, electrical and plumbing systems will be completed as
well as a new fire protection system. A small addition onto the south face of the building will house the
faculty offices and create a new entry off Spring Street.

Negotiations with CMR are underway. A Guaranteed Maximum Price is anticipated in late January, prior
to putting the project out for bid.

Delivery Method: Construction Manager at Risk Funding Source

Estimated Budget: $18,800,000 University CR&R $600,000
Estimated Start: November 2012 State Funded $18,200,000
Estimated Completion: August 2014 Total | $18,800,000

(Revised since last report - June 2014)

2. Oxford Campus - Retro-commissioning: (New Project This Report)
This project will retro-commission all the HVAC systems in six campus buildings. The six buildings on the Oxford
Campus include: Benton/Garland/Engineering, Goggin Ice Center, Hiestand Hall, Hughes Hall, Pearson Hall, and
the Psychology Building.

The selected retro-commissioning firm is Brewer-Garrett. Contracts are being finalized.

Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor Funding Source
Estimated Budget: $534,266 Bond Series 2011 $534,266
Estimated Start: December 2012 Total $534,266

Estimated Completion: July 2013

3. Recreational Sports Center — Pro Shop and Fitness Area Renovations:

This project creates a larger pro shop by reconfiguring the existing pro shop, customer service counter, and
administrative spaces. The existing food service venue will be removed and a second floor constructed within the
west racquetball court to create new group exercise and fitness spaces. The project is expected to increase revenue
from the larger pro shop and to expand cardio fitness opportunities and group fitness classes for students and
members. ‘

The selected AE firm is Moody-Nolan, Inc. Construction documents are 50% complete.

Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor Funding Source
Estimated Budget: $900,000 Bond Series 2011 $900,000
Estimated Start: March 2013 Total $900,000

Estimated Completion: September 2013

In Design
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4. Robertson Hall Communications Replacement Project: (New Project This Report)

The Robertson Hall building presently functions as one of two hubs that facilitate communication of fire alarm and
other miscellaneous circuits among multiple campus buildings. Due to advances in communications technology,
most of the communications systems that used copper wire technology have been abandoned. Several of the optical
feeds in Robertson Hall must be bypassed and eliminated. This project is to downsize and consolidate the remaining
fire alarm and miscellaneous circuits and transfer them into the Main Communications Room of the Armstrong
Student Center. This will become the new, permanent campus copper hub so the Robertson building may be
demolished.

The construction documents are complete and the project is ready to bid.

Delivery Method: Single Prime Contractor Funding Source

Estimated Budget: $632,550 Bond Series 2010 $42,100

Estimated Start: February 2013 Network Infrastructure CR&R $520,000

Estimated Completion: October 2013 TBD $70,450
Total $632,550

5. Western Campus Residence Halls: (BOT Apr ‘12)

This project will create three new residence halls with approximately 700 beds on the north end of the Western
Campus. The facilities were planned as part of the Student Housing Long Range Master Plan and will provide swing
space for taking off existing residence halls as they are renovated. These residence halls are being designed with a
focus on the second year student experience.

A Design-Build team led by Whiting-Turner Contracting Company with CR Architecture + Design as Architect of
Record and Mackey Mitchell Architects of St. Louis as design architect. Design development is underway. Two
bid packages (site work and structural steel) have been advertised. The bulk of the work is anticipated to bid in
March 2013. Construction is scheduled to begin in January 2013.

Delivery Method: Design/ Build Funding Soturce
Estimated Budget: $64,250,000 Bond Series 2011 $64,250,000
Estimated Start: January 2013 Total |  $64,250,000

(Revised since last report - October 2012)
Estimated Completion: July 2014

In Design
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IN PLANNING
(Pre-A&E)

Anderson and McFarland Halls Renovation:

This project will renovate student rooms in Anderson and McFarland Halls as well as provide additional study spaces
as part of the Student Housing Long Range Master Plan. All mechanical, electrical, life safety, plumbing and lighting
systems will be upgraded along with the site infrastructure.

The Criteria Architect/Engineer (C-A/E) has completed the design criteria stage and is working on the schematic
design phase. The selection of the Design-Build firm is in the RFP stage with final selection of the Design-Build firm
due by mid-January 2013.

Proposed Delivery Method: Design / Build Funding Source
Proposed Budget: $20,000,000 Bond Series 2011 $20,000,000
Desired Start: May 2013 Total |  $20,000,000

Desired Completion: August 2014

Hamilton Campus — Knightsbridge Building Renovation:

This project will provide for the renovation of the recently acquired 23,500 square feet Richard Allen Academy
building located on the Hamilton Campus at the intersection of Knightsbridge Drive and University Boulevard in
Hamilton. A facility assessment to be used in developing program and renovation cost has been completed. The
assessment has identified the need for mechanical/electrical upgrades as part of the renovation, reporting
approximately $4,000,000 in probable cost. A recent professionally-prepared campus space plan is contributing to
the programmed scope of this project.

Planning is being performed to align the campus’ space requirements, academic priorities, and existing facilities
condition/needs.

Proposed Budget: TBD ' Funding Source
Desired Start: TBD TBD TBD
Desired Completion: TBD Total TBD

Middletown Campus — Thesken Hall HVAC Upgrades:

This project will upgrade the perimeter heat in Thesken Hall from electric to hot water. Variable air volume (VAV)
boxes will be added to the existing HVAC system to better control the temperature of the spaces. Occupancy sensors
also will be included to increase energy efficiency of the HVAC systems.

Documents are being prepared for design-build team selection.

Proposed Delivery Method: Design / Build Funding Source -

Proposed Budget: $589,000 State Funding $589,000
Desired Start: June 2013 Total $589,000

(Revised since last report - March 2013)
Desired Completion: August 2013
(Revised since last report - June 2013)

In Planning
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5. Morris-Emerson-Tappan (MET) Quad Site Improvements and Landscape:

This project will upgrade the former marching band field and the grounds surrounding the new Maplestreet Station
and MET Quad Residence Hall construction sites. Work will include stormwater management, site grading, fire lane
construction, hardscape beyond pedestrian pathways required for ingress/egress of buildings, softscape beyond
typical building foundation planting, and site furnishings beyond that required by buildings.

AJE selection is underway.

Proposed Delivery Method: Single Prime Funding Source
Contractor Bond Series 2011 $1,702,500
Proposed Budget: $2,102,500 Student Facilities CR&R $200,000
(Revised since last report - $1,702,500) HDRRBS CR&R $200,000
Desired Start: May 2013 Total $2,102,500

(Revised since last report - April 2013)
Desired Completion: November 2013

6. Residence Halls — Renovations Summer 2013: (New Project This Report)

This project provides various upgrades to systems and finishes to increase life safety, functionality, energy efficiency,
and appearance in nine residence halls. The residence halls are all more than a decade from receiving Long Range
Master Plan renovations and need operational maintenance and cosmetic improvements at this time. All work is to be
accomplished during the 2013 summer break.

The Selection process for the A/E is underway. Selection of an AE is expected in mid-December. Selection of a
Construction Manager at Risk is scheduled for January.

Proposed Delivery Method:

Construction Manager at Risk Funding Source
Proposed Budget: $4,999,200 Bond Series 2011 $4,999,200
Desired Start: April 2013 Total $4,999,200

Desired Completion: August 2013

7. Roof Replacement and Repairs 2013: (New Project This Report)

This project will provide for the roof replacement and/or repair of five buildings on the Oxford Campus that are
beyond their serviceable life: Cole Service Building, Demske Culinary Support Center, Peabody Hall, Ogden Hall
and Cook Place. Roofing types include single ply roofing membrane, clay tile, asphalt/fiberglass shingles as well as
copper box gutters, sheet metal flashing and trim.

A Request for Qualifications (RFQ) was issued in November for A/E services to provide bidding/contract documents.
Reponses to the RFQ are in the review process at this time. Contract for services is expected by the end of
December. Anticipate construction to take place during the summer 2013.

Proposed Delivery Method: Single Prime Funding Source

Contractor TBD $953,000
Proposed Budget: $1,826,000 HDRBS CR&R $873,000
Desired Start: April 2013 Total $1,826,000

Desired Completion: August 2013

In Planning
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8. Western Campus Site Improvements and Landscape:

This project will restore the grounds surrounding the new Western Campus Residence Halls and Dining Hall
construction sites as part of the Student Housing Long Range Master Plan. Work will include stormwater
management, site grading, fire lane construction, pedestrian lighting, hardscape beyond pedestrian pathways required
for ingress/egress of buildings, softscape beyond typical building foundation planting, and site furnishings.

Concept planning will begin in January 2013.

Proposed Delivery Method: Single Prime Funding Source
Contractor Bond Series 2011 $1,700,000
Proposed Budget: $1,700,000 Total $1,700,000

Desired Start: April 2014
Desired Completion: November 2014

9. Yager Stadium Hot Water and Natural Gas Conversion:

This project removes Yager Stadium from the campus steam system and replaces the heat source with natural gas and
electric. The steam and condensate system supplying Yager Stadium is inefficient, given the stadium’s distance from
the steam plant, the age and condition of the buried piping and steam operated heating and housekeeping equipment.
The buried condensate piping currently leaks at a cost estimate of $30,000 per year. A study commissioned to
determine a long term approach to correcting the leakage and meeting the needs at the stadium while reducing energy
requirements and costs concluded removing the stadium from the campus steam system and replacing the aged
equipment would result in the lowest life-cycle cost. The proposed project includes replacing or converting steam
supplied heat loads to hot water supplied from high efficiency, natural gas fired heating and domestic hot water
boilers, replacing steam heated dryers with high efficiency gas dryers, and replacing steam heated concession kettles
with electric kettles. The mechanical room equipment would be replaced and the laundry reconfigured. The project
results in a significant net energy savings due in large part from abandoning the 1200 foot steam and condensate lines
from Millett Hall and efficiencies gained with the new natural gas fired equipment.

The laundry conversion and natural gas, water and supply to the West Stands, opened on November 8, 2012. The
laundry equipment has been purchased.

Proposed Delivery Method: Single Prime Funding Source
Contractor UEA CR&R $850,000
Proposed Budget: $850,000 Total $850,000

Desired Start: November 2012
Desired Completion: January 2013

In Planning
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Intentionally blank

In Planning
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Projects Between $50,000 and $500,000

Alumni Hall Room B3 and B4 Renovation $87,300:
Bachelor Hall — Elevator Renovations $340,000
Bachelor Hall — Fire Alarm Upgrade $300.000
Break Room Door Locks Installation $75,000
Campus Irrigation - Benton-Psychology. - $31.0,000-
Campus Irrigation — Farmer-Marcum $495,000
_Campus Irrigatio ; sl SR 1 $140.000°
Center for Performing Arts — Emergency Generator Replacement $95,000
vice Building - Boiler Replacement L e =11:$245.000
Culmary Support Center (CSC) Emergency Generator $402,485
_Door Access, Phase 2 gt $495,000
E & G Building VAV Box Occupancy Sensor Installatlon $180,000_|
Formal Gardens Pond Reconstruction Phase 1 L S $86,7000
Goggin Ice Center — Water Heater and Steam Control Enhancements $51,360
| Hamilton Campus — Mosler Emergency. 35
Hamilton Campus — Phelps Hall ADA Ramp . \
‘Hamilton Campus— Phelps Hall 000
Hamilton Campus — Rentschler Hall Water Distribution Prpmg Replacement

‘Hamilton Campus — Refro-commissioning %1 15
Hamilton Campus — Select Wmdow and Door Replacement $238,075
Havighurst Elevator Upgrades (E) . \ | 875,000
Havighurst S' D i g8, Trench Dram Replacement $94,000

= i o 1 $50,000
$150 000

King Lrbrary Emergency’Generator Upgrade” $392 790
Marcum Con: enter — Fan Coil Unit Replacements | $90,000
$78,395

Marcum Conference Center — Room 109 Audio Visual (AV)

Middletown Campus — Johnston Hall Boiler #2 Replacement 18400405
Middletown Campus — Levey Hall Room 105 Lab Renovatron $80,000
Middletown Campus — Retro-commissioning .~ SR e e e 1 81220090,
Millett Hall — Sound System Replacement $260,000
‘Pearson Hall — Heat Recovery Chiller - R 1 $135,000
Recreational Sports Center — Miscellaneous Flooring $72,650 |
‘Recreational Sports Center — Replace Pool Floor Cylinders =~ = 0~ 875,000
Robertson Hall Building Demolition $158,000
Shriver Center — Bookstore Enhancements B ' , R $100,000
Shriver Center — Freight Elevator replacement (E) $400,000
Shriver Center - Select HVAC Replacement ' o $360,000
Tunnel Top Replacement $430,000
Western Campus Electrical Modifications Phase 11 $100,000
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY
Senate Bill 6 Composite Score and Ratios
FY12 thru FY08
Preliminary

FY12 FY11 FY10 FYQ09 FY08

4.4 4.4 4.2 2.9 3.1
77.83% 91.15% 102.00% 75.00% 95.00%
63.71% 58.18% 42.84% 32.04% 42.76%
7.00% 14.36% 11.80% -9.84% -1.11%
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12/7/12 Agenda Item
Finance and Business Services

RESOLUTION R2013-

WHEREAS, the Anderson and McFarland Halls Renovation project
involves the renovation of two existing residence halls; and

WHEREAS, the administration has determined that costs can be reduced
by combining the projects and design build as the project delivery method; and

WHEREAS, bond proceeds in the amount of $20,000,000 have been set
aside for the project; and

WHEREAS, the receipt of proposals is planned for February 2013; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to award a contract to the most
responsive and responsible design build firm;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: that the Board of Trustees
hereby authorizes the Vice President for Finance and Business Services and
Treasurer, with the concurrence of the Board Chair and the Chair of the Finance
and Audit Committee, in accordance with all State guidelines, to proceed with the
award of contract for the Anderson and McFarland Halls Renovation project with
a total project budget not to exceed $20,000,000.

December 7, 2012

(over)
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Business Session
Item 3b

Executive Summary
for the
Anderson and McFarland Halls Renovations
December 7, 2012

This project will renovate Anderson and McFarland Halls as part of the Long Range Housing
Master Plan. The project will be delivered using Design-Build methodology to reduce time
taken from design through construction, reduce the cost of construction, and minimize the
risk to the University. The project will serve as the delivery method pilot for all future
residence hall renovations in the Housing Master Plan. Both Anderson and McFarland
renovations will include new windows, ADA accessibility improvements, elevators,
insulating of exterior walls and attic, new corridor ceilings, interior lighting, plumbing
systems, sprinkler system, electrical distribution, HVAC systems, life safety and fire alarm
systems, utility tie-ins, site utilities, selective addition and/or demolition of bedroom walls,
and new bedroom finishes. The roof systems are being separately evaluated similar to other
renovation projects. Additionally, accommodation of student life programming elements
such as community rooms, group study rooms, and other support spaces will be included.
These specific residence halls were selected to get available bed count to a number that
allows East Quad to be taken off line the following year, to address existing deferred
maintenance, and proximity to centralized utilities allowing minimal utility impact at each
location.

Funding for this project will be local funds via bond issue for the Long Range Housing

Master Plan.

Project component: Budget: Funding Source:
Estimated Consulting Services: $1,230,000 Bond Series 2012
Estimated Construction: $16,250,000 Bond Series 2012
Estimated Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment:  $920,000 Bond Series 2012
Owner’s Contingency: $1.600.,000 Bond Series 2012
Total: $20,000,000 Bond Series 2012
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY

Enrollment Update

Board of Trustees
December 6, 2012

Michael S. Kabbaz, Office of Enrollment Management

Dec 2012
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Final Fall 2012 First-Year Highlights

o 3,734 enrolled students
 Academic quality is slightly better over last year

* Average ACT (SAT converted) of 26.5

* Average GPA of 3.63 (out of 4.0)

* Average Rank of top 19.8 percent

* Increase in the number of students in the top 10 percent

» Acceptance rate dropped to 72.8 percent from 74.1 percent
* Non-resident enrollment is slightly up over last year

» 38.0 percent overall, which includes 3.6 percent international
 Domestic students of color represent 12.6 percent versus 11.6 percent last year
* The class hails from 41 states, plus DC, and 16 countries
* Alumni legacies comprise 22.0 percent of the class

Note: data are final as of 10/15/2012
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Other Enrollments

American Culture and English (ACE) Program
Fall 2011: 26 first-year students and 11 transfer students

Fall 2012

50 first-year students, or a 92.3 percent increase over fall 2011
11 transfer students

Transfers (non-ACE)
Fall 2011: 275 transfer students

Fall 2012
223 students, or an 18.9 percent YTD decrease versus fall 2011

Note: data are final as of 10/15/2012
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Final Fall 2012 — Divisional Enrollment by
Capacity

First-year Capacity

Actual Enrolled by

Actual Enrolled as
of Census Day

Change from
Admission Data to

Plus/Minus Goal vs.

Attachment C, Page 4 of 16

Division by Division Admission Major (10/15/2012) "Census" Day Actual (Census Day)
College of Arts and Science 1800 1934 1876 -58 +76
Farmer School of Business 800 792 793 +1 -7
School of Education, Health &
Society 500 415 464 +49 -36
School of Engineering & Applied
Science 425 396 415 +19 -10
School of Creative Arts 220 197 186 -11 -34

3745 3734 3734 0 -11
Notes:
Column 1 - first—year enrollment capacity determined by each academic division
Column 2 - number of enrolling students by division based on the admission application 1st major listed
Column 3 - actual majors by division are as of 10/15 (Census Day)

Dec 2012
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Fall 2013 — Application Status by
Academic Division

Dec 2012

2011 2012 Difference | % Change

College of Arts and Science 5212 5964 752 14.4%
Farmer School of Business 3999 4721 722 18.1%
School of Education, Health & Society 1668 1802 134 8.0%

School of Engineering & Applied Science| 1625 1914 289 17.8%
Undeclared 943 262 -681 -712.2%
School of Creative Arts 651 608 -43 -6.6%
Total 14098 15271 1173 8.3%

Note: Early Decision applications increased from
910 to 1012, or a 10% increase over last year.

Note: data are as of 12/5/2012
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Fall 2013 — Application Status by
Residency

Note: data are as of 12/5/2012
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Fall 2013 Miami Application Trends -
National
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Fall 2013 Miami Application Trends —
Ohio
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Fall 2013 Miami Application Volume
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Fall 2013 Miami Application Volume
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FY13 Key Recruitment Initiatives

Increase non-resident domestic and international outreach

 Non-resident recruitment staff has increased from 3to 5
regionally-based positions

Expand targeted travel and off-campus programming
Expand outreach for special populations

« High-ability recruitment

« Urban outreach/diversity (Ohio emphasis)
Enhance and expand on-campus visit opportunities

Integrate predictive modeling and enhanced data sources to
Increase targeted outreach to prospective students

Expand early outreach to prospective students and their key
Influencers

Refine the fall 2013 merit scholarship strategy

e Create and implement a new University Academic Scholars
Program

Attachment C, Page 11 of 16 Dec 2012
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Fall 2013 Recruitment Key Highlights

Admission’s fall diversity overnight program (Bridges) has increased
applications from 692 to 804, or a 16 percent increase over last year

Campus visitors have increased from 20,984 to 22,949, or 9.4
percent increase over last year

* Added 8 divisionally-based programs and open houses

Initial planning and development of articulation agreements with
targeted Ohio community colleges

Increased targeted travel across Ohio, around the U.S., and world
« Dramatically increased number of domestic high school visits
 Expanded targeted international travel
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High School Visits by Select Markets
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ACT/
SAT (CR+M)*

32+/
1400+

29-31/
1290-1390

27-28/
1210-1280

26/
1170-1200
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Merit Aid — Fall 2013

H.S. GPA
(4.00 scale)

3.70+

3.70+

3.70+

3.70+

Additional

Requirement

Rigorous
Coursework

Rigorous
Coursework

Rigorous
Coursework

Rigorous
Coursework

Scholarship Scholarship
Amount Amount
(Ohio Resident) (Non-Ohio
Resident)
$26,200-552,300 $57,300-
(half to full $114,500
tuition (half to full
per year) tuition
per year)

$16,000-532,000 $24,000-548,000
($4,000-$8,000 ($6,000-
per year) $12,000 per year)

$8,000-524,000 $16,000-532,000
(52,000- (S4,000-
$6,000 per year) $8,000 per year)

$2,000-58,000 $2,000-516,000
(up to $2,000 per (up to $4,000 per

year) year)
Dec 2012
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University Academic Scholars Program Update

Concept: Create a new recruitment and yield scholarship program engaging
each academic division, focused on program recognition to advance Miami’s
ability to attract and enroll more high-ability students.

New Programs for Fall 2013:
Creative Arts Scholars
Education, Health & Society
Leadership Scholars
Engineering & Applied Science
Scholars

Farmer School of Business
Scholars

Law and Public Policy Scholars
Premedical Scholars
Sustainability Scholars

Attachment C, Page 15 of 16

Sample of Benefits

Enhanced Scholarship Funding
Honors & Scholars Living and Learning
Community

Funded Research

Guaranteed Internships/Preceptorships
Guaranteed Program Acceptances
Alumni Mentoring

VIP Access to University/Divisional
Guests

Dec 2012
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SCHOOL OF ENGINEERING AND APPLIED SCIENCE
FEE PROPOSAL

2012-2013

INTRODUCTION

The School of Engineering and Applied Science SEAS) is committed to providing high-quality
undergraduate and graduate education that integrates computing and engineering disciplinary learning
with Miami University’s traditional strength in liberal education.

SEAS features a talented faculty who exemplify the teacher-scholar model of Miami University as well as
state-of-the-art facilities and new and forward-thinking initiatives such as the Lockheed Martin Leadership
Institute and the Mobile Learning Center. These elements provide an opportunity for SEAS to take a
substantial leap forward in quality and national prominence.

We are poised to make substantial gains on this goal. Our student enrollment has substantially increased
from 234 students in the fall 2007 entering class to 420 students in the fall 2012 entering class, and even
more impressively, the academic profile of our students is among the highest in the University. These high-
ability students have demonstrated their preference for Miami’s approach to engineering education, and
they have high expectations for the quality of their experience here. We believe that we can provide them
with an exemplary experience, but only if we obtain additional revenues and invest them in the
enhancement of SEAS educational programs.

PROPOSAL

We propose to implement a $300 per semester fee for all School of Engineering and Applied Science (SEAS)
undergraduate students at the Oxford campus beginning in the fall 2013 semester. The students’ fee will be
charged per entering cohort and remain unchanged for four years for that specific cohort. If a student stops
out for a semester or more, they become part of the cohort for the term they are readmitted and their fee is
reset for four years consistent with that cohort. If a student does not complete his/her studies in four years
(without stopping out), the assessed fee starting in the fifth year will be based on the current cohort rate of
that year. The fee amount will be re-evaluated on an annual basis for each incoming cohort. All current
students will be grandfathered and will not be charged this proposed fee.

RATIONALE

Currently, SEAS students pay the same tuition as all other undergraduates at Miami, even though the cost
for engineering and computing instruction is considerably higher than for instruction in most other majors.
However, the cost of instruction in SEAS is higher because engineering is a design-based, creative
enterprise which demands experiential, collaborative, and project-based learning and up-to-date

November 7, 2012
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laboratory and computer equipment. The design-based approach and extensive laboratory component of
computing and engineering courses necessitates a lower student per faculty ratio than the ratio required in
lecture-based courses. That is why every public institution in the state of Ohio has that has an engineering
college charges an engineering fee (see Table III).

An additional challenge at Miami is that the number of SEAS students has increased by over 60% in the last
5 years while the number of SEAS faculty has decreased by 4% (see Table I).

And finally, the new Responsibility Centered Management budgeting approach does not include extra
weighting to offset higher instructional costs.

FURTHER DISCUSSION

As mentioned before, and demonstrated in Table I below, the number of SEAS students increased
dramatically over the last five years while the number of faculty declined.

Table I. Changes in the numbers of SEAS students and faculty between fall 2007 and fall 2012

Semester Number of Total number Number of Student per
SEAS first of SEAS tenure-line faculty ratio
year students faculty and
students lecturers
Fall 2007 234 799 45 18
Fall 2008 276 856 45 19
Fall 2009 231 923 44 21
Fall 2010 319 1036 44 24
Fall 2011 346 1125 42 27
Fall 2012 420 1290 43 30
Fall 2012 -
% change since 80% 61% -4% 67%
Fall 2007

Group and design projects are more expensive than lecture-based courses because they require
coordination with industry and production of working prototype devices. Design projects require access to
commercial grade computer software and state-of-the-art equipment that can be very costly.

Although the cost of laboratory and computing facilities continues to rise, the university and state
appropriations for this equipment has declined in the past five years (Table II).

November 7, 2012
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Table Il. Laboratory and computer equipment allocation for SEAS

Source: University and State Appropriation
Amount ($)

Fiscal year

2008 123,025
2009 114,860
2010 64,700
2011 55,370
2012 72,000

The highest allocation given in the last five years occurred in FY 2008. Since then the amount has steadily
decreased. We project that the allocation in the years to come will be in the range of $50,000 - $60,000.

To keep our laboratory and computing instructional infrastructure up-to-date, SEAS needs, on average,
about $200,000 per year, leaving an estimated gap between our needs and the allocated amounts in the
range of $140,000 - 150,000.

Finally, every public institution in the state of Ohio that has an engineering college charges an engineering

fee. Comparison data (and sorted on cost per semester hour) are below.

Table Ill. Engineering fees charged by public institution in the state of Ohio
and Miami’s proposed fee

Institution Fees Semester Cost per Semester

Cost: Hour?

University of Toledo | $17.50 per credit hour, $580 $36

plus up to $3003 (maximum) (maximum)

Ohio State University | $540 per semester* $540 $34

University of $504 per semester $504 $32

Cincinnati

Miami University $300 per semester $300 $18.75

Cleveland State $17 per credit hour $272 $17

University

Youngstown State $252 per semester $252 $16

University

University of Akron $15 per credit hour $240 $15

Wright State $20 per credit hours $150 $9

University (maximum)

Ohio University $97 per semester $97 $6

"If fees are on a per credit hour basis, semester cost assumes 16 semester hours

2 If fees are on a per semester basis, cost per semester hour assumes 16 semester hours
? Engineering infrastructure fee is for Sophomore-Senior UG students and is $25 per credit hour up to a maximum of $300 per semester
* Combination of program fee and learning technology fee

5 Maximum of $150 per semester

November 7, 2012
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REVENUES

The implementation of the SEAS fee will generate, in its steady state, approximately $800,000 per year
($600 per academic year x 1325 SEAS students).

The fee is vital in allowing SEAS to hire new faculty members and maintain and continuously modernize
aging computer and laboratory facilities.

Table IV. Preliminary Plans for Allocation of Engineering Fee Revenue

Category Amount
6 new faculty members (salaries and benefits) $650,000
Computer and laboratory facilities $150,000

The additional cost of the fee is balanced by the high value of the SEAS educational experience. Engineering
and computing graduates routinely receive more job offers and higher salary offers than most other
undergraduate majors at the University. In September 2012, the average starting salary for B.S. graduates
in engineering and computing was $75,000 with many graduates earning much higher amounts
(http://www.engineersalary.org/). Given that the average Miami student graduates with a debt of
$28,000, the cost of the new SEAS graduate’s debt would be offset by the first year of income. In this sense,
the SEAS degree is a bargain.

All of the additional revenue will be used to provide enhancements to the quality and breadth of the
educational programs through a process of continuous innovation and improvement.

OUTCOMES

This proposal is consistent with the vision of Miami University to “provide the best undergraduate
experience in the nation, enhanced by superior, select graduate programs” and with the first target goal of
the Miami 2020 Plan to “promote an innovative, engaged learning and discovery environment that
produces extraordinary student and scholarly success.”

The anticipated outcomes of this fee increase include:

o The capacity to attract and retain high-quality faculty dedicated to the teacher-scholar mission of
Miami University;

e Personalized attention and close interaction of faculty and students inside and outside the
classroom which has a known impact on timely completion of degrees for majority and
underrepresented studentss;

e State-of-the-art equipment to ensure that our students are well prepared for complex leadership
positions in the computing and engineering fields;

e Increased opportunities for students to engage in undergraduate research and international
learning.

6 Kuh, G. (2008). High-Impact Educational Practices: What They Are, Who Has Access to Them, and Why They
Matter. Washington, DC: Association of American Colleges & Universities.

4
November 7, 2012
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COMMUNICATION PLAN

PAST DISCUSSIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

August 19, 2011

SEAS Divisional meeting (all faculty and staff): One of the SEAS priorities for 2011-2012 was “Conducting
feasibility study on engineering course and program fee”. This was briefly discussed at the meeting.

September 9, 2011
SEAS Executive Council meeting: The agenda for this meeting included a goal within the list of SEAS
Priorities for 2011-2012 of “Engineering course and program fees (conduct feasibility study)”.

November 11, 2011
SEAS Advisory Council Meeting: The concept of instituting a SEAS fee was introduced by Dean Dollar in his
State of the School address.

December 8, 2011
Meeting of the Academic and Student Affairs Subcommittee of the Board of Trustees: Dean Dollar’s
presentation at this meeting included a brief item on the necessity of instituting a SEAS fee.

February 1, 2012

SEAS Oxford Faculty and Staff meeting: Part of the Dean’s presentation, included a list of other Ohio
universities and the engineering fees they charge. He discussed the need for the fee to partially offset
budget cuts and to increase the size of the tenure-track faculty.

February 10, 2012
Oxford Leadership Council meeting: A preliminary proposal on the SEAS engineering fee, including
rationale and proposed fee amount, was presented and discussed.

February and March, 2012

Dean’s meetings with four SEAS Oxford-based departments: Mechanical and Manufacturing Engineering,
Computer Science and Software Engineering, Chemical and Paper Engineering, and Electrical and
Computer Engineering. These meetings included a follow up on the February 1 presentation, including Q&A
sessions. A current version of the proposal to introduce the SEAS engineering fee was presented and
discussed.

March 22,2012
Oxford Leadership Council: A detailed proposal to institute a SEAS fee was discussed.

May 14-15, 2012
Miami University Board of Trustees retreat: Dean Dollar’s report and verbal comments included the
rationale for a SEAS fee.

August 17,2012
SEAS Divisional meeting (all faculty and staff): In discussing his priorities for 2012-2013, the Dean listed
final approval and implementation of SEAS the fee as one of the highest priorities and briefly discussed it.

November 7, 2012
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August 31, 2012
Oxford Leadership Council meeting: A discussion of SEAS fee was included within a more general
discussion of SEAS budgetary issues and priorities.

September 7, 2012
SEAS Executive Council meeting: At this meeting, in a discussion of SEAS Priorities - budgetary matters, the
council discussed the item “Finalize SEAS fee proposal and seek Board of Trustees approval.”

September 12, 2012
SEAS Oxford Faculty and Staff meeting: As part of his presentation, the Dean provided a rationale and
specific proposal for $300 per semester SEAS Fee.

October 2012

Dean’s meetings with four SEAS Oxford-based departments: Mechanical and Manufacturing, Computer
Science and Software Engineering, Chemical and Paper Engineering, and Electrical and Computer
Engineering. The Dean provided a final briefing on the SEAS fee proposal before forwarding it to Provost
Gempesaw.

November 1-2,2012

SEAS Advisory Council Meeting: The SEAS Fee proposal was discussed by the Executive Committee of the
Advisory Council on November 1. It was then presented to the entire Advisory Council on November 2.
Finally, it was endorsed by the Executive Committee.

November 7, 2012
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APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 02013-xx
School of Engineering and Applied Science Fee
2013-2014 Academic Year

WHEREAS, the School of Engineering and Applied Science requests that a $300

per semester fee be established for students who major in the School commencing with
the fall 2013 freshman cohort; and

WHEREAS, a proposal describing the need for the fee, how the fee is intended to
be used for the benefit of students admitted to the School, and how the fee will be
assessed accompanies this ordinance and will guide the implementation and use of the
fee;

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: that the Board of Trustees adopts the

proposed School of Engineering and Applied Science fee effective for the fall 2013
freshman cohort.

Attachment D, Page 7 of 7 Dec 2012
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY

SPENDING FORMULA DECISION POINTS
FISCAL YEAR 2013

1. Considerations
With the care that an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise
under similar circumstances, we have considered the following factors:
e The duration and preservation of the endowment fund;
The purposes of the institution and the endowment fund;
General economic conditions;
The possible effect of inflation or deflation;
The expected total return from income and the appreciation of
investments;
e Other resources of the institution;
e The investment policy of the institution.

2. Market Element
e Monte Carlo simulations were used to project the probabilities of
maintaining intergenerational equity using different market elements and
different risk/return assumptions.
e TFY 2004 - 2012 formulas used 4.5%.
e Outcomes from this approach have been satisfactory.
e Recommended for FY 2013: stay with the 4.5% multiplier.

3. Inflation Element
e Monte Carlo simulations were used to study the impact of changes in the
inflation rate.
e FY 2004 - 2012 formulas used the Consumer Price Index (CPI).
e Calculation will be based on 3/31/2013 CPI value for prior 12 months.
e Recommended for FY 2013: stay with the CPL

4. Underwater Funds
e The status of underwater funds will be evaluated throughout the fiscal year.
e Ifunderwater funds exist in the fourth fiscal quarter, a recommendation for
those funds will be crafted at that time.
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Business Session
Item #

RESOLUTION R2013-

WHEREAS, Miami University receives and manages contributions of
cash, securities, life insurance, personal property, and real estate in its
endowment; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to continue the policy of
supporting University operations and scholarships through the distribution of
income and realized gains from the endowment; and

WHEREAS, Miami University Resolution 2004-46 established a
Spending Policy effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, and authorized
such Policy to remain in effect until formally modified by the Board of Trustees;
and

WHEREAS, Miami University Resolution 2010-4 established an amended
Spending Policy effective with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010, and
authorized such Policy to remain in effect until formally modified by the Board of
Trustees; and

WHEREAS, Miami University Resolution 2010-4 also directed the Vice
President for Finance and Business Services annually to evaluate the variables
underlying the spending formula and to present recommendations as to the
spending formula to be used for the fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the Vice President for Finance and Business Services has
recommended to the Finance Committee of the Board of Trustees that the formula
remain unchanged for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and the Finance
Committee has accepted that recommendation; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees, has considered the proposed Spending
Policy, with the care that an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would
exercise under similar circumstances, considering the following factors:

The duration and preservation of the endowment fund;

The purposes of the institution and the endowment fund;
General economic conditions;

The possible effect of inflation or deflation;

The expected total return from income and the appreciation of
investments;

6. Other resources of the institution;
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Business Session
Item # 7

Miami University
Finance and Audit Committee
FY 2013 Forecasted Operating Results
Projections Based upon Activity through October 31,2012
OXFORD
The initial projection for the Oxford General Fund is a surplus of approximately $5.6
million. Details of the specific items are highlighted below.

Revenues and Scholarship Expense

The initial projection of Oxford campus student fee revenue (instructional, general and out-
of-state) yields a revenue forecast that is $1.2 million over the $308.4 million budget. As these
budget projections are primarily based on the first semester only, they could increase or decrease as
the fiscal year progresses.

The forecast for the Oxford campus state appropriations is approximately $705,000 less than
budget resulting from a minor decrease in the actual full time equivalent students as compared to
carly projections. For the same reason, the Hamilton campus forecast is $35,000 greater than budget
and the Middletown campus forecasts are equal to budget.

Interest and dividend income booked through October 31, 2012, was approximately
$621,000. This amount does not include an estimate of the year-end mark-to-market, which is
virtually impossible to predict at this time. If we had marked the portfolio to market as of October
31*, an unrealized gain of $6.4 million would have been recorded. Given the volatility of the current
market, this number could improve or decrease further as the year progresses. Therefore, we are
forecasting investment income to be equal to budget.

All other revenue projections are relatively equal to budget.

Expenditures and Transfers

Employee salaries and staff benefits are initially projected to be under budget, which is
primarily attributable to the number of unfilled and vacant positions. The healthcare expense is also
projecting budgetary savings that is a result of a decrease in health care claims of 15.3 percent
through October.

The $1.2 million budget savings in departmental support expenditures, combined with the

budget variance in salaries, resulted in the $3.9 million projected transfer for departmental
budgetary carryforward.
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Business Session
Item # 7

[HAMILTON & MIDDLETOWN|

The initial projection of Hamilton campus student fee revenue (instructional, general and
out-of-state) is approximately equal to the budget, whereas the Middletown campus student fee
revenue is slightly below budget. Expenditures on both campuses are either at or below budget.
Overall, the General Funds for Hamilton and Middletown are projecting operating surpluses of $1.3
million and $374,000, respectively. The Hamilton campus budget includes $2.4 million in capital
project transfers that is scheduled to be used for campus improvements.

[VOICE OF AMERICA LEARNING CENTER|

The initial projection for the Voice of America Learning Center (VOALC) is on budget. As
in the prior fiscal year, the funding support for the VOALC has been separately displayed for all
three campuses and the VOALC. This transfer represents the budgeted financial support from each
campus for funding the VOALC administrative operations.
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Year-to-Date vs. Budget

MIAMI UNIVERSITY
FY2013 Forecast
Oxford General Fund Only
As of October 31, 2012

REVENUES:
Instructional
General
Out-of-State Surcharge
Other Student Revenue
Tuition, Fees and Other Student Charges

State Appropriations

Investment Income

Other Revenue
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries
Benefits
Healthcare Expense
Graduate Assistant Fee Waivers
Utilities
Scholarships, Fellowships & Std Fee Waivers
Miami Grant
Departmental Support Expenditures
Multi-year Expenditures
Total Expenditures

DEBT SERVICE AND TRANSFERS:
General Fee
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Support for VOALC (50%)
Other Miscellaneous Operational Transfers
Total Debt Service and Transfers

Net Revenues/(Expenditures) Before Adjustments

ADJUSTMENTS:
Departmental Budgetary Carryforward

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Fund Balance

Attachment F, Page 3 of 13

Dec 2012
11/28/2012
Original End-of-Year Budget to
Budget Forecast Forecast

$266,895,841 $267,500,000 $604,159
$29,150,971 $29,376,000 $225,029
$12,335,128 $12,700,000 $364,872
$10,325,001 $11,100,000 $774,999
$318,706,941 $320,676,000 $1,969,059

$56,198,123 $55,493,000 ($705,123)
$4,325,000 $4,325,000 $0
$2,810,587 $3,000,000 $189,413
$382.040,651 000 $1.453.349
$153,406,345 $149,900,000 $3,506,345
$31,961,408 $30,850,000 $1,111,408
$25,000,000 $24,072,000 $928,000
$23,049,516 $20,500,000 $2,549,516
$13,761,680 $13,761,000 $680
$59,661,193 $58,100,000 $1,561,193
$4,300,000 $4,200,000 $100,000
$30,226,049 $29,000,000 $1,226,049
$4,205,000 34 000 $0
$345,571,191 $334,588.000 $10,983,191
($26,744,540) ($26,425,000) $319,540

($3,480,000) ($3,780,000) ($300,000)

($5,236,098) ($5,911,000) ($674,902)
($575,000) ($575,000) $0

($433,822) ($2,700.000) ($2.266,178)
(33 ($39,391,000) ($2,921.540)
$0 $9,515,000 $9,515,000

$0 ($3,905.000) {$3.905,000)
30 $5,610,000 $5,610,000
Dec 2012
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Year-to-Date vs. Budget

MIAMI UNIVERSITY

Hamilton General Fund Only
As of October 31, 2012

REVENUES:
Instructional
General
Out-of-State Surcharge
Other Student Revenue
State Appropriations
Investment Income
Other Revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries
Benefits
Healthcare Expense
Graduate Assistant Fee Waivers
Utilities
Scholarships, Fellowships & Std Fee Waivers
Departmental Support Expenditures
Total Expenditures

DEBT SERVICE AND TRANSFERS:
General Fee
Capital Projects
Support for VOALC (25%)
Other Miscellaneous Operational Transfers
Total Debt Service and Transfers

Net Revenues/(Expenditures) Before Adjustments
ADJUSTMENTS:
Departmental Budgetary Carryforward

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Fund Balance

Dec 2012

11/28/2012
FY2013 Forecast
Original End-of-Year Budget to
Budget Forecast Forecast
$18,920,003 $18,880,000 ($40,003)
$1,296,230 $1,280,000 ($16,230)
$359,536 $475,000 $115,464
$233,200 $250,000 $16,800
$7,511,604 $7,547,000 $35,396
$40,000 $40,000 $0
$223,700 $200,000 ($23,700)
$28,584,273 $28,672,000 $87,727
$13,500,358 $12,500,000 $1,000,358
$2,623,607 $2,024,000 $599,607
$2,052,168 $1,976,000 $76,176
$0 $50 ($50)
$849,617 $760,000 $89,617
$715,000 $550,000 $165,000
$5,070,891 $5,071,000 ($109)
$24,811,641 $22,881,050 $1,930,591
($555,332) ($555,000) $332
($2,366,851) ($2,367,000) ($149)
($275,205) ($275,000) $205
($575,244) ($575,000) $244
($3,772,632) ($3,772,000) $632
$0 $2,018,950 $2,018,950
$0 ($700.000) ($700.000)
30 318 950 $1 31 950
Dec 2012
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Year-to-Date vs. Budget

MIAMI UNIVERSITY

Middletown General Fund Only

As of October 31, 2012

REVENUES:
Instructional
General
Out-of-State Surcharge
Other Student Revenue
State Appropriations
Investment Income
Other Revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries
Benefits
Healthcare Expense
Graduate Assistant Fee Waivers
Utilities
Scholarships, Fellowships & Std Fee Waivers
Departmental Support Expenditures
Multi-year Expenditures
Total Expenditures

DEBT SERVICE AND TRANSFERS:
General Fee
Support for VOALC (25%)
Other Miscellaneous Operational Transfers
Total Debt Service and Transfers

Net Revenues/(Expenditures) Before Adjustments

ADJUSTMENTS:
Departmental Budgetary Carryforward

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Fund Balance

11/28/2012
FY2013 Forecast
Original End-of-Year Budget to
Budget Forecast Forecast
$11,819,475 $11,690,000 ($129,475)
$796,291 $770,000 ($26,291)
$236,876 $100,000 ($136,876)
$183,600 $185,000 $1,400
$5,848,943 $5,849,000 $57
$26,000 $26,000 $0
$119,911 $100,000 ($19,911)
$19,031,096 $18,720,000 ($311,096)
$10,254,924 $9,500,000 $754,924
$1,978,807 $1,810,000 $168,807
$1,547,809 $1,490,000 $57,455
$0 $0 $0
$735,443 $640,000 $95,443
$630,000 $630,000 $0
$3,948,262 $3,800,000 $148,262
$0 $40,000 ($40,000)
$19,095,245 7.910.000 $1,185,245
($211,056) ($211,000) $56
($275,205) ($275,000) $205
550 10 $550 000 10
149 000
30 $874,000 $874,000
$0 ($500.000) ($500,000)
000
Dec 2012
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Year-to-Date vs. Budget

MIAMI UNIVERSITY

FY2013 Forecast
Voice of America Learning Center General Fund Only
As of October 31, 2012

REVENUES:
Other Revenue
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries
Benefits
Utilities
Departmental Support Expenditures
Total Expenditures

DEBT SERVICE AND TRANSFERS:
Capital Projects
Debt Service

Funding for VOA
Total Debt Service and Transfers

Net Revenues/(Expenditures) Before Adjustments

YEAR-END ADJUSTMENTS:
Departmental Budgetary Carryforward

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Fund Balance

Attachment F, Page 6 of 13

Original
Budget

$20 000

$212,487
$86,057
$81,200
750

494

$0
($484,192)
1149
494

$0

$0
$0

End-of-Year
Forecast

000

$212,000
$86,000
$65,000
$ 000
000

($10,000)
($484,000)
150 000

$7,000

$0

$7.000

Dec 2012

11/28/2012

Budget to
Forecast

$0

$487
$57
$16,200

($10,000)
$192
$314

$7,000

$0

$7.000

Dec 2012
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Health Benefits, Hauser and Fahner

Dec 2012

Trends in Health Benefit Cost

CY 2004 through CY 2011

Aggregate
|Description CY 2004 CY 2005 CY 2006 CY 2007 CY 2008 CY 2009 CY 2010 CY 2011 Trend
[Total Claims and HSE Contributions $24,341,826 | $25,416,121 | $29,534,995 $30,980,661 $35,705,895 $40,207,412 $37,348,945 $41,106,166 68.87%
Less: Co-Pays and Deductibles? $1,799,589 | $1,879,011 | $2,183,519 $2,290,397 $4,963,349 $5,360,174 $4,840,215 $5,273,073 193.02%
Less: Employee Premium $816,669 $860,625 | $1,261,363 $2,015,167 $2,579,970 $2,943,745 $2,833,043 $2,775,423 239.85%
Net Cost: $21,725,568 | $22,676,485 | $26,090,113 $26,675,097 528,162,576 $31,903,493 $29,675,687 $33,057,670 52.16%
Benefit Eligible Employees

(including COBRA)(AVG) 3,505 3,607 3,618 3,672 3,781 3,481 3,336 3,160 -9.84%
Covered Lives (AVG) 8,066 8,295 8,281 8,342 8,368 8,120 7,699 7,546 -6.45%
Cost per Employee (Full) $6,945 $7,046 $8,163 $8,437 $9,444 $11,551 $11,196 $13,008 87.31%
Cost per Covered Lives (Full) $3,018 $3,064 $3,567 $3,714 $4,267 $4,952 $4,851 $5,447 80.51%
Cost per Employee (Net) $6,198 $6,287 $7,211 $7,264 $7,448 $9,165 $8,896 $10,461 68.77%
Cost per Covered Life (Net) $2,693 $2,734 $3,151 $3,198 $3,366 $3,929 $3,854 $4,381 62.65%
Employee Share of Premium? 3.36% 3.39% 4.27% 6.50% 7.23% 7.32% 7.59% 6.75%

Employee Total Contribution 10.75% 10.78% 11.66% 13.90% 21.13% 20.65% 20.54% 19.58%
Total Claims Trend n/a 4.41% 16.21% 4.89% 15.25% 12.61% -7.11% 10.06%
Net Cost Trend n/a 4.38% 15.86% 2.85% 5.18% 12.61% -7.45% 11.30%
Employee Trend (Full) n/a 1.46% 15.85% 3.35% 11.93% 22.31% -3.07% 16.19%
Covered Lives Trend (Full) n/a 1.53% 16.40% 4.13% 14.89% 16.05% -2.03% 12.29%
Employee Trend (Net) n/a 1.43% 14.70% 0.74% 2.53% 23.05% -2.94% 17.60%
Covered Life Trend (Net) n/a 1.50% 15.25% 1.49% 5.25% 16.74% -1.90% 13.66%
Major Claims $10,176,723 $10,508,199 $13,159,917
Major Claims Lives 91 89 90
Major Claims: % Covered Lives 1.12% 1.16% 1.19%
Major Claims: % Net Cost 31.90% 35.41% 39.81%
Unclassified/Faculty Raise Pool (FY) 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 2.75% 0.0% 0.0% 2.0%

1. Prior to 2009. these amounts had to be estimated due to a lack of supporting documentation.

increase was awarded in July 2011.

2. The employee premium was not increased in 2010 or 2011 due to an understanding that premiums would not rise until pay increases were reinstated. The 2.0% pay

Attachment G, Page 1 of 5
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY
Medical Plan Design 2003 to 2014
2003 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Office PCP $10 $25 $25* $25
Office Specialist $10 $35 $35* $35
Further Further
Further Increase [Increase Being|Increase Being
PPO Maximum Out-of-Pocket $500/5$1000 $2000/54000 $2,000-54,000 Being Studied Studied Studied
HDHP Maximum Out-of-Pocket n/a $3000/56000 $3,000/$6,000* $3,000/$6,000,
PPO Deductible n/a $250/$500 $250/$500 Possible Increase
HDHP Deductible n/a $2000/54000 $2,000/$4,000* $2,000/$4,000
Co-Insurance n/a 80/20 80/20* 80/20
Urgent Care $20 $100 $35 $35
Emergency Room S50 S35 S$100* $100
Out-Patient S50* 20%) 20%* 20%)
In-Patient $100* 20% 20%* 20%
RX* $10/$20/$30| $10/535/560/$100| $10/535/560/5100* $10/$35/560/5100
1.32%, 2.9%,
.95%, 1.93%, 2.7 - 1.1%, 2.3%, 3.2% - 1.1%, 2.3%, 3.2% -| 4.22% - 30% +
Premium Contributions (Single, Two 25%+ 30% + $363, $799,| 30% + $599, $1,318,| $878, 51,933,
Members, Family) (PPO) None $165, $363, $528 51,162 $1,917 $2,811
Wellness Discount (Employee/Spouse) S0 $180/5180 $180/5180 $180/5180
Tobacco-Free Discount
(Employee/Spouse) SO $180/5$180 $180/5$180 $360/$360 $540/5540 $720/$720
Spouse Restrictions No New Hires All Employees All Employees
* PPO Only
Attachment G, Page 2 of 5 Dec 2012
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY

Opportunities USI Savings Estimates Miami Implementation

2013 2013 2013

1. Employee premium spread between PPO and | $1,500,000 - $2,000,000 Continue with previously established premium
HSA too small plan, for calendar year 2013 estimating an

additional$1,600,000 in employee withholdings.
Upon conclusion of plan (2015) employee
withholdings will have increased by $4,700,000.

2. Grandfathering spouses costly to Miami $2,700,000 - $3,200,000 Benefit Committee recommendation to
implement Working Spouse/Other coverage rule,
if spouse has access to other coverage and pays
50% or less of the premium the spouse is required
to enroll in the other coverage.

3. Miami paying too much for double coverage $250,000 - $350,000 Continuing to evaluate options related to the
Medicare eligible population.

4. Plan designs too generous $96,000 - $736,000 Benefit Committee is considering for 2014.
Increase ER co-pay ($150) Current ER copay ($100) is the benchmark;
Increase deductible($500) Advisory Board estimates savings at $20,000 if

copay is $150.

5. PBM costs currently excessive $440,000 - $567,000 Already planned to integrate PBM contracting

with RFP and evaluate pharmacy collectives.

6. Medical co-pays should not count toward OOP | $160,000 - $175,000 Implemented continuous pharmacy co-pays in

2012 and already planned to continue medical
copays in 2013.

7. Accessing primary care telephonically $90,000 - $123,000 Benefit Committee is not recommending based on
opinions from health care professionals. May also
duplicate some services provided by personal
nurse line. Considering alternatives through
urgent care and onsite health clinic.

8. Pharmacy plan mandatory mail order $132,000 - $180,000 Benefit Committee is recommending. Humana
estimates savings to be $95,000.
9. Increase pharmacy cost share on Asthma & $100,000 - $130,000 Benefit Committee not recommending based on
Diabetes to % of standard copays reduction in ER visits: 2009 19 asthma related
visits, 2011 5 asthma related visits.
10. Addressing McCullough Hyde facility $100,000 - $352,000 Independent Lab Fee schedule and reduced

imaging fees effective January 2012. Continued
conversations regarding a high performance

Attachment G, Page 3 of 5 network. Dec 2012
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Comparison of Employee Premium Contributions

Health Benefits, Hauser and Fahner

Other Inter-University Schools

CYy 2013

Akron 15%
Bowling Green 15%/20%"
Central State 10%/12%"°
Cleveland State 15%/20%>
Cincinnati 14%/11%*
Kent State 14%
Northeast Ohio Medical n/a
Ohio State 15%
Ohio 15%
Shawnee State 7%
Toledo n/a
Wright State 15%
Youngstown State 15%
Miami® 13%
Greater Cincinnati Employers 13%22%°

(500+ Employees) 15%/23%’

1. Single is 15% and Family is 20%

2. Hourly is 10% and Salaried is 12%

3. The high PPO requires a 20% premium.

4, HMO is 11% and PPO is 14%.

5. Miami's average premium is 13% but it ranges up to 30%. It applies to both the
the HSA and the PPO plan.

6. Single (2011) HSA/PPO.

7. Family (2011) HSA/PPO.

Attachment G, Page 4 of 5

CY 2014
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

15%

n/a

CY 2015
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

17%

n/a

n/a

Dec 2012

Dec 2012
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Health Benefits, Hauser and Fahner

Compensation Comparison
Fall 2011

Faculty Salary Rank
Ohio’s Public Universities

Professor: 6"
Associate Professor: gt
Assistant Professor: th

(9]

Staff Salary Comparison
Mid-Size Employers — Greater Cincinnati Area

Accounting, Finance, Information
Technology, Architects, and
Engineers 92% of Market Mean

Skilled Technical: 85% of Market Mean

Dec 2012

Dec 2012
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY

Long-Term Budget Plan
Oxford Education and General Budget
Fiscal Year 2013 through Fiscal Year 2022

Description 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Net Income (Loss) Before
New Revenue $1,580,814  $2,400,408 $3,444,704 ($383,462)  ($7,619,827) ($11,008,036) ($15,397,625) ($21,060,810) ($26,240,187) ($31,875,775)

New Revenue Opportunities:
1. Increase proportion of non-resident

enrollments $0 $810,503  $2,512,161  $4,883,059  $8,032,985  $10,429,640  $12,884,290  $14,817,223  $16,708,684  $18,785,785
2. Grow Fee Paying Graduate Students $0 $344,250 $877,838  $1,790,789  $3,653,207  $5962,037  $8,361,759  $10,855,077  $13,444,800  $16,133,759
3. Grow ACE Enroliments $0 $306,000  $1,211,026  $2,699,713  $4,773,525  $6,597,585  $7,858,361  $8,573,788  $8,745264  $8,920,168
4. Top Program $0 $344,250 $856,770  $1,719,157  $2,732,600  $3,920,039  $5,032,257  $5,892,757  $6,390,231  $6,518,035
5. Grow Transfer Enroliment $0 $261,375 $735,823  $1,631,607  $2,440,884  $3,406,365  $4,063,194  $4,432,575  $4,521,227  $4,611,651
6. Improve Retention and Graduation $0 $0 $527,208  $1,054,416  $1,581,624  $2,172,734  $2,764,477  $3,356,864  $3,424,002  $3,492,482
7. Fully Assess Campus Tuition $0 $581,250 $592,875 $907,099 $925,241  $1,258,327  $1,283494  $1,309,164  $1,335,347  $1,362,059
Adjusted Net Income (Loss) " 41,580,814~ $5,048,036 ~ $10,758,405 = $14,302,378 = $16,520,239 = $22,738,691 = $26,850,207 = $28,176,638 ~ $28,329,368 = $27,948,164
Additional Productivity Gains $0 %0 S0  $1,536,880  $3,130,504  $4,787,884  $6,507,094  $8,291,058  $10,141,641  $12,060,909
Additional Instructional Cost $0 " ($502,350)" ($1,683,466) 7 ($3,558,273)  ($6,072,736)  ($8,823,504) " ($11,232,019) " ($13,244,424) " ($14,610,210)" ($15,870,438)
Net Income (Loss) $1,580,814  $4,545686  $9,074,939  $12,280,985  $13,578,007  $18,703,071  $22,125282  $23,223,272  $23,860,799  $24,138,635

Attachment H, Page 1 of 7 Dec 2012



Attachment H, Page 2 of 7 Long Rnage Budget Dec 2012

Business Session
Item 8b

Long-Term Budget:Plan.. .-
_ Oxford Education:and:Geéneral-Budget .
Fiscal Year 2013 through:Fiscal Year 2022
" Planning Assumptions.
Moderate Scenario Assumptions (Baseline Budget)
Tuition: 2% annual increase
State Support: 2% annual increase (two of every threeyears)
Salaries: 2% annual increase
Health Care: 8% annual increase (12% trend less 4% reduction for cost containment)
Utilities: 2% annual increase (4% trend less 2% savingsfrom energy: conservation)
Other Expense: 2% annual increase '
‘Fall Class: ' : 3,600
Additional Strategic Priorities Savings: $10,037,972 through FY 2015

New Revenue Opportunities

1. Non-Resident Percentage of Fall Class Baseline: 38.5%
2014: 40.0% 2015: 41.5% 2016: 43.0% 2017: 44.0% 2018: 44.0% 2019: 45.0%
2020: 45.0% 2021: 46% 2022: 46.0%
‘Incremental Revenue per Student = $15,000 + 2% Annual Growth

2. Fee Paying Graduate Students (Addition‘al) {Average Length-3 Semesters)

Incoming Total New Enrollment
FY 2014: 25 FY 2014: 25

FY 2015: 50 FY 2015: 63

FY 2016: 100 FY 2016: 125
FY 2017: 200 FY 2017: 250
FY 2018: 300 - FY 2018: 400
FY 2019: 400 FY 2019: 550
FY 2020: 500 FY 2020: 700
FY 2021: 600 FY 2021: 850
FY 2022: 700 FY 2022: 1,000

incremental Revenue per Student = $13,500 + 2% Annual Growth

3. ACE Enroliments (Additional Spring Enroliments)

Incoming Total {Annualized)
FY 2014: 25 FY 2014: 12.5
FY 2015: 50 FY 2015: 48.5
FY 2016: 75 FY 2016: 106
FYy 2017: 100 FY 2017: 184
FY 2018: 100 FY 2018: 249
FY 2019: 100 FY 2019: 291
FY 2020: 100 FY 2020: 311
FY 2021: 100 FY 2021: 311
FY 2022: 100 FY 2022: 311

incremental Revenue per Student = $10,250 + 2% Annual Growth

Page 1 of-3
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Business Session
Item 8b

Long-Term Budget Plan
Oxford Education and General Budget
Fiscal Year 2013 through Fiscal Year 2022
" Planning Assumptions .

4. Top Program (Spring Enroliment, Oxford Campus)

Incoming Total (Annualized)
FY 2014: 50 FY 2014: 25
FY 2015: 50 FY 2015: 61
Fy 2016: 100 FY 2016: 120
FY 2017: 100 FY 2017 187
Fy 2018: 150 FY 2018: 263
FYy 2019: 150 FY 2019: 331
FY 2020: 150 FY 2020: .380
FY 2021: 150 FY 2021: 404
FY 2022: 150 FY 2022: 404

Incremental Revenue per Student = $13,500 + 2% Annual Growth

5. Transfer Enroliment (Additional)

Incoming Total New Enrollment
FY 2014: 25 FY 2014: 25 '
FY 2015: 50 FY 2015: 69
FY 2016: 100 FY 2016: 150
FY 2017: 100 FY 2017: 220
FY 2018: 150 FY 2018: 301
FY 2019: 150 FY 2019: 352
FY 2020: 180 FY 2020: 384
FY 2021: 180 FY 2021: 384
FY 2022: 180 FY 2022: 384

Incremental Revenue per Student = $10,250 + 2% Annual Growth

6. Improve Freshmen Retention (88.9% Baseline)
FY 2015: 89.9%
FY 2018: 90.9%

7. Assess Oxford Tuition for All Students Enrolled on the Oxford Campus )
FY 2014: 50% Drop in Regional Campus Students Enrolled on the Oxford Campus
FY 2016: 75% of Historic Enroliment by Regional Campus Students
FY 2018: 100% of Historic Enroliment by Regional Campus Students

Additional Costs or Cost Offsets
Additional Productivity improvements:
There is an expectation that annual productivity gains of .5% wilt continue to occur after the Strategic
Priorities recommendations are accomplished in FY 2015.

Page 2 of 3
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Business Session
item 8b

Long-Term Budget Plan
.Oxford Education and General Budget
Fiscal Year 2013 through Fiscal Year 2022
Planning Assumptions

Increased Cost of Instruction: .
The cost of instruction is assumed to increase for those revenue strategies that lead to an increase in

enroliment. Forty percent of the new revenue is dedicated for the hiring of additional faculty or
other investments in instructional activities. Costs other than for instruction are not expected to

‘increase.

Page 3 of 3
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Business Session
Item 9

To: Finance and Audit Committee

Bartara ¥ Teaa—

From: Barbara K. Jena, Director of Internal Audit and Consulting Services
Subject: Internal Audit & Consulting Services - November 2012 Report

Date: November 14, 2012

The following presents the Internal Audit and Consulting Services (IACS) annual plan and scope of
internal audit activities, a summary of Internal Audit issues raised in reports, and IACS staffing and
budget for fiscal year 2013.

1. Annual plan and scope of internal audit activities

Attached (on page 2) is the IACS FY 2013 Audit Plan which was based on an updated risk assessment of
key areas across the University. It was reviewed and approved by Mike Armstrong and David Creamer
and is now presented to the full Committee for your approval and any comments you may have. The
Internal Audit risk analysis was also reviewed with Robin Parker and incorporates the Enterprise Risk
Assessment. |IACS has delayed starting the audit of construction change orders until December,
primarily due to the expanded scope of another audit on cash advances.

David Creamer receives updates in weekly status meetings. Based on a September 2012 meeting, IACS
will send Mike Armstrong internal audit reports that include high risk issues or audit issues pertaining
to compliance with laws, regulations, or contracts.

2. Internal Audit issues

The report on pages 3 — 11 summarizes all open audit issues (including those from prior years) and is
sorted by risk level, high to low. The following table shows that since the last report to the Committee
in June 2012, twelve new issues have been added and five closed. The closed high risk issue was a
recommendation that IT Services update the IT Purchases procedure to consistently gather data on IT
spend. Doing so will give the CIO visibility and control over IT purchases to ensure alignment with the
IT strategy and enterprise architecture. [T Services has updated the related procedure and
implemented a purchase request form in BuyWay. The remaining closed issues are summarized on
page 12.

Audit Issue Status

Open audit Open audit

issues issues

Risk Level 6/7/2012 Added Closed 11/14/2012
7 0 1 6

Moderate 12 2 1 13
18 10 3 25

Total 37 12 5 44

3. 1ACS staffing and budget

The department is staffed by the Director, two full-time Associate Auditors, and a student auditor.
IACS has a total budget for FY 2013 of $428 K. Personnel costs account for $373 K, or 87% of the
budget. Costs are running under budget as of October 31, 2012.

Attachments
Cc David K. Creamer
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Division

Academic Affairs
Finance & Bus. Svc.
Finance & Bus. Svc.
Finance & Bus. Svc.
Finance & Bus. Svc.
Finance & Bus. Svc.
Finance & Bus. Svc.
Finance & Bus. Svc.
University-wide
Student Affairs
University-wide
Finance & Bus. Svc.
Finance & Bus. Svc.
Finance & Bus. Svc.
Finance & Bus. Svc.
University-wide

Finance & Bus. Svc.

Academic Affairs
Academic Affairs
University-wide
Finance & Bus. Svc.
Intercollegiate Athletics
Student Affairs

Finance & Bus. Svc.

IT Services

University Advancement
Academic Affairs
Academic Affairs
Academic Affairs
University-wide

IT Services

Audit Area

Hamilton Campus
Mailroom/Office Supply
Human Resources
HDRBS

Physical Facilities Dept.
Bookstore

HDRBS

HDRBS

University-wide

OESCR

University-wide

Police

Bursar's Office

Human Resources
Physical Facilities Dept.
University-wide

HDRBS

VOA

Arts and Science
University-wide

IACS

Intercollegiate Athletics
Health Services Center
Bursar's Office

I1SO

WCAA

Arts and Science
Registrar

Middletown Campus
University-wide

IT Services

Internal Audit, Barbara Jena

Internal Audit and Consulting Services

FY 2013 Audit Plan
Audit Project Status Reference
to Audit
Risk
Analysis
Hamilton Campus Motor Pool Completed 22
Office Supplies Inventory - follow-up audit Completed 15
Review of Overtime Expenses and Related Internal Control Completed 1;18
Physical inventory audit - Culinary Support Center Completed 16
Physical inventory audit - Central Stores Completed 2
Physical inventory audit - Bookstore Completed 21
Rec Sports Center/HDRBS Business Office Audit Completed 25
Lean Project - Rec Sports Center/HDRBS Business Office Completed 25
Enterprise Risk Assessment with General Counsel Completed
Review of Sexual Assault Notification - agreed upon procedures Completed 13
Enterprise Risk Management with General Counsel - Compliance In process
Clery Act - crime statistics agreed upon procedures Completed 10
Travel Advance Audit In process 7,11
Processing Salary and Wage Updates In process 1;18
Construction Change Orders Scheduled 3;14
University Purchasing Card (MasterCard) - follow-up/continuous audits In process 15
Audits of Auxiliaries processed by HDRBS Business Office In process 16; 17; 23;
24;25;27
Voice of America Learning Center follow-up audit In process 12
Project Dragonfly Earth Expeditions - follow-up audit Scheduled 20
Lean Project - decentralized cash receipt processing Scheduled 5,11
Internal Audit Quality Self-Assessment with Independent Validation Scheduled
Football attendance - agreed upon procedures Scheduled 7
Student Health Services - follow-up audit Scheduled 19
MULaa (debit account) follow-up audit Scheduled 11
Review of Identity Theft Prevention Program (Red Flags) Scheduled 4
Western College Alumnae Association financial audit Scheduled 29
Speech and Hearing Clinic audit Scheduled 28
Banner Security - grade changes Scheduled 9; 26
Middletown Business Office receipt processing Scheduled 6
EthicsPoint Reporting System with General Counsel In process
IT Services - provide consulting services re: security and other issues In process 4

Attachement |, Page 2 of 12

Dec 2012

Juy Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Dec 2012



Attachement |, Page 3 of 12

Audit Name And Date Date Risk
Opened Level
Compliance with the 3/19/2008
Payment Card Industry
Data Security
Standard - 3/2008
Audit of MUlaa Debit 8/26/2009
Card Accounts - 8/2009
Audit of Voice of 6/21/2010

America Learning
Center - 6/2010

Attachement |, Page 3 of 12

Division

IT Services

Finance &
Business
Services

Academic Affairs

Internal Audit, Barbara Jena

Open Internal Audit Issues

Recommendation

Credit Card Security: IACS recommends that IT Services develop a plan and an
estimate of cost for Miami University to achieve compliance with the PCI-DSS by
March 31, 2009. Once developed, IT Services should review the plan and
estimate of cost with Finance and Business Services senior management. An
agreement should be reached to either go-ahead with the plan or modify parts of
the plan. Portions of the data security standard where management chooses to
accept the risk of non-compliance, if any, should be documented by IT Services
after conferring with Finance and Business Services.

Monthly reconciliations should be performed. It is recommended that HDGS
send the Harco MUlaa account balance report to General Accounting each month
end and General Accounting reconcile it to Banner on a monthly basis.
Unexplained differences should be investigated promptly and action taken to
correct.

It is recommended that University management assign responsibility for
establishing and executing academic programming and related financial goals
which are consistent with the strategic goals of the University. Management
should identify key performance objectives and the related quantifiable
performance criteria. Performance should be evaluated against those criteria.

Responsible
Person

Joe Bazeley,
Assistant Vice
President &
Information
Security Officer

Dale C. Hinrichs,
Associate VP for
Finance &
Controller

Michael Pratt,
Regional Dean
and Associate
Provost

Dec 2012

Management Response and Status

IACS performed a follow-up audit in 8/2011 and determined that the issue remains
open. Asof 11/14/2012, management reported that: 1) HDRBS issued a second RFP
for a replacement system for Marcum that will be PCI DSS compliant and one response
was received. HDRBS staff are evaluating the response to determine if the proposed
new system would be acceptable. The proposed new system is certified to be PCI
compliant if installed according to the vendor's specifications; and 2) On the advice of
the vendor, the Bookstore upgraded to a version of software which has not yet been
validated as PCl compliant. As such, they are operating outside of compliance with PCI.

As of 11/07/2012, management reported the initial MUIlaa reconciliation was
substantially completed at June 30, 2012. However, the underlying software supporting
MUIaa transactions and accounting changed from Harco to Cbord. As such, a new Lean
team is updating the process and procedures with an expected completion date of June
30, 2013.

Dean Pratt reported in May 2011 that the responsibility for establishing academic
programming at the VOA was assigned to the Regional Dean. The Regional Dean, in
consultation with other deans, will develop a draft schedule for the coming academic
year (schedule conflicts arising between divisions will be resolved by the Provost). This
procedure was adopted by COAD in the spring semester 2011. The Regional Dean
reported that identified key performance objectives include:

1) Increased undergraduate scheduling during the day

2) Increased total enrollment across all hours of operation

3) Development of additional revenue generating programs for VOA (Such as- additional
degree completion program offerings, weekend degree completion programs, graduate
workshops)

Quantifiable measures include:

1) Enrollment by time of day

2) Enrollment by program

3) Revenue generated at the VOA. (Recognizing that undergraduate tuition for VOA
classes is presently credited to “campus of student” for "Hamilton", "Middletown” or
“Oxford”; undergraduate tuition from VOA classes are currently not credited to VOA.)
(Recognizing that graduate tuition for VOA classes is presently credited to the Oxford
campus general fund; graduate tuition from VOA classes is currently not credited to
VOA.)

Evaluation of performance will be against those criteria. Dean Pratt submitted updated
information 5/31/12 and 11/6/2012 which will be reviewed by IACS in conjunction with
the other VOA outstanding audit issues.

Dec 2012
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Audit Name And Date Date Risk
Opened Level

MULaa (debit account) 10/27/2011

Investigation - 10/2011

Audit of Purchasing 3/29/2012

Card Transactions -

3/2012

Attachement |, Page 4 of 12

Division

Academic Affairs

Finance &
Business
Services

Internal Audit, Barbara Jena

Open Internal Audit Issues

Recommendation Responsible

Person

Internal Audit and Consulting Services (IACS) investigated the facts and Kriss Cassano,
circumstances related to nonsufficient funds (NSF) added to a student's account.  Bursar

This review included an internal controls evaluation and the response that this

issue generated when the issue surfaced. Internal controls need improvement.

The University’s response needs to be more timely and comprehensive. The

following actions are recommended as soon as possible:

1. The Bursar’s Office should continue to work with Cash Net and the bank to
research the cause for the notification lag and to speed up notification by the
bank.

2. Eliminate the grace period for posting NSFs to Banner and post them daily as
received from the bank.

3. The Bursar should immediately charge back the MULaa card for any available
funds to cover the NSFs.

4. Cut off a student's on line capabilities to process e-checks sooner, as suggested
by the Interim Bursar.

5. Refunds are processed weekly by the Bursar’s Office. Management should
consider adding a conditional statement to the weekly refund process, such as: if
the account has a payment posted within the past 21 days (or other lag days
identified by management), with a description equal to “Web E check Payment”
(or paper check, if those are identifiable), do not issue refund. It appears
reasonable that a student who makes a payment would not expect a refund on
that payment within 21 days.

6. It is recommended that equipment that validates paper checks be further
investigated and considered for usage.

7. Management should resolve the open Internal Audit issue from 8/2009 -
reconcile the MULaa debit card accounts monthly. General Accounting has not
been successful in reconciling the MULaa general ledger account yet due to the
complexities and many parties involved. General Accounting states that this has
been made a LEAN project to accomplish the task.

8. Given the complexities discussed by HDRBS in changing the code to put hold
on payments until cleared and the related decline in customer services, it is
recommend that this action be considered when the application is replaced
summer 2012.

9. Lowering the cap on MULaa fund balances could also be considered at that
time.

It is recommended action be taken to identify instances where transactions have
not been approved, follow-up with the approver, and escalate to higher levels of
management if needed. Finance &

Controller

Dale C. Hinrichs,
Associate VP for

Dec 2012

Management Response and Status

As of 6/6/2012, management reported the following progress on points 1-7 and points
8-9 were updated in 11/12.

1. This issue was discussed with the bank and we are now receiving NSF notifications in
a timely manner. The 8 day average has been reduced to 4 days, which is a result of the
bank re-presenting the checks for processing before they are returned to the university.
This item is complete.

2. Returned e-checks are now posted immediately to a student’s account. This item is
complete.

3. This process has been implemented. NSF checks are charged back immediately. This
item is complete.

4. When an e-check is returned due to NSF, the students/parents ability to pay by on-
line e-check payment will be manually removed immediately upon notification. When a
parent/student incurs five returned checks, regardless of reason, their on-line payment
ability will be automatically be removed by the CashNet system. Payment can still be
made by paper check or electronically by credit card. This process has been
implemented. This item is complete.

5. In order to prevent a student or parent from receiving a refund check for a payment
on their account that could be fraudulent or returned for insufficient funds, the Bursar
office has: (a.) Created a report of all students or parents who have had checks
returned during the past year. This listing is compared to the refunds and any matches
are thoroughly reviewed by management for possibly holding the funds; (b.)
Implemented a procedure to review all refunds to see if a non-cash payment has been
posted for $500 or more within the last 7 days. If so, the refund will be pulled for further
review by management. As long as it does not violate financial aid policy which requires
refunds be made within 14 days of issuance, management will hold the refund until the
payment has cleared. This process has been implemented. This item is complete.

6. As a Lean project, the Bursar office has implemented a remote capture process that

validates paper checks as they are processed for payment. In addition to the validation,
checks are deposited into the university’s bank account one day earlier and has reduced
the number of times each check is handled. This item is complete.

7. This Lean project is in progress. Reconciling items are being identified, procedures
are being developed, & consideration is being given to Cbord replacing the current
Harco system. Project is expected to be completed at the end of fiscal year 2012.

8. After implementation of Cbord CSGold, it was determined that Banner could better
manage placing holds on payments. Project # 0765 was created in IT Services to
execute the necessary logic changes. In the meantime, we have added a message to the
CASHNet site that states, "Additions to MUIlaa purchased via electronic check may not
be available on your ID card for 3 business days to ensure check clearance from your
bank." Additionally, management is manually reviewing the MUIlaa adds until the
automated process from IT is in place.

9. IACS closed this point, agreeing with management that putting a hold on payments
(as discussed above in point 8) would be a mitigating control. IACS reiterated that
project 0765 which address this should be completed as soon as possible due to our
current exposure.

As of 11/07/2012, management reported that Customer Support runs reports each
month to identify the transactions that have not been approved. These transactions
will be discussed with departments at the time of the departmental audit.

Due to numerous bugs, the JP Morgan PaymentNet software upgrade has been put on
hold.

Dec 2012
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Audit Name And Date

Audit of Purchasing
Card Transactions -
3/2012

Audit of Voice of
America Learning
Center - 6/2010

Travel and Hosting
Expenditures - 4/2011

Audit of Donor
Stewardship - 7/2011

Audit of Donor
Stewardship - 7/2011

Audit of Scholarship
Awarding - 8/2011

Audit of Scholarship
Awarding - 8/2011

Audit of PayPal - 1/2012
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Risk
Level

Date
Opened

3/29/2012

Moderate

6/21/2010

4/13/2011 Moderate

7/19/2011 Moderate

7/19/2011 Moderate

8/1/2011 Moderate

8/1/2011 Moderate

1/6/2012 Moderate

Division

Finance &
Business
Services

Academic Affairs

Finance &
Business
Services

University
Advancement

Finance &
Business
Services

Academic Affairs

Academic Affairs

Finance &
Business
Services

Internal Audit, Barbara Jena

Open Internal Audit Issues

Recommendation

It is recommended action be taken to sample transactions for compliance, track
violations of policy, and follow-up as needed.

A disaster recovery plan should be documented by VOALC. It is recommended
that VOALC have a written and tested disaster recovery plan based on a
comprehensive risk analysis.

It is recommended that Accounts Payable investigate automation of the travel
expense report process and implement as soon as possible.

University Advancement should increase awareness of the Policy on Restricted
Gift Funds among fund managers and take action regarding excessive
accumulations of unspent distributions. Action should be taken by University
Advancement to routinely obtain records of a spending plan for all expendable
fund balances which exceed 15% of the related endowment balance. In
accordance with policy, excessive accumulation of unspent distribution should be
returned to principal unless a spending plan is presented to the Director of
Stewardship and Donor Relations.

It is recommended that University policy be enforced so that no restricted gift
fund carries a negative balance at the end of the fiscal year. Deficits that are not
resolved by fund managers should be escalated to senior management by
General Accounting.

Regional campuses should verify the continued eligibility of scholarship recipients
based on the stated criteria. Doing so will identify changes in circumstances
affecting eligibility and help ensure compliance with donor restrictions.

It is recommended that Student Financial Assistance review scholarship funds not
awarded to determine whether the lack of awarding appears reasonable.
Problem areas should be identified and resolved. Spending plans should be
identified and submitted to University Advancement for those with excess
accumulations. Student Financial Assistance should escalate issues related to the
under-awarding of departmental awards to senior management, as needed.

Doing so will help ensure that funds are fully utilized when eligible recipients exist.

The Office of the Bursar’s Policy and Procedures for Web Payment Processing
should be updated and require usage of the University’s approved Web payment
processor, unless exceptions are approved by the Treasurer or his delegate.

Responsible
Person

Dale C. Hinrichs,
Associate VP for
Finance &
Controller

Rod Nimtz,
Director VOALC

Dale C. Hinrichs,
Associate VP for
Finance &
Controller

Mackenzie Rice,
Director of
University
Advancement
Administration

Dale C. Hinrichs,
Associate VP for
Finance &
Controller

Brandi Everhart,
Coordinator of
Financial Aid,
Hamilton
Campus

Brent Shock,
Director of
Student
Financial
Assistance

Kriss Cassano,
Bursar, and
Bruce Guiot,
Chief
Investment/Trea
sury Officer

Dec 2012

Management Response and Status

As of 11/07/2012, management reported that Customer Support is finalizing the audit
procedures that will be used to audit transactions for policy compliance, ensure
statement & receipts have been uploaded, and that the original receipts have been
maintained in the department. Once these procedures are complete, departmental
visits will be scheduled.

Management reported 5/21/2012 that a regional campus plan was developed and
forwarded for review by the Office of Environment Health and Safety. VOALC is part of
the Regional Plan.

A follow-up audit is in process.

As of 11/07/2012, management reported the Lean Travel Team has completed a draft
of an updated travel policy and is in the process of implementing the Banner Travel
Expense module. The anticipated date the new module will go live is 01/01/2013.

As of 11/01/2012, management reported that the annual report showing all expendable
fund balances equal to or exceeding 15% of the related endowed balance for 6/30/12
balances was produced by Treasury Services in August 2012. The Associate Director of
Stewardship/Compliance Officer will use those calculations to inform the appropriate
fund managers, and request spending plans for funds having excessive expendable
balances. This information will also be highlighted in the annual
Development/Stewardship review with Deans and Vice Presidents, and during the
annual fund review performed by the Associate Director of Stewardship/Compliance
Officer. The Associate Director of Stewardship/Compliance Officer anticipates that one
round of meetings (annual fund review) can be completed with all Deans and Vice
Presidents by 6/30/13.

As of 11/07/2012, management reported that an E-mail was sent to fund managers who
had a deficit balance in a restricted account. The FY2012 year-end listing of restricted
accounts with deficit balances was not given to senior management due to turnover.
The listing is currently being created and will be done annually as part of the year-end
close in the future.

As of 11/13/12, management reported: Currently we are working with all departments
regarding nominations and criteria. On our new nomination form we have added the
criteria which provides a reminder while awarding. We will also continue checking each
student before entering on Banner and again after freeze date. The scholarship staff in
Oxford and the insufficient hours report will also find ineligible students. Majority of
the time we will find ineligible students while entering on Banner. We currently receive
relocating forms from the Record and Registration office; however, these students will
typically be caught by the scholarship team in Oxford.

As of 10/26/2012, management reported: the SFA office has notified departmental
contacts two times of their balances, award criteria and recipient award list. First
notification was early March 2012. Second Notification was late September 2012. We
gave departments until10/15/2012 to submit nominations. Our plan included a built in
two week period (10/15 to 11/1) for us to resolve discrepancies and review data
submitted by departments. On November 1, we will begin to create the unspent
balance report for dissemination to the Provost and Deans. We expect to disseminate
that report the week of 11/5/2012. Going forward, we anticipate that we will
permanently adopt the mid-October deadline, with an early November report
notification to the Provost and Deans.

As of 11/01/2012, management reported that the CashNet eMarket Policies and
Procedures document and CashNet request form have been updated. They will be
available on the Bursar's website very soon.
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Audit Name And Date

Audit of PayPal - 1/2012

Audit of Purchasing
Card Transactions -
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Audit of Purchasing
Card Transactions -
3/2012

Review of Journal
Entries

Inventory Audits -
7/31/2012

Inventory Audits -
7/31/2012
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Date Risk
Opened Level

1/6/2012 Moderate

3/29/2012 Moderate

3/29/2012 Moderate

4/30/2012 Moderate

7/31/2012 Moderate

7/31/2012 Moderate

Division

Academic Affairs

Finance &
Business
Services

Finance &
Business
Services

Finance &
Business
Services

Finance &
Business
Services

IT Services

Internal Audit, Barbara Jena

Open Internal Audit Issues

Recommendation

The process to establish CASHNet payments sites should be simplified for
departments and student organizations. Recommendations for improvement
include posting information on the Bursar’s website and a link to the Policy and
Procedures for Web Payment Processing. In addition, the implementation
process should be streamlined by developing templates for user set-up or by
other methods.

It is recommended that training sessions stress the importance of redacting
credit card numbers (except for the last four digits) before documents are
scanned and uploaded.

To ensure that documentation is readily available, it is recommended reconcilers
and cardholders receive a system confirmation when receipts are successfully
uploaded in Banner Xtender. This confirmation may improve cardholder
compliance with meeting the reconciliation process deadline as uploading errors
will be immediately recognized.

Journal entries should be reviewed for reasonableness and appropriate
documentation before being booked by accounting staff in General Accounting.
The current policy requires Staff Accountants to get approval for any journal
voucher that has a line item of over $250,000. With such a high threshold,
accountants with less experience may book incorrect adjustments that could
have a material impact to an organization. It is recommended that the Controller
review the journal entry approval policy for adequacy.

Accounting adjustments should be booked monthly in Banner to recognize
changes in inventory balances throughout the year as well as cost of goods
sold/distributed, shrinkage, or markdowns. Current accounting procedures
require units (such as Culinary Support, Central Stores, and the Bookstore) to
charge inventory purchases throughout the year to expense (157XXX) accounts.
It is only at yearend that the inventory asset accounts are adjusted in Banner.
This practice masks shrinkage and markdowns.

Use of one inventory system across campus would be in line with the University’s
application rationalization initiative, allow for a consistent accounting valuation
method and consistent accounting treatment for shipping costs. Currently, the
systems used by Central Stores, the Miami University Bookstore, and the Culinary
Support Center to track and maintain inventory are all different. As a result,
inconsistencies exist in accounting valuation methods and inclusion of shipping
expenses in inventory values. The different systems are used in conjunction with
the differing work order or sales systems. In addition to these three larger
inventory areas, there are smaller inventories across the university managed by
areas such as the Recreational Sports Center, the Pharmacy, the Marcum
Conference Center, and University Advancement.

Responsible
Person

Kriss Cassano,
Bursar

Dale C. Hinrichs,
Associate VP for
Finance &
Controller

Dale C. Hinrichs,
Associate VP for
Finance &
Controller

Dale C. Hinrichs,
Associate VP for
Finance &
Controller

Dale C. Hinrichs,
Associate VP for
Finance &
Controller

David M.
Schaefer,
Manager of
Application
Development
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Management Response and Status

As of 11/01/2012, management reported the steps for creating a CashNet eMarket web
site have been standardized and processes have been documented to organize and
speed processing. A back-up employee is being trained in site creation and
deployment. The eMarket Policies and Procedures document and CashNet request
form have been updated and submitted for publication to the Bursar's website.
Attempts to determine if a template could be created were not answered by CashNet.

The Lean project has not been started, as an RFP for CashNet is being obtained.
Management is also evaluating CashNet versus competitors for possible replacement of
the product as a whole.

As of 11/07/2012, management reported that item has received additional emphasis in
training sessions and has been highlighted in the P-Card Useful Tips and Helpful
Reminders newsletter.

According to IT Services, it is very difficult and time consuming to create a system
generated confirmation in Banner Xtender when receipts are successfully uploaded. As
this feature may not be needed in the future, we are not pursuing the development of
this program at this time. As a short term alternative, IT Services will modify the Easy
Image Loader system to edit the input data as it is entered... As a long-term solution,
the PaymentNet upgrade scheduled for 2012 will also provide the capability to store
imaged documents within the PaymentNet System...

As of 11/07/2012, management reported that the short-term alternative of IT Services
modifying the Easy Image Load system to edit the input data is complete. Due to
numerous bugs, the JP Morgan PaymentNet software upgrade has been put on hold.

As of 11/07/2012, management reported: Lowering the threshold amount and the
related resources needed to comply with this policy was considered. Given the fact that
there is a mitigating control of departments reviewing their monthly financial reports,
the additional resources that would be needed with a lower threshold, and the low level
of risk and personal gain associated with journal vouchers, we did not lower the
threshold. We will continue to train the staff in order to reduce the possibility of errors.

Prior attempts to implement monthly accounting were unsuccessful due to problems
getting the information from the various inventory systems. The Controller’s Office has
agreed to re-visit changing the process and will be contacting the larger inventory areas
to do so.

As of 11/07/2012, the Controller's Office stated that this project will be addressed in
FY2013. Due to the large number of inventories and their complexity, the project will
likely carry over into FY2014.

IT Services has agreed to facilitate an exploration into the feasibility of using one
inventory system across campus to save costs and increase consistency.
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Internal Audit, Barbara Jena

Open Internal Audit Issues

Dec 2012

Audit Name And Date Date Risk Division Recommendation Responsible Management Response and Status
Opened Level Person
Audit of Student Health 1/26/2010 Student Affairs Revenue recognition and allowance write-off should be processed accurately and  Gail Walenga, As of 11/02/2012, management reported that JVs and the reconciliation are sent
Services -1/2010 account balances should be reconciled monthly. It is recommended that correct ~ Asst. VP for monthly and has been since January 2012. The revenue is now booked monthly by
coding be used for the Bursar interface related to the transfer of the receivable Student Health General Accounting. IACS has scheduled another follow-up audit in FY2013.
balance from the insurance company to the student; the credit should be posted  and Wellness
to the insurance receivable account rather than revenue for a second time. In
addition, the insurance provider allowance write-off recognized should be
supported by PyraMed detail. Finally, the PyraMed and Banner systems should
be reconciled monthly, rather than annually.
Audit of Voice of 6/21/2010 Academic Affairs  Deposits must be timely in compliance with the Ohio Revised Code and University Rod Nimtz, A follow-up audit was performed in 12/2011 and one portion of the comment regarding
America Learning policy. IACS recommends that the VOALC comply with the Cash Handling Policy Director VOALC  the VTS machine remains open. A follow-up audit is in process.
Center - 6/2010 and work with the Bursar to establish proper procedures to follow regarding the
Value Transfer Station, which is used to load money onto students’ identification
cards. Additionally, timeliness of deposits should be improved by depositing
funds in a local bank, already established through the Treasurer’s office. It is
recommended that management work with the Bursar to implement the change
in procedures.
Audit of Voice of 6/21/2010 Academic Affairs  Accounts receivable balances should be properly billed and monitored. Itis Rod Nimtz, A follow-up audit was performed in 12/2011, and it was concluded this audit
America Learning recommended that the Program Associate perform the following functions to Director VOALC  recommendation has NOT been properly implemented; see comments below.
Center - 6/2010 properly manage the accounts receivable balances:
a) Generate bills for the amounts outstanding. Invoices should be generated monthly
a. Generate bills for the amounts outstanding. for any amounts outstanding.
b) Create and review an aging report for items outstanding greater than 120 days and
b. Create and review an aging report for items outstanding greater than 120 days take action to collect. While the Rental Log provides detailed information, no total A/R
and take action to collect. balance is shown, and no aging of the outstanding balance due is provided. A total A/R
balance (amount billed less amount paid) should be noted on the aging report.
c. Require payments of past balances due before contracting with external c) Require payments of past balances due before contracting with external groups. It
groups. appears that Cintas has an outstanding balance due from 9/27/11 and additional rental
dates have been schedules.
d. Communicate with the Controller’s Office regarding the year end accounts d) Communicate with the Controller's Office regarding the year end accounts
receivable balance receivable balance. No information was available regarding communication with the
Controller's Office.
A follow-up audit is in process.
Audit of Voice of 6/21/2010 Academic Affairs  Policies and job procedures should be documented by VOALC. It is Rod Nimtz, A matrix of staff responsibilities was created in November 2011 identifying persons with
America Learning recommended that policies and job procedures be documented and updated on Director VOALC  primary and secondary responsibilities. Carol Danner (classified) has compiled a
Center - 6/2010 a regular basis by the Director. procedures manual collecting documents from various University offices/operations
(e.g. Accounts Payable, Purchasing, Treasury Services).
A follow-up audit is in process.
Audit of Project 11/30/2011 Academic Affairs  The Earth Expedition workshops should follow the University’s standard Chris Myers, As of 10/26/2012, management reported that all tuition and fees generated by Project
Dragonfly's Earth workshop model to ensure compliance with University policies and procedures PDF Director Dragonfly managed course and degree programs flow directly to the University
Expedition Workshop - regarding fees and tuition charged. All receipts should flow directly to the and Professor of  according to a fully approved workshop model. A partial tuition and fee waiver
11/2011 University and not to a PayPal account as has been done by PDF. Any student Zoology approved on February 27, 2012 by senior management enabled these programs to
fees remaining in the PayPal account established by Project Dragonfly should be continue. All PayPal accounts have been closed and course income is processed
transferred to the University and the PayPal account should be shut down. through Lifelong Learning following standard university policies and procedures.
Consistent tuition and fees should be charged as deemed appropriate by
University management. Expenses should be approved by Lifelong Learning, the A follow-up audit has been scheduled in FY13.
department Chair, and if necessary the Dean, in compliance with University
policies and procedures.
Audit of Project 11/30/2011 Academic Affairs  Cash handling procedures should be in compliance with policy. IACS Chris Myers, As of 10/26/2012, management reported that Project Dragonfly no longer processes
Dragonfly's Earth recommends that PDF resolve the account issue with the Bursar and deposit the PDF Director tuition or course fees. If tuition or fee checks are sent to Project Dragonfly, they are
Expedition Workshop - checks in accordance with the Cash Handling Policy. and Professor of  transferred to the appropriate office in accordance with the Cash Handling Policy
11/2011 Zoology
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Internal Audit, Barbara Jena

Open Internal Audit Issues

Dec 2012

Audit Name And Date Date Risk Division Recommendation Responsible Management Response and Status
Opened Level Person
Audit of Project 11/30/2011 Academic Affairs  PDF should work with IT Services and the University Communications department  Chris Myers, As of 10/26/2012, management reported that new Project Dragonfly websites are in
Dragonfly's Earth to transfer the PDF websites to the University domain and follow any branding PDF Director place, with the new Miami University logo integrated into page designs. These sites
Expedition Workshop - guidelines established by University Communications. and Professor of  moved to Miami University servers with the assistance of IT Services, with URLs that
11/2011 Zoology include:
EarthExpeditions.muohio.edu
AlP.muohio.edu
GFP.muohio.edu
Masters.df.muohio.edu
Audit of Project 11/30/2011 Academic Affairs  IACS recommends that senior management review the current agreement in Chris Myers, As of 10/26/2012, management reported that the previous agreement with the
Dragonfly's Earth place with the Cincinnati Zoo and follow-up as deemed appropriate. Any PDF Director Cincinnati Zoo & Botanical Gardens for Earth Expeditions has been closed. As of May 1,
Expedition Workshop - decisions based on the source of funds and the agreement’s classification as a and Professor of 2012, all Project Dragonfly managed course and degree programs follow Miami's
11/2011 grant instead of as a cooperative agreement should be revisited. Future Zoology current credit workshop model. A report on this and the remaining audit updates was
agreements should clearly state terms, as well as the source and flow of funds. sent to the Provost on September 7, 2012.
A follow-up audit has been scheduled in FY13.
Audit of WCAA 4/4/2012 University Gift Receipts Processing. It is recommended the Accounting Technician comply Kaye Wolke, As of 11/07/2012, Kaye Wolke, Accounting Technician, reported that all credit card
Financial Statements - Advancement with the Credit Card Security Policies and Procedures concerning paper records Accounting numbers through March 2012 have been redacted. Subsequent credit card numbers
4/2012 and redact all but the last four digits of credit card numbers in no more than 180  Technician are being redacted once the customer has been issued a receipt.
days.
Financial Audit of 5/17/2012 Academic Affairs  To reduce risk, it is recommended that MUDEC follow-up on the Dean’s proposal ~ Thierry Leterre,  As of 10/29/2012, the Dean reported that an employee has been hired and is currently
Miami University to have the kitchen proctoring duties covered by part time Luxembourg staff Dean and Prof working in the kitchen.
Dolibois European instead of students. of Pol Science
Center - 5/2012
Financial Audit of 5/17/2012 Academic Affairs It is recommended that job procedures for the Assistant Dean for Administration  Thierry Leterre,  The Dean agreed and stated that this recommendation fits the effort to move MUDEC
Miami University and the Coordinator in Oxford be documented and updated on a regular basis. Dean and Prof from an oral culture as regards to procedures to a documentation-based environment.
Dolibois European Having this information available reduces the risk of compliance violations, as of Pol Science Job procedures for the Assistant Dean have been described in a first draft. An intern will
Center - 5/2012 emergency replacement personnel will have a resource for successfully be hired in September to complete the draft which will be then reviewed as well as the
performing duties. existing documentation for the Oxford coordinator. A yearly update is planned from
then on.
As of 10/29/2012, the Dean reported that an intern had been hired and the job
procedures for the Assistant Dean were drafted. These will be finalized in 2013.
Financial Audit of 5/17/2012 Academic Affairs It is recommended that changes be implemented to bring MUDEC's credit card Thierry Leterre,  The Dean agreed and stated that this recommendation is currently assessed. Forms
Miami University processing procedures more in line with University procedures as follows: Dean and Prof have been filled to reflect the necessity to identify who, what, where, when, and why
Dolibois European of Pol Science the expenditure was incurred. Lines of reporting have been established for the Dean’s
Center - 5/2012 a. It is recommended that the signatures of the cardholder and his supervisor be credit card and documentation will be submitted for approval to the office of the
documented on the credit card invoice to denote approval of the charges. Provost. The strengthening of report makes the Dean comfortable to raise the spending
limit of the Assistant Dean’s Credit card.
b. In order to be more consistent in processing MUDEC's credit card invoices, it is
recommended that each charge identify who, what, where, when, and why the As of 10/29/2012, the Dean reported that this recommendation has been implemented.
expenditure was incurred.
c. If the Dean’s credit card monthly invoice has five or more transactions, it is
recommended that the page number of the receipt be noted on the transaction
line of the invoice before scanning the invoice and receipts for the Provost's
approval. This facilitates review and is in line with University procedure.
d. Consider raising the spending limit on the Assistant Dean for Administration’s
card to avoid using the Dean’s card for study tour expenditures.
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Financial Audit of
Miami University

Dolibois European
Center - 5/2012

5/17/2012

Financial Audit of
Miami University

Dolibois European
Center - 5/2012

5/17/2012

Financial Audit of
Miami University

Dolibois European
Center - 5/2012

5/17/2012

LEAN Receipt Mapping 6/30/2012

FAMU

Demske Culinary 7/26/2012
Support Center -
Inventory Audit 7/2012
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Academic Affairs

Academic Affairs

Academic Affairs

Finance &
Business
Services

Finance &
Business
Services

It is recommended that the “cashless” deposit account be segregated from the
other semester-end accounting transactions and be automated. A transition
from Blackboard to CBORD is planned for summer 2012 and IT Services indicated
that adding a swipe or tap option might be an alternative for MUDEC. MUDEC
should work with Joe Bazeley of IT Services to implement technological
improvements in this area.

It is recommended that MUDEC begin using the University travel form and have
both the traveler and his/her supervisor approve the travel costs including any
reimbursement. Now that email and scanning technology is available, it is
recommended that MUDEC begin using the University travel form and have both
the traveler and his/her supervisor approve the travel costs including any
reimbursement. By completing the travel expense report, the total cost of the
trip will be summarized for approval.

MUDEC's monthly financial reports should be reviewed by MUDEC management
for reasonableness and follow-up action taken to resolve questionable account
activity.

a) Now that communication has been improved through technology, it is
recommended that the "responsible person" on MUDEC monthly financial
reports be changed from the Staff Accountant in General Accounting to the
MUDEC Dean. Also, in line with responsibilities, the person listed for index LUXE
and index 3016 should be changed from MUDEC’s Oxford Coordinator to the
Dean.

b) It is recommended that the monthly financial reports issued by General
Accounting be reviewed by MUDEC for reasonableness and follow-up action be
taken to resolve any questionable account activity. It is recommended that this
review include reports regarding MUDEC’s Oxford Office; the Coordinator should
forward her monthly financial reports received from General Accounting to the
Dean. To facilitate this review, the Assistant Dean for Administration should
request a copy of General Accounting’s spreadsheet that shows how the GT
(external accounting firm in Luxembourg) records are booked in Banner.

¢) To record accounting transactions in the correct montbh, it is recommended
that MUDEC work with their accounting firm in Luxembourg, GT Fiduciaires, to
review the month end closing process to see if any steps could be done more
efficiently to speed the process. For example, use and provide copies of bank e-
statements to document ending account bank balances.

The LEAN Receipts Processing project revealed that costs could be reduced by
having Accounts Payable discontinue writing checks which are cashed internally
by the Bursar's Office and credited to student accounts for financial aid awarded
by departments. Savings could be achieved by replacing the processing of these
checks with an electronic form completed by departments within BuyWay. To
achieve additional productivity improvements, it is also recommended that
Accounts Payable be eliminated from the review process and these functions
transferred to Student Financial Assistance.

It is recommended that the Demske Culinary Support Center value inventory for
financial reporting purposes in accordance with procedures issued by General
Accounting.

Thierry Leterre,
Dean and Prof
of Pol Science

Thierry Leterre,
Dean and Prof
of Pol Science

Thierry Leterre,
Dean and Prof
of Pol Science

Brent Shock,
Director of
Student
Financial
Assistance

Jon Brubacher,
Manager of
Purchasing and
Operations
Analysis

The Dean agreed and stated that the implementation of this recommendation depends
only marginally on action taken locally as it involves a high level of automation that will
be set up from the U.S. IT Services has been contacted to provide solutions and
expertise and plan for implementation. It has been recommended to move cashless
deposits to MUlaa accounts which would help automating all transactions. This is a
sound project saving hours of work and preventing errors.

As of 10/29/2012, the Dean reported that this has been implemented in Luxembourg.
However, implementation has been problematic in Oxford, as MUlaa does not seem to
automatically credit Luxembourg's budget.

The Dean agreed and stated that this recommendation will be implemented with the
beginning of the new fiscal year 2012-2013. Reporting lines have been determined as
well as ways to proceed. Action has already been taken to adapt travel forms to comply
with local laws pertaining to mileage reimbursement and to adapt to currency.

As of 10/29/2012, the Dean reported that this recommendation has been implemented.

The Dean agreed and stated that, as of May 2012, all documents are sent by General
Accounting to my attention. Accounts set to be reviewed by my office in Oxford under
the supervision of Alyssa Klein have been set up with me as an alternate, which insures
proper reporting.

This will allow a global view of all the budgets relevant to our operations and
identification of issues needing attention. Technology now allows for a better
communication between the main U.S. campus and our operation in Luxembourg so
this should not be a difficulty and will save time in matching local operations and global
budget. Follow-up with GT Fiduciaires will improve the registration of operation in the
correct month and in proper time for the closing of the fiscal year.

As of 10/29/2012, the Dean reported that this recommendation has been implemented.

As of 10/22/2012, a form is in production for departments to use in BuyWay to send
scholarship and aid information to Student Financial Assistance. Once approved,
Accounts Payable will check the form and the document will flow to the Bursar's Office
to charge the department and apply the funds to the student's account.

Jon Brubacher contacted Cbord [inventory control system] and planned to meet with
them by mid-August 2012. During this meeting they were to discuss whether the
current Cbord system is able to value inventory using the FIFO method, and if so, how
they can best make this change.
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Business Office

Audit Name And Date Date Risk Division Recommendation Responsible Management Response and Status
Opened Level Person
Central Stores - 8/24/2012 Finance & It is recommended management consider setting a price threshold for low dollar ~ Sandra Mohr, Sandra Mohr, Director, concurred. Sandra stated that she is evaluating the inventory to
Inventory Audit 8/2012 Business items and expense these items as supplies. Managing these items as supplies Director of determine an appropriate threshold and establish procedures to provide, store and
Services rather than inventory should reduce the effort required when taking physical Operations recuperate the cost from customers. As part of this effort, PFD is considering options
inventory and allow for greater attention paid to the more costly items. If Center and for vendor-managed inventory and vendor-owned inventory for such sundry items. PFD
expensed, Central Stores should investigate alternative methods to recuperate Facilities Central s also evaluating items in inventory that can be discontinued because they are not used
the item costs from departments. Stores for maintenance repairs and can be purchased through the BuyWay. PFD plans to
accomplish these steps by the end of fiscal year 2013.
Central Stores - 8/24/2012 Finance & It is recommended internal controls be strengthened surrounding the movement  Sandra Mohr, Sandra Mohr, Director, concurred. Sandra Mohr states a procedure has been
Inventory Audit 8/2012 Business of inventory by having management: Director of established to review after-hours entries (captured through the electronic CSGold door
Services Operations access system) each morning. Access is limited to certain personnel within the
A. Require (rather than encourage) employees working after-hours to pick up Center and department. A procedure has been established for all individuals entering the space
needed items at the beginning of their shift for all scheduled work. Facilities Central  after hours to document the reason for entry and items sold. Failure to report reason
Stores for entry will result in discipline. Access to the Central Stores facility after hours should
B. Segregate items designated for emergency use from other items to secure the largely be associated with urgent or emergency work orders. The work order type is
majority of the warehouse. reviewed daily related to the parts sought or sold. Management will review this trend.
We expect these steps to reduce the after-hours visits significantly within six (6) months.
C. Review inventory adjustments and write-offs for reasonableness.
Further, we are working on an initiative to institute planning and scheduling our work.
This initiative will provide for planned work with parts being “kitted” in advance. This
new way of conducting business will reduce the need for after-hours access to Central
Stores. We hope to have this process in place (though probably not perfected) by the
end of fiscal year 2013. Management will review the on-hand adjustment spread sheet
weekly. A column has been added to the document with a date and time stamp to
record each time it is reviewed.
Miami University 8/31/2012 Finance & It is recommended that Bookstore management further strengthen internal Jim Simpson, Management concurred stating: Going forward, staff members will be able to
Bookstore - Inventory Business controls surrounding the physical inventory process by: Director of the document the adjustments with manager approval. We are working to make comments
Audit 8/2012 Services Miami more detailed and consistent for better analysis on a regular basis. Now that we are
1. Reviewing dollar amounts and explanations for adjustments recorded in the University more knowledgeable about the turnover reports, going forward we are committed to
inventory system. Bookstore reviewing dollar amounts and explanations each month and doing a report on a
quarterly basis. Staff will be expected to use the data to help determine what sales
2. Analyzing inventory turnover, shrinkage, sales trends, and markdowns on a categories are not producing as well as expected, develop a plan to move the
regular basis and taking action as appropriate. merchandise, display it differently, or perhaps discontinue it.
As of 11/07/2012, the Director reported that managers select a department or type of
merchandise to inventory on a weekly basis. Any discrepancies are brought to the
manager of the department, researched, and noted in WinPRISM with a reason for the
adjustment. Each month, managers review reports for negative stock on hand and
variance. Shrinkage is calculated monthly and reviewed first by dollar amount.
Miami University 8/31/2012 Finance & It is recommended that the Bookstore not split payment vouchers to circumvent  Jim Simpson, Management concurred stating: | understand Internal Audit’s concerns about splitting
Bookstore - Inventory Business the system of control. Management should consider requesting a higher Director of the payments to circumvent the system of control and agree that a review the current
Audit 8/2012 Services threshold if appropriate. Miami threshold needs to take place. | will contact IACS and set up a meeting after the start of
University the school year to determine who should be involved in that conversation. Our goal is
Bookstore to be in compliance with control systems while ensuring that practices involving
payment vouchers are efficient and effective in managing large purchases.
Receipt Processing 9/26/2012 Finance & It is recommended the RSC process all receipts through the Point of Sale system Ron Siliko, We agree with the recommendation that all receipts will be run through the point-of -
Audit- Rec Sports Business to adequately separate cash receiving and cash accounting. If the correct Director of sale system including Aquatics Dive Camp and Red Brick Run. We will complete
Center/HDRBS Services contract account is unknown by the cashier, payments could be applied to a Customer and payment processing for the contracts through a Pro Shop Manager only due to the
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holding account for later clearing by the Administrative Assistant at the HDRBS
Business Office. Cashiers should include identifying information pertaining to
contract, Aquatics Dive Camp, and Red Brick Run payments with their shift
documentation for the HDRBS Business Office accounting.

Facility Services

complexity of accepting these payments. We will train our point-of-sale staff at the
time of special event registrations in order to appoint specific staff to process these
payments. This will begin immediately.
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Audit Name And Date Date Risk Division Recommendation Responsible Management Response and Status
Opened Level Person
Receipt Processing 9/26/2012 Finance & It is recommended the RSC improve compliance with the Credit Card Security Ron Siliko, We agree with the recommendation to encourage customers to make payments online
Audit- Rec Sports Business Policies and Procedures by implementing the following: Director of to eliminate the risk of stored credit card information. Ninety-nine percent of our credit
Center/HDRBS Services Customer and card transactions are processed electronically, either online or by staff without a form
Business Office ¢ Explore options to encourage customers to make payments online. Electronic Facility Services  being used. This will begin immediately.
records would eliminate risks associated with the stored paper records.
We agree with the recommendation to discontinue the practice of storing forms with
® Use the original form to process payments and discontinue making copies. credit card information by cutting out the credit card information and shredding after
Credit card information should be completely redacted after payments are payment is processed. We will only process payment from the original form, and will
processed. not make copies of the forms. Once payment is processed, credit card information will
be shredded. This will begin immediately.
 Retain receipt records for four years.
We agree with the recommendation to retain receipt records for four years. We will
separate payment receipts from waiver receipts since waiver receipts must be kept for
a longer period of time, seven years. We are instituting a LEAN project in which all of
our files will be stored electronically on a university-approved platform rather than
stored on paper forms. This will begin immediately.
Receipt Processing 9/26/2012 Finance & It is recommended that the HDRBS Business Office book their deposits in Banner  Judy Vest, We concur with the recommendation. Contact has been made to grant this access. A
Audit- Rec Sports Business rather than the Bursar's Office performing additional steps. The Bursar's Office Auxiliary meeting has been arranged on 10/8 to discuss what requirements the Bursar will still
Center/HDRBS Services could realize annual productivity improvements of $1.4K (58 hours) by not Business Office need. Training will also need to occur. Target date for implementation is no later than
Business Office entering data in Banner. The HDRBS Business Office could realize annual net Manager 10/31/12.
productivity improvements of $0.2K (10 hours). The Business Office should also
explore if uploading deposit information to Banner is possible. If deposits could In addition, contact has been made with the IT department to discuss the possibility of
be uploaded to Banner, the Business Office could realize additional annual uploading from Excel formats directly into the system to reduce human error and time.
improvements of $1.4K (58 hours). Follow-up in response of an IT ticket was performed on 9/24/12. Upon response from
IT, we will implement within thirty days of their response, presuming this is feasible.
Receipt Processing 9/26/2012 Finance & It is recommended that management explore automating the cashier shift closing  Ron Siliko, We agree with the recommendation to explore an automated form for closing
Audit- Rec Sports Business procedures and the preparation of bank deposits to improve operational Director of procedures to reduce human error and reduce time spent keying in data. We are
Center/HDRBS Services efficiency and effectiveness. Specifically, opportunities to reduce time spent Customer and working with Class software support to determine the feasibility of creating a cash

Business Office
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keying data stored in the information system should be explored. IACS estimates
that $2.4K (302.5 hours) in annual productivity improvements at the RSC could be
realized by automating this process. The HDRBS Business Office may see
additional productivity improvements.

Facility Services

handling form to replace the Excel spreadsheet. This option in Class requires a software
license change, which is currently being explored to determine the cost and time table
for implementation. If instituted, estimated date of start for automated form is
January 1, 2013.

In addition, we are looking to change our point-of-sale software, and the company who
makes the software does have a cash report form function as part of its basic

functionality. If approved, estimated start date of new software program is August 1,
2013.
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Audit Name And Date Date Risk Division
Opened Level

Audit of 6/9/2011 IT Services

Reimbursements -

6/2011

Audit of MasterCard 12/2/2009 Moderate Finance &

Purchases -12/2009 Business
Services

Miami University 8/29/2011 Finance &

Bookstore Inventory Business

Audit - 8/2011 Services

Audit of Office Supplies 10/5/2011 Finance &

Inventory - 10/2011 Business
Services

Hamilton Campus 11/2/2011 Provost

Motor Pool Review -

11/2011
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Internal Audit, Barbara Jena

Closed Internal Audit Issues

Recommendation

It is recommended that IT Services update the IT Purchases procedure to
consistently gather data on IT spend. Doing so will give the CIO visibility and
control over IT purchases to ensure alignment with the IT strategy and enterprise
architecture. In addition, IT Services should work with the Purchasing Office to
incorporate this data gathering with BuyWay.

Policy concerning telecommunications equipment and devices should be
reevaluated. Itis recommended that the Purchasing Office coordinate with the IT
Office of Telecommunications in order to establish a uniform policy to either
approve, regulate, and document cell phone requests and purchases, or
(preferably) change to a standard allowance in lieu of such purchases. Other
universities have implemented an allowance based cell phone policy, in which an
authorized user is provided financial assistance to contract directly with a
provider in exchange for carrying a cell phone during work for business calls. It is
recommended that this option be evaluated and policy updated accordingly.

It is recommended that internal controls be strengthened surrounding the
physical inventory process. This should include:

1. The Bookstore should compare what they do have in stock with what they
should have in stock on a perpetual basis. Quantity adjustments should be
evaluated for shrinkage and other causes.

2. Inventory records should be stated at the lower of FIFO cost or market for
financial reporting purposes.

3. Management should continue to learn about the inventory reporting system
within WinPRISM and be able to provide records supporting the valuation of all
reported amounts.

It is recommended that management consider eliminating the office supplies
inventory at Wells Hall. Items which are readily available elsewhere should be
discontinued and alternative sources should be investigated to supply the
specialized inventory items. If management decides to maintain the office
supplies inventory, internal controls should be strengthened.

Overall compliance with the Hamilton Campus Motor Pool policies needs
continued improvement.

Responsible
Person

Alan Ferrenberg,
Associate VP
Business &
Infrastructure
Services

Joe Bazeley,
Assistant Vice
President &
Information
Security Officer

Jim Simpson,
Director of the
Miami
University
Bookstore

Anita Byrd,
Manager of
University Mail
Services

Chris Connell,
Senior Director
of
Administration

Dec 2012

Management Response and Status

IT Services supports the recommendation to consistently gather IT spend data and
suggested actions to achieve it. As of 6/22/2012, IT Services had taken the
recommended action of updating the procedure to consistently gather data on IT spend
and implemented a purchase request form in BuyWay. Comment closed.

As of 11/12/2012, management reported that a stipend based model was adopted in
the 2012-2013 version of MUPIM. It is located in section 19.6B and takes effect for the
entire University on January 1, 2013. IT Services and Athletics have already moved to
the new model. Advancement, the Office of the President, Student Affairs, and
Academic Affairs will be moving in November. Finance & Business Services will be
moving at a later date. Under this new language, individuals who are receiving a
stipend have a responsibility for paying for their device. Individuals receiving a fully-
reimbursed mobile device must meet a set of criteria listed in MUPIM, obtain the
necessary approvals, and must not use the device for any personal uses. IT Services did
update the “IT Purchase Request Form” and it includes telecommunication devices; it is
now included as an attachment in BuyWay.

Management responded stating: Bookstore management will implement a better-
defined inventory process that will cycle through selected merchandise on an ongoing
basis. Any needed adjustments will be posted and analyzed to account for any
discrepancies. Management staff will begin implementation in September 2011.

IACS performed a follow-up review at 6/30/2012 year-end. It appears that
management has taken the appropriate steps to meet these recommendations.
Comment closed.

Management responded stating: | agree with IACS’s summary of findings and the
recommendation to eliminate office supplies inventory. As of 5/23/2012, the Office
Supplies Inventory account was cleared. Stamps and campus mail envelopes were
billed to Purchasing (BSV010) and are being depleted as usage allows. They will not be
restocked once the inventory is exhausted. Bluebooks, ACS scan forms, and the MU
pocket folders were purchased by the Print Center (MDAOO1). IACS verified these items
were no longer held by the Mail Center and that the Office Supplies Inventory account
has a zero balance. Comment closed.

IACS performed a follow-up audit in May 2012. In summary, it appears compliance with
the Hamilton Campus Motor Pool policies are now being enforced. Comment closed.
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Business Session
Item 10a

New Issue: Moody's assigns Aa3 rating to Miami University's (OH) $125 million of
Series 2012 general receipts revenue bonds; outlook is stable

Global Credit Research - 09 Oct 2012

University will have $553 million of pro-forma rated debt

MIAMI UNIVERSITY, OH
Public Colleges & Universities

OH

Moody's Rating

ISSUE RATING

General Receipts Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 Aa3
Sale Amount $125,000,000

Expected Sale Date 10/22/12
Rating Description Revenue: Public University Broad Pledge

Moody's Outlook STA

Opinion

NEW YORK, October 09, 2012 --Moody's Investors Service has assigned a Aa3 rating to Miami University's
("Miami") $125 million of General Receipts Revenue Bonds, Series 2012. We have also affirmed the Aa3 ratings on
the university's outstanding debt detailed at the end of the report in the RATED DEBT section. The rating outlook is
stable.

SUMMARY RATING RATIONALE

The Aa3 rating reflects Miami University's unique market position as a large residential public university with a
relatively large out-of-state draw, positive operating performance and solid debt service coverage, and healthy
liquidity. Offsetting these credit strengths are significant increases in debt and additional longer term debt plans to
complete its strategic housing plans further leveraging the university's sizeable balance sheet, as well as a highly
competitive market, limited revenue diversity, and declining state appropriations.

STRENGTHS

*Sound student demand and market position for its residential main campus with the ability to draw out-of-state
students, distinguishing the university from most public universities. In fall 2012, the university enrolled 20,672 full-
time equivalent (FTE) students drawing 38% of incoming first year students from out of state, uncommonly high for
a public university, elevating its net tuition per student to a strong $13,410.

*Strong financial management team and resulting improvement of Miami's operating margins, as measured by
Moody's with a three-year average operating margin of 7.5%. FY 2012 draft financials indicate a strong 17.3% cash
flow providing sufficient pro-forma maximum annual debt service (MADS) coverage of 2.1 times.

*Adequate balance sheet cushion with FY 2011 expendable financial resources of $429.7 million covering pro-
forma debt 0.8 times and operations 0.9 times. Expendable financial resources grew nearly 5% to $450.0 million in
FY 2012 due to an ongoing comprehensive campaign.

*Proven ability to fundraise, reflected in healthy three-year average annual gift revenue of $27.3 million from FY
2009-FY 2011 and total gift revenue in FY 2012 was strong at $29.1 million, based on unaudited financials.

CHALLENGES
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*Ability to grow revenue given the university's high dependence on student tuition and fees of 74.4% and state
appropriations of 12.7% in FY 2012, which is further challenged by declining share of state support for both
operating revenue as well as capital support, and a limit on tuition increases for in-state undergraduate students.

*Competitive market environment, as well as economic and demographic challenges in Ohio, manifested by two
years of consecutive enroliment declines. Total FTE enrollment is estimated at 20,672 students in fall 2012, down
2% from fall 2010 due to enroliment declines at the regional campuses and in graduate programs, and the main
Oxford campus has limited additional capacity for growth.

*Rapid increase in debt over the last several years, significantly leveraging the university; pro-forma debt to
operating revenue is 1.0 times compared to Moody's Aa3 public university median of 0.54 times. In addition, the
university has not completed its capital plan for housing, and plans to issue $125-150 million in additional debt.

DETAILED CREDIT DISCUSSION

USE OF PROCEEDS: The Series 2012 bonds will be used to pay for costs associated with renovations to student
housing and dining facilities, infrastructure upgrades, improvements to other capital projects, and issuance costs.

LEGAL SECURITY: Pledge of General Receipts, including virtually all legally available revenues with the exception
of state appropriations and restricted gifts. The university covenants to fix, make, adjust and collect fees, rates,
rentals and charges to produce at all times General Receipts at least sufficient to pay debt service when due. In FY
2011 and FY 2012 (unaudited), pledged General Receipts amounted to $437.8 million and $446.7 million,
respectively, compared to annual debt service of $23.3 million and $35.2 million, respectively. Annual maximum
annual debt service is expected to rise to $45.4 million with issuance of the Series 2012 bonds. The Series 2010A
bonds were issued as taxable Build America Bonds ("BABs") with the federal tax subsidy payment of 35% made
directly to the university. There is no debt service reserve fund.

DEBT STRUCTURE: Including the Series 2012 bonds, all of the university's debt will be fixed rate.
DEBT RELATED INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVES: None.

MARKET POSITION/COMPETITIVE STRATEGY: LARGE RESIDENTIAL PUBLIC UNIVERSITY WITH SOLID
REPUTATION AND OUT-OF-STATE DRAW; ENROLLMENT DECLINES AT REGIONAL CAMPUSES AND FOR
GRADUATE PROGRAMS

Miami University is a large public university enrolling over 20,000 FTE students across its three campuses with the
majority of students attending its main campus located in Oxford (rated Aa2) in southwestern Ohio, approximately
one hour from Cincinnati and Dayton. The town of Oxford epitomizes a college town, and the university's
residential and well-maintained campus enhances its appeal. The university offers a diverse array of programs,
including business, education, health, engineering and applied science, and creative arts, and is primarily
recognized for its focus on liberal arts. The study body is primarily undergraduate, making up approximately 95% of
total students. Miami operates in the highly competitive market environment in Ohio, a state with a declining high
school population and over one hundred higher education options. However, uncommon for public universities,
Miami's reputation draws a relatively high percentage of nonresident students with 38.5% of the fall 2012 first-year
students from other states and countries. This out-of-state draw (primarily from llinois, Indiana, and Michigan)
bolsters the university's net tuition per student, reaching $12,735 in FY 2011 ($13,410 in FY 2012 based on
unaudited financials) and demonstrates the value families place on an education from Miami. Miami's ability to
maintain net tuition per student growth is a key credit factor given its high dependence on tuition and fees.

FTE enroliment declined for the second consecutive year to 20,672 students in fall 2012 from 21,121 students in
fall 2010, resulting from lower enrollment at the Hamilton and Middletown regional campuses, and in graduate
programs. The regional campuses are open access and focus on career based programs for the local community,
and face significant competition from lower priced community colleges. The primary driver for graduate enroliment
declines was discontinuation of its full-time MBA program and decline in institutional tuition waivers. The regional
campuses and graduate programs represent approximately 21% and 5% of total enroliment, respectively.

In its continued focus to increase the percentage of non-resident undergraduate students, the university recently
added regional recruiters in Northern Virginia and Atlanta, expanded international recruiting staff, and continues to
expand the size of a new English as a Second Language (ESL) program. Growth in the percentage of non-resident
students is important for Miami to maintain net tuition revenue growth as the state limits tuition increases and the
Oxford campus is limited to fall enroliment of 17,000 FTE students.
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OPERATING PERFORMANCE: POSITIVE OPERATING PERFORMANCE ACHIEVED THROUGH EMPHASIS ON
COST CONTAINMENT

The university has maintained positive operating performance since FY 2008, generating healthier operating
performance in the last three years with average annual operating performance of 7.5% over FY 2010-FY 2012
compared to breakeven to modest surpluses in years prior. With the narrowing of top line revenue growth, the
stronger margins have been driven by deliberate expense containment. The university has maintained double-digit
cash flow margins since FY 2010, and the unaudited FY 2012 operating cash flow margin of 17% produced an
adequate 2.1 times pro-forma maximum annual debt service. Given the significant debt increases ($375 million of
new money debt since FY 2010), continued robust cash flow will be important to maintaining the Aa3 rating. The
university will levy an additional student fee in FY 2014 (expected to be $110 per student, per semester, but not to
exceed $125) to help fund debt service on the Series 2010 bonds when those projects are completed.

Revenue generated from student tuition, fees, and auxiliaries composed 74.4% of total operating revenue in FY
2012, up from 72.0% in FY 2011. The university's high reliance on this source is more similar to private liberal arts
universities and its strategies to draw non-resident students, generate new revenue streams, and continue to grow
net revenue from student based charges is an important credit factor to maintaining the rating. Since 2008, the
university has shrunk administrative staff significantly (from 3,400 FTEs to 2,800 FTEs) and is shifting to less
tenure-track faculty. Given the cost containing initiatives already taken, we believe it will be difficult to hold
expenses, particularly as debt service rises and consumes more of the budget. The FY 2013 budget shows a 1%
increase in expenses over FY 2012. Miami receives limited state support as a percentage of its revenue relative to
public universities across our rated portfolio, but is still vulnerable to state cuts as state appropriations are its
second largest revenue source (12.7% in FY 2012). Reversing the trend of declining state support since FY 2009,
the university's projected FY 2013 state share of instruction (SSI) will increase 2.2% to $69.0 million from $67.5
million. The state is undergoing an assessment of how SSl s allocated and, at this time, management believes
that the university's share will not change materially.

Moody's rates the State of Ohio Aa1 with a stable outlook. The state's Aa1 G.O. rating reflects strong financial
management proven through generally proactive responses to budget shortfalls, recent revenue growth and
improved financial position, and the expectation that excess revenues will continue to be used to rebuild reserves
in the near term. The state's satisfactory financial position is also demonstrated by the expected return to
structural balance in fiscal 2013, and maintenance of strong liquidity. The Aa1 rating incorporates a transitioning
economy that remains somewhat vulnerable to disruption but has shown recent stabilization due to growth in
manufacturing and service sectors. The state's debt position is moderate, and unfunded pension and OPEB
liabilities are affordable compared to similarly rated states, enhancing the state's budget flexibility. For more
information related to the state, please see our State of Ohio report dated September 26, 2012.

BALANCE SHEET POSITION: BALANCE SHEET RESOURCES PROVIDE THINNER BUT ADEQUATE
CUSHION OF PRO-FORMADEBT; LIMITED DEBT CAPACITY AT CURRENT RATING LEVEL

Miami's financial position remains sound, but is becoming increasingly more leveraged for the Aa3 rating category
as declining state support and competitive market has increased the university's need for capital projects. The
university has a solid balance sheet (including financial resources of its affiliated foundation) with total financial
resources of $695 million (unaudited FY 2012), up nearly 4% from $668.8 million in FY 2011, comparing favorably
to the Aa3 median for Moody's rated public universities of $328.5 million. Including the current issuance, the
university has issued $375 million of new money debt since FY 2010 that has outpaced financial resources growth.
FY 2012 expendable financial resources cushion pro-forma debt 0.8 times compared to 1.5 times in FY 2010.

The university is currently in a comprehensive campaign with a goal of $500 million, which has been increased
twice due to meeting previous goals early. Through August 31, 2012, Miami has raised $456 million towards the
goal, having received approximately $301 million in cash. From FY 2009-FY 2011, the university has raised an
annual average of $27.3 million, which is nearly double the Aa3-median.

In line with the university's campus master plan, Miami has invested significantly in student-centered projects since
FY 2010, including construction of new student center (scheduled completion in January 2014) and renovation of
housing and dining facilities. The Series 2012 bonds are being issued to provide funding for the next phase of
these planned improvements. The first and second phases are underway and are funded by a portion of the
proceeds of the Series 2010 and Series 2011 bonds. There will not be an increase in total beds, but the upgraded
facilities are planned to bring in some additional funds.

As of June 30, 2012, Miami's endowment pool totaled $387.2 million with a fiscal year return of negative 3.3%. Total
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investments, which are held at Miami's foundation were allocated: 34% public equities, 25% hedge funds, 14% real
assets, 13% private equity and debt, 9% fixed income, and 5% cash. The foundation's board of directors and the
university's chief investment officer oversees the investment pool. Graystone Consulting is the investment advisor.
No manager or fund comprises more than 9% of the portfolio. The university's FY 2011 monthly liquidity of $255
million provides a solid 207 monthly days cash to cover operating expenses, and also provides adequate liquidity to
total FY 2011 unfunded commitments of $50 million.

While the university can absorb the additional debt at this time, the total debt and timing of the Series 2011 and
2012 issuances were accelerated due to favorable borrowing rates and gift revenue. Given the increase in debt,
the Aa3-rating is sensitive to declines in expendable resources, revenue, or cash flow. Management reports issuing
between $100-150 million additional debt over the next three to five fiscal years. These debt plans are not
incorporated into the rating because the timeframe is outside of our outlook period; however, additional borrowing
without compensating growth in balance sheet resources, revenue, and strong cash flow could lead to downward
rating pressure.

GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT: CAREFUL FISCAL OVERSIGHT HAS LED TO IMPROVED OPERATING
PERFORMANCE

Miami's senior leadership and board demonstrate positive indicators of effective governance practices. The
university is committed to multi-year planning in connection with its strategic plan, as well as ongoing monitoring of
financial and operational results compared to budgeted expectations. Miami's management team creates detailed
forecasts and budgets connecting it to it long-term financial and capital plans. In 2011, the university formed a task
force to develop new revenue streams, identify cost savings, and to make the university more efficient within a
three-year period. Management reports that it has achieved two-thirds of the planned $41.0 million of budget
relieving items and believes that energy projects and Six-Sigma process efficiencies will create reoccurring
savings beyond the three-year period. Importantly, the university's operating performance has improved within this
timeframe.

OUTLOOK

The stable outlook reflects Moody's expectation that the university will maintain positive operating performance to
adequately cover increased debt service, stabilize enroliment with continued growth in net tuition revenue, and that
there will be no near-term debt issuance or draw down of financial resources or significant loss of state support.

WHAT COULD MAKE THE RATING GO UP

Substantial growth in financial resources; continued growth in net tuition revenue and other revenue sources;
increased revenue diversity

WHAT COULD MAKE THE RATING GO DOWN

Weakening of debt service coverage; additional borrowing without proportionate operating cash flow growth and
growth of financial resources; deterioration of operating performance, particularly if driven by deterioration in
student market position with sustained enroliment declines or reduction in net tuition per student; downgrade of the
state's rating or significant reduction in state support

KEY INDICATORS (FY 2011 financial data, fall 2011 enrollment data; FY 2012 unaudited financials and preliminary
fall 2012 enroliment data in parenthetical)

Full-Time Equivalent Enrollment: 21,083 students (20,672 students)
Primary Selectivity: 74.5% (72.8%)

Primary Matriculation: 26.2% (25.1%)

Net Tuition per Student: $12,735 ($13,410)

Educational Expenses per Student: $17,382 ($18,059)

Average Gifts per Student $1,295 ($1,398)

Total Cash and Investments: $403.8 million ($446.0 million)

Total Pro-Forma Direct Debt: $556.3 million (includes FY 2012 principal payments)

Attachment J, Page 4 of 33 Dec 2012



Attachment J, Page 5 of 33 Additonal Materials Dec 2012

Total Pro-Forma Comprehensive Debt*: $556.3 million (includes FY 2012 principal payments)
Expendable Financial Resources to Direct Debt: 0.78 times (0.81 times)

Expendable Financial Resources to Operations: 0.88 times (0.89 times)

Monthly Days Cash on Hand: 207.4 days

Monthly Liquidity to Demand Debt: Not applicable

Operating Revenue: $533.7 million ($541.8 million)

Operating Cash Flow Margin: 18.3% (17.3%)

Three-Year Average Debt Service Coverage: 3.54 times (2.44 times)

Reliance on Tuition and Auxiliaries Revenue (% of Moody's Adjusted Operating Revenue): 72.0% (74.4%)
Reliance on State Appropriations (% of Moody's Adjusted Operating Revenue): 15.5% (12.7%)
State of Ohio G.O. Rating: Aa1/stable

*Comprehensive Debt includes direct debt, operating leases, and pension obligation, if applicable
RATED DEBT

Series 2010A, 2010B, 2011, and 2012: Aa3

Series 2003, 2005, and 2007: Aa3; insured by Ambac

CONTACTS

Miami University: Bruce Guiot, Chief Investment Officer, (513) 529-8015

Financial Advisor: John Vincent, President, John S. Vincent & Co., (312) 332-1337

Underwriter: Kathleen Clark, Fifth Third Securities, (614) 744-5410

PRINCIPAL RATING METHODOLOGY

The principal methodology used in this rating was U.S. Not-for-Profit Private and Public Higher Education published
in August 2011. Please see the Credit Policy page on www.moodys.com for a copy of this methodology.

REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

The Global Scale Credit Ratings on this press release that are issued by one of Moody's affiliates outside the EU
are endorsed by Moody's Investors Service Ltd., One Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E 14 5FA, UK, in
accordance with Art.4 paragraph 3 of the Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009 on Credit Rating Agencies. Further
information on the EU endorsement status and on the Moody's office that has issued a particular Credit Rating is
available on www.moodys.com.

For ratings issued on a program, series or category/class of debt, this announcement provides relevant regulatory
disclosures in relation to each rating of a subsequently issued bond or note of the same series or category/class of
debt or pursuant to a program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from existing ratings in accordance with
Moody's rating practices. For ratings issued on a support provider, this announcement provides relevant regulatory
disclosures in relation to the rating action on the support provider and in relation to each particular rating action for
securities that derive their credit ratings from the support provider's credit rating. For provisional ratings, this
announcement provides relevant regulatory disclosures in relation to the provisional rating assigned, and in relation
to a definitive rating that may be assigned subsequent to the final issuance of the debt, in each case where the
transaction structure and terms have not changed prior to the assignment of the definitive rating in a manner that
would have affected the rating. For further information please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page for the
respective issuer on www.moodys.com.

Information sources used to prepare the rating are the following: parties involved in the ratings, parties not involved
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in the ratings, public information, and confidential and proprietary Moody's Investors Service's information.

Moody's considers the quality of information available on the rated entity, obligation or credit satisfactory for the
purposes of issuing a rating.

Moody's adopts all necessary measures so that the information it uses in assigning a rating is of sufficient quality
and from sources Moody's considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources.
However, Moody's is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information
received in the rating process.

Please see the ratings disclosure page on www.moodys.com for general disclosure on potential conflicts of
interests.

Please see the ratings disclosure page on www.moodys.com for information on (A) MCO's major shareholders
(above 5%) and for (B) further information regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO
and rated entities as well as (C) the names of entities that hold ratings from MIS that have also publicly reported to
the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%. Amember of the board of directors of this rated entity
may also be a member of the board of directors of a shareholder of Moody's Corporation; however, Moody's has
not independently verified this matter.

Please see Moody's Rating Symbols and Definitions on the Rating Process page on www.moodys.com for further
information on the meaning of each rating category and the definition of default and recovery.

Please see ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on www.moodys.com for the last rating action and the rating
history.

The date on which some ratings were first released goes back to a time before Moody's ratings were fully digitized
and accurate data may not be available. Consequently, Moody's provides a date that it believes is the most reliable
and accurate based on the information that is available to it. Please see the ratings disclosure page on our website
www.moodys.com for further information.

Please see www.moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst and to the Moody's legal entity
that has issued the rating.

Analysts

Erin V. Ortiz

Lead Analyst

Public Finance Group
Moody's Investors Service

Heidi Wilde

Backup Analyst

Public Finance Group
Moody's Investors Service

Kimberly S. Tuby
Additional Contact

Public Finance Group
Moody's Investors Service

Edith Behr

Additional Contact

Public Finance Group
Moody's Investors Service

Contacts

Journalists: (212) 553-0376
Research Clients: (212) 553-1653

Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
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© 2012 Moody's Investors Service, Inc. and/or its licensors and affiliates (collectively, "MOODY'S"). All rights reserved.

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE, INC. ("MIS") AND ITS AFFILIATES ARE
MOODY'S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT
COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND CREDIT RATINGS AND RESEARCH
PUBLICATIONS PUBLISHED BY MOODY'S ("MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS") MAY INCLUDE MOODY'S CURRENT
OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR
DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES. MOODY'S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT MEET
ITS CONTRACTUAL, FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS
IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS AND
MOODY'S OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR
HISTORICAL FACT. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE
INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND
DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES.
NEITHER CREDIT RATINGS NOR MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN
INVESTMENT FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR. MOODY'S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS AND PUBLISHES
MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL
MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR
PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE.

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, COPYRIGHT
LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED,
FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR
SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, INANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY
MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON WITHOUT MOODY'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT. All information
contained herein is obtained by MOODY'S from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. Because of the
possibility of human or mechanical error as well as other factors, however, all information contained herein is provided
"AS IS" without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the information it uses in
assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources Moody's considers to be reliable, including, when
appropriate, independent third-party sources. However, MOODY'S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance
independently verify or validate information received in the rating process. Under no circumstances shall MOODY'S have
any liability to any person or entity for (a) any loss or damage in whole or in part caused by, resulting from, or relating to,
any error (negligent or otherwise) or other circumstance or contingency within or outside the control of MOODY'S or any
of its directors, officers, employees or agents in connection with the procurement, collection, compilation, analysis,
interpretation, communication, publication or delivery of any such information, or (b) any direct, indirect, special,
consequential, compensatory or incidental damages whatsoever (including without limitation, lost profits), even if
MOODY'S is advised in advance of the possibility of such damages, resulting from the use of or inability to use, any such
information. The ratings, financial reporting analysis, projections, and other observations, if any, constituting part of the
information contained herein are, and must be construed solely as, statements of opinion and not statements of fact or
recommendations to purchase, sell or hold any securities. Each user of the information contained herein must make its
own study and evaluation of each security it may consider purchasing, holding or selling. NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY
PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH RATING OR OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY
MOODY'S INANY FORM OR MANNER WHATSOEVER.
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MIS, a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Corporation ("MCQO"), hereby discloses that most issuers
of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred
stock rated by MIS have, prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to MIS for appraisal and rating services
rendered by it fees ranging from $1,500 to approximately $2,500,000. MCO and MIS also maintain policies and
procedures to address the independence of MIS's ratings and rating processes. Information regarding certain affiliations
that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and between entities who hold ratings from MIS and have
also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at
www.moodys.com under the heading "Shareholder Relations — Corporate Governance — Director and Shareholder
Affiliation Policy."

Any publication into Australia of this document is by MOODY'S affiliate, Moody's Investors Service Pty Limited ABN 61
003 399 657, which holds Australian Financial Services License no. 336969. This document is intended to be provided
only to "wholesale clients" within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this
document from within Australia, you represent to MOODY'S that you are, or are accessing the document as a
representative of, a "wholesale client" and that neither you nor the entity you represent will directly or indirectly
disseminate this document or its contents to "retail clients" within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act
2001.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, credit ratings assigned on and after October 1, 2010 by Moody's Japan K.K. (“MJKK”) are
MJKK's current opinions of the relative future credit risk of entities, credit commitments, or debt or debt-like securities. In
such a case, “MIS” in the foregoing statements shall be deemed to be replaced with “MJKK”. MJKK is a wholly-owned
credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly owned by Moody’s Overseas Holdings Inc.,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCO.

This credit rating is an opinion as to the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the issuer, not on the equity securities of
the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors. It would be dangerous for retail investors to make
any investment decision based on this credit rating. If in doubt you should contact your financial or other professional
adviser.
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Business Session

Item 10b
FINAL SUMMARY - 2012 BOND ISSUE
Miami University
October 23, 2012
TOTAL PAR AMOUNT: $116,065,000
SERIES 2012 TAX-EXEMPT BONDS:
PAR AMOUNT NEW PROJECT FUNDS: $116,065,000
INTEREST RATE (all-inclusive true interest cost): 3.13%
MATURITIES: 2014-2037
MOODY’S CREDIT RATING: Aa3 (Affirmed)
FITCH’S CREDIT RATING: AA  (Affirmed)
SR. MANAGING UNDERWRITER: Fifth Third Securities
CO-MANAGERS: Barclays Capital, Morgan Stanley, Stifel
Nicolaus

SELLING GROUP MEMBERS: Edward Jones, PNC Capital Markets
FINANCIAL ADVISOR: John S. Vincent & Company
BOND COUNSEL: Peck, Shaffer & Williams
UNDERWRITER’S COUNSEL Squire Sanders
TRUSTEE: Bank of New York Mellon Trust Co

Attachment J, Page 9 of 33 Dec 2012



Attachment J, Page 10 of 33 Additonal Materials

Dec 2012

Business Session

2012 BOND ISSUE
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Par amount of Series 2011 bonds $116,065,000.00
Issuance premium received 10,089.232.60
Total Sources $126,154,232.60

USES OF FUNDS

Capital projects:

Student housing & dining projects $125,000,000.00
Underwriter’s fee 728,076.83
Other costs of issuance 426,155.77
Total Uses $126,154,232.60
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Forward Twelve Month Agenda

Agenda Item

February

April

June
End of

September
Beginning of

Winter

Spring

Year

Year

December

Meeting

Meeting

Meeting

Meeting

Fall Meeting

Committee Structure:

® Committee Priority Agenda

® Committee Self-Assessment

Strategic Matters and Significant Topics Affecting Miami:

® Update on Strategic Priorities
- Progress Toward Goals
- New Revenue Development Reports by Academic Leaders

® Annual Campaign Update

Regular Agenda Items:

® Enrollment Report

® Report on Year-to-Date Operating Results

® Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting

Finance and Accounting Agenda:

® Budget Planning for New Year

® Appropriation Ordinance (Budget)

® Tuition and Fee Ordinance

® Miscellaneous Fee Ordinance

® Room and Board Ordinance

® Review of Financial Statements

® Annual State of Ohio Fiscal Watch Report

® PVIBA Tuition Proposal

Audit and Compliance Agenda:

® Planning Meeting with Independent Auditors

® Management Letter and Other Required Communications

® Annual Planning Meeting with Internal Auditor

® Annual Report by Internal Auditor

® Annual Compliance Report

® Risk Assessment Report

Attachment J, Page 11 of 33
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Forward Twelve Month Agenda
June September
February April End of | Beginning of
Winter Spring Year Year December
Agenda ltem Meeting = Meeting | Meeting Meeting | Fall Meeting

Investment Agenda:

® Approval of Endowment Spending Formula X

® Semi-Annual Review of Investment Performance X X
Facilities Agenda:

® Approval of Six-Year Capital Plan (every other year) X

® Facilities Condition Report X

® Annual Report of Gift-Funded Projects

® Report on Housing and Dining Master Plan X X X X
Routine Reports:

® University Advancement Campaign Update X X

® Cash and Investments Report X X

® Status of Capital Projects Report X X

® Health Benefit Strategic Indicators X X

® Financial Ratios X
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MIAMI UNIVERSITY

FULL-TIME UNDERGRADUATE FEES, UNIVERSITY MAIN CAMPUSES
Fall Term2012

UNIVERSITY CALENDAR CREDIT HOURS INSTRUCTIONAL GENERAL/OTHER OUT-OF-STATE
MAIN CAMPUSES (QTR/SEM) (RANGE) FEE FEES* SURCHARGE
Bowling Green State University Semester 12+ $4,457 $740 $3,654
Central State University Semester 12-18 $1,775 $1,160 $3,610
Cleveland State University Semester 12-16 $3,903 $754 $1,561
Kent State University Semester 11+ $4,053 $783 $3,980
Miami University Semester 12+ $5,635 $1,126 $7,782
Ohio State University Semester 12+ $4,584 $434 $7,704
Ohio University Semester 11-20 $4,480 $661 $4,482
Shawnee State University Semester 12-18 $2,959 $535 $2,487
University of Akron Semester 12-16 $4,142 $789 $4,100
University of Cincinnati Semestion 12-18 $4,562 $830 $180
University of Toledo Semester 12-16 $3,932 $666 $4,560
Wright State University Semester 12-18 $3,627 $550 $3,914
Youngstown State University Semester 12-16 $3,105 $751 $2,978

Source: Ohio Board of Regents
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‘v and Tlanor

Board of Trustees Presentation

Tom Herbert

Vice President, University Advancement

‘For Love dnd Honor

Required Actual
Level Number Total Number Total
$25,000,000+ 2 $50,000,000 1 $25,000,000
$10,000,000 ' 10 $100,000,000 7 $82,252,532
$5,000,000 . 15 $75,000,000 8 $45,222,375
$2,000,000 20 $40,000,000 14 $40,021,595
Leadership Gifts $1,000,000 55 $55,000,000 48 $60,011,830
$500,000 65 $32,500,000 44 $27,837,119
Major Gifts $100,000 400 $40.000.000 359 - $64,804,764
$50,000 450 $22,500,000 319 $19,833,272
$25,000 800 $20,000,000 590 $17,804,288
Special Gifts $10.000 1,500 $15,000.000 1,299 $17,380,494
Gifts Below $10,000 many $50,000.000 331,376 $62,195,811
Total $500.000.000 $462,364,081
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CY08 CYO09 CY10 CY11 CY12*

$3.48m  $3.44m  $4.02m  $4.17m  $2.75m
(12.5%)  (12.8%)  (12.6%)  (14.4%) (15.0%)

23,840 23,365 23,666 24,900 16,878
(71%) (88%) (84%) (84%) (63%)

CYi2*
$5.7m $4.0m $0.8m  $0.8m $2.3m
(20.3%) (14.8%) (2.5%) (2.8%) (12.7%)
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CY09

$5.8m $4.3m $2.2m $1.0m $2.4m
(20.9%) (16.1%) (6.9%) (3.6%) (13.5%)

d Honor

CY08 CY09

CY10
$10.0m  $2.4m  $12.5m $1.4m $12.1m

(28%) (1% Q1% (6%) (38%)
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for Love anid 1y

National Miami
Alumni 25% 54%
Friends/Parents 18% 11%
Corporations 17% 13%
Foundations 30% 11%

M ain L i

Miami University 18.0%

Public Schools 9.9%
Private Schools 20.2%

All Schools 12.4%
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v For Love and Flonor

Raise $65 million to complete the Campaign For
Love and Honor

o Raise $35 million in cash, sustained goal of $50
million

* Complete phase one fundraising goal of $30-$34
million for the Armstrong Student Center

* Achieve year three scholarshlp goal of $9.6 million,
per SPTF

Complete staffing plan, with performance metrics

Achieve 19% alumni participation rate

To date, have raised $33 million for Campaign For
Love and Honor

e To date, have raised $18 million in cash

* To date, have raised over $31 million for the
Armstrong Student Center, phase one

e To date, have raised $3 million toward year three
scholarship goal

Staffing plan completed, metrics in place

'Alumni participation rate at 13%, many gifts coming
at year-end

Attachment J, Page 20 of 33
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¢ Launch student and young alumni program.

Overhaul chapter and group program

Redesign and launch new MUAA web site

Create formal professional development plan

Implement national stewardship plan

Create culture of superior customer service

Loie apd Fguer

Young Alumni Council has met several times, working
with Student Affairs to increase campus awareness

Initial chapter/group overhaul adopted, making
additional revisions

Redesigned MUAA web site launched, as well as new
development web site

In-house staff training workshops underway

» Planning both large and small scale stewardship events,
on national level :

"Launched “Superior Service” incentive program
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nd Honer

Concluding campaign by June 30, 2013

Cash “slide”

Planned Giving performance.

Staff retention - post-campaign

Stewardship - post-campaign

Election outcome

and Honor

Board of Trustees Presentation

Tom Herbert

Vice President, University Advancement
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Reporting Update
Item #2

REPORT ON CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Finance and Audit Committee
Miami University
December 6, 2012

Non-Endowment Fund

For the first fiscal quarter ending September 30, 2012, the non-endowment fund
returned an estimated +2.03%. The performance for the past twelve months was an
estimated +4.36%. A summary of performance is attached.

Cash flow, aided by first semester tuition receipts, started the fiscal year in a
strong position. The operating cash balance was nearly $105 million at quarter-end, even
after transferring $30 million from operating cash to the core cash pool near the end of
the quarter. This transfer was to initiate a new investment in a short term bond strategy
managed by M.D. Sass.

Short-term interest rates near zero continue to limit the earnings potential from
both the operating cash and core cash portions of the pool. Plans are being developed,
based on the cash flow forecast for the fiscal year, to continue to rebalance away from
operating cash to core cash and long-term capital in an attempt to enhance the earnings
potential of the overall fund in a prudent manner.

Current Funds Fair Value % of Portfolio
Operating Cash:
Short-term Investments* $104,829,335 28.40%
Core Cash: _
Intermediate-term Investments $117,679,174 31.88%
Long-Term Capital:
Fixed Income Investments $ 76,304,947 20.67%
Absolute Return $ 70,322,299 19.05%
Total long-term Capital $146,627,246 39.72%
Total Current Fund Investments $369,135,755 100.0%

*includes bank account balances not included on performance report

Endowment Fund

The endowment fund returned an estimated +4.48% for the first fiscal quarter
ending September 30, 2012. The performance for the last twelve months was an
estimated +12.41%. A summary of performance is attached.

Attachment J, Page.23 of 33 Dec 2012



Attachment J, Page 24 of 33 Additonal Materials Dec 2012

The Miami University Foundation Investment Committee met on October 8,
2012. The committee approved an expansion of the strategic asset allocation ranges for
both the equity (lower floor) and debt (higher ceiling) categories. Within the portfolio,
the committee approved the termination of a global public equity manager (Tradewinds),
the new subscription to a global public equity manager (Baring) with the proceeds, the
termination of an emerging markets public equity manager (Tradewinds), and the transfer
of those proceeds to an existing emerging markets manager (Virtus).

Bond Project Funds
The pace of construction activity increased. Approximately $19 million in draws
were made during the quarter. As of September 30, 2012, the balances were as follows:

Plant Funds
Series 2010 Bond Project Fund $ 59,212,024
Series 2011 Bond Project Fund $115.350,827
Total Plant Funds $174,562,851

The Series 2012 tax-exempt bonds were successfully sold in October, with
settlement and receipt of the $125 million in proceeds occurring in November.

Attachments
Non-endowment Performance Summary as of 9/30/2012
MUF Performance Summary as of 9/30/2012

Attachment J, Page 24 of 33 Dec 2012
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